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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE COMPANY

Sr. No. | Name of the Shareholder No of Shares Percentage %
Sponsor
1 Canara Bank 33,00,00,000 12.00
Non-Sponsor
2 State Bank of India 27,22,50,000 9.90
3 Union Bank of India 27,22,50,000 9.90
4 Bank of Baroda 27,22,50,000 9.90
5 Indian Bank 27,22,50,000 9.90
6 Punjab National Bank 24,75,00,000 9.00
7 Bank of India 24,75,00,000 9.00
8 Bank of Maharashtra 13,75,00,000 5.00
9 IDBI Bank 13,75,00,000 5.00
10 ICICI Bank 13,75,00,000 5.00
11 UCO Bank 12,10,00,000 4.40
12 HDFC Bank 8,25,00,000 3.00
13 Axis Bank 8,25,00,000 3.00
14 Indian Overseas Bank 8,25,00,000 3.00
15 Punjab & Sind Bank 5,50,00,000 2.00
Total 2,75,00,00,000 100.00
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ABOUT THE COMPANY

National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “NARCL”) is an Asset
Reconstruction Company registered with Reserve Bank of India under Section 3 of Securitisation
and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002,
(“SARFAESI Act”). The Company has received Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of

India (“RBI”) on October 04, 2021, to commence business as an Asset Reconstruction Company.

NARCL has been set up with a strategic initiative to clean up the legacy stressed assets with an
exposure of Rs 500 crore and above in the Indian Banking system. NARCL offers adaptable
acquisition structures comprising of an optimal mix of Cash and Security Receipts (SRs) to the
Selling Banks and Financial Institutions, across sectors and geographies. NARCL's acquisition
processes is administered by its Financial Asset Acquisition Policy framed under the extant
guidelines for Asset Reconstruction Companies. NARCL's investment strategy focuses on

aggregating the stressed assets under one roof to ensure efficient resolution of such assets.

NARCL's offers have a notable feature where the SRs issued by NARCL Trust to SR holders (other
than NARCL) for acquiring stressed loan assets are backed by guarantee from the Government of
India. The Government Guarantee provides NARCL a unique strategic advantage, thereby
enabling easier aggregation, which is very important for value preservation and driving any

resolution process.

NARCL has an exclusive arrangement with India Debt Resolution Company Limited (IDRCL),
wherein IDRCL is providing end-to-end assistance to NARCL for the optimal resolution outcome
for acquired assets. This includes determination of appropriate resolution strategy as per the RBI

framework.
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ABOUT COMPANY’S BOARD

Shri Diwakar Gupta, Independent Director & Non Executive Chairman of the Board

Shri Diwakar Gupta is the Non-Executive Chairman of the Board and Independent Director on the
Board of NARCL. Shri Gupta is a career banker and served as MD & CFO at SBI and has global
exposure. He was Vice President for Private Public Partnerships at the Asian Development Bank
(2015-2020). He also has worked as an Independent Director for various marquee organizations
in India.

Smt Malvika Sinha, Independent Director

Smt Malvika Sinha is Independent Director on the Board of NARCL. She is a seasoned professional
and has more than 4 decades of experience at Reserve Bank of India. She was Executive Director
at Reserve Bank of India from April 2017 to Feb 2020 and oversaw Deposit Insurance and Credit
Guarantee Corporation, Foreign Exchange Department, Internal Debt Management Department
and Human Resources Management Department. She also held positions as the member of
Governing Council of Indian Institute of Banking and Finance and member of Governing Board of
Institute of Banking Personnel Selection.

Shri Richard Andrew Mendonca, Independent Director

Shri Richard Andrew Mendonca is an Independent Director on the Board of NARCL. He is also the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. He is a qualified Chartered Accountant and
Company Secretary having over three decades of experience at senior levels in various
professionally managed organizations like ) Walter Thompson, ESAB India Ltd., and Pennzoil India
Ltd. Besides having experience in the field of Accounting, Finance, Audit and Secretarial, he has
experience in various industries like Engineering, Lubricants, Welding, Ball bearings and
Advertising and Communication. He was a director and on the Audit Committee of SBI Mutual
Fund Trustee Co. Pvt. Ltd. for a period of eight years from April 2014 to April 2022.

Shri Vikram Duggal, Nominee Director (Canara Bank)

Shri Vikram Duggal is a Nominee Director on the Board of NARCL. He is working with Canara Bank
as a General Manager and presently heading Stressed Asset Management Wing at Head Office.
He has a vast and rich experience in the Banking industry, spanning more than three decades in
various verticals of Bank, including Corporate Credit, Infrastructure Credit, Stressed Asset
Management, Project Appraisal group, Syndication group, International Operations.

Mr Duggal has an extensive exposure in resolution of large corporate / infrastructure assets
including restructuring under the RBI framework and resolution under IBC 2016. Apart from
heading various Field and Admin units, Shri Duggal has also been Chief Executive of Foreign
Branch of Canara Bank. Mr Duggal is a Chartered Accountant (CA) and Certified Associate of
Indian Institute of Bankers and has participated in various meetings at IBA / IBBI on the matter

of IBC and Stressed Asset Management and resolution.
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Smt V N Maya, Nominee Director (Indian Bank)

Ms V N Maya is Chief General Manager, handling Recovery and Legal, at Indian Bank. She started
her career as Advocate in Madras High Court in 1990 and thereafter joined Indian Bank as Scale
| Legal Officer in the year 1995. She has the rich experience in legal field and was actively
associated in the amendments brought in SARFAESI Act during 2016 with Ministry of Finance,
Ministry of Law and other eminent bankers. She was a Member of Legal & Operations Committee
of IBA during 2018-2020. Presently, she is also a Nominee Director in M/s ASREC India Ltd.

Shri P Santhosh, MD & CEO

Shri P Santhosh is the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (MD & CEQO) on the Board
of NARCL. Shri P Santhosh was the Chief General Manager of Canara Bank with over three
decades of rich banking experience with expertise in corporate, infrastructure credit,
export/import credit and resolution of stressed assets. He has successfully headed the Stressed
Asset Management Vertical of Canara Bank in two stints and has an extensive exposure in
resolution of large corporate/infrastructure assets including restructuring under the RBI
framework and resolution under IBC. Shri Santhosh has completed M Sc (Ag) and a Certified
Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers. He has participated in various meetings / committees at
IBA / MCA / IBBI on the matters of IBC and Stressed Asset Management and Resolution. He was
head of Mumbai Circle of Canara Bank for 3 years which has maximum contribution to the
business of Bank and at the same time he has served as a Director and Chairman on the Board of
Canbank Financial Services Ltd.
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NOTICE FOR FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 04" Annual General Meeting of the Members of National Asset
Reconstruction Company Limited will be held on Thursday, 25" September, 2025 at 12:00 NOON
through Video Conferencing (‘VC’) /Other Audio/Visual Means (“OAVM”), in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA General Circular No. 09-2023,
02-2021, 20-2020, 17-2020 and 14-2020 dated 25" September 2023, 13th January 2021, 5th
May, 2020, 13th April, 2020 and 8th April, 2020 or any other circular as may be applicable,
respectively, to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

To receive, consider and adopt Standalone and Consolidated Audited statement of Balance Sheet
& Profit & Loss Account of the Company for the period starting from 15 April 2024 to 315t March
2025, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

“RESOLVED THAT the Standalone & Consolidated audited financial statements of the Company
consisting of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the statement of profit and loss, cash flow
statement and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date and the
explanatory notes annexed to, and forming part of, any of the said documents together with the
reports of the Board of Directors and of the Auditors thereon be and are hereby approved and
adopted, as submitted to this Meeting.”

To consider the appointment of Statutory Auditors and approve to fix their remuneration and in
this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to fix an
appropriate remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the Company, appointed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India for the financial year 2025-26.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

For National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
sd/-

Kapil Soni

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Membership No. A50424
Date: 29.08.2025
Place: Mumbai
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10.

NOTES:

The explanatory statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013, relating to special business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed as
Annexure A.

In view of the circulars issued by the MCA, no proxy shall be appointed by the members, Since
the AGM is being held through VC as such the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed
to this Notice. However, corporate members are required to send to the Company, a certified
copy of the Board Resolution or authorisation, pursuant to section 113 of the Companies Act
2013, authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Meeting through VC.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting
are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution or authorisation
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

Participation of Members through VC will be reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the AGM
as per section 103 of the Act.

In accordance with the aforementioned MCA Circulars, the Company will be using  Microsoft
Teams Video Communication facility for providing the Audio/Visual facility to the members for
participating in the Meeting. The login-id and password for joining the meeting has been
separately provided along with this Notice.

Email for queries: kapil.soni@narcl.co.in

Facility of joining the AGM through VC shall be opened 20 minutes before the time scheduled
for the AGM.

The Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2025-26 shall be appointed by CAG
and accordingly, the Board shall fix appropriate remuneration of the Statutory Auditors for the
Financial Year 2025-26.

No Director is seeking appointment in this Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to Sections 20, 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Incorporation) Rules, 2014, Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and Companies (Management &
Administration) Rules 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, the company can send
documents to its shareholders through electric transmission. Accordingly, the Company proposes
to give an option to its shareholders to receive documents like General Meeting Notices
(including AGM) Annual Report and other documents in electronic form on their email addresses
registered with the Company.
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If the shareholders desire to receive such communications/documents in electronic mode, please
register/update the email address by providing the requisite details like Shareholder’s’ name,
number of shares held and folio number. In case the Company does not receive any
communication from the shareholders giving their consent to receive e-copies from the
Company, the Company shall be forwarding hard copies.

11. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map, proxy form and attendance slip
are not attached to this notice.

12. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under
section 170 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Register of Contracts or Arrangements in
which directors are interested maintained under section 189 of the Act will be available
electronically for inspection by the members during the time of AGM.

13. Members may contact the Company for conveying any grievances or clarity, if any, relating to the
conduct of the AGM, at the registered office address or at the designated email address i.e.,
kapil.soni@narcl.co.in.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Sd/-

Kapil Soni

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No. A50424

Date: 29.08.2025

Place: Mumbai
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members
National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (NARCL) (“Company”),

The Directors hereby present their Fourth Annual Report on the business, operations and
state of affairs of the Company together with the audited financial statement for the year
ended March 31, 2025.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

The highlights of the financial performance of the Company are given below:

(Rs. in Cr)
Particulars Standalone Financials Consolidated Financials

FY 2024-25 | FY 2023-24 | FY 2024-25 | FY 2023-24
Revenue from Operations 603.78 238.86 348.95 238.86
Other Income 92.05 70.97 92.05 70.97
Total Income (a) 695.83 309.83 441.00 309.83
Finance cost 24.52 1.28 24.52 1.28
Fees & Commission expenses 40.33 18.00 40.33 18.00
Operating expenses 22.37 32.57 22.37 32.57
Depreciation 1.90 1.78 1.90 1.78
Impairment of Financial Assets 34.81 5.72 34.81 5.72
Unrealized fees & expenses written off 8.04 35.79 8.04 35.79
Total Expenses (b) 131.97 95.14 131.97 95.14
Profit Before Tax 563.86 214.69 309.02 214.69
Provision for Tax 139.59 52.51 139.59 52.51
Profit After Tax 424.27 162.18 169.43 162.18
Share in Profit /(loss) of Associates - - 254.84 (0.46)
Profit for the year 424.27 162.18 424.27 161.72
Other Comprehensive (Loss)/Income 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03
Total Comprehensive (Loss)/Income 424.30 162.21 424.30 161.76
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Key highlights of Standalone Financial Performance

> For the year ended March 31, 2025, the total revenues of your Company has increased
by 2.2 times from Rs 309.83 Cr in the previous year to Rs. 695.83 Cr in the current year.

> Revenue from operations has increased by 2.5 times from Rs 238.86 Cr in the previous
year to Rs 603.78 Cr in current year.

» Revenue from operations comprises of management fee aggregating to Rs 223.47 Cr in
the current year as compared to Rs 96.71 Cr in the previous year. It also comprises of
fair value gain on Security Receipts amounting to Rs 342.64 Cr in the current year as
compared to 103.86 cr in the previous year.

» Other Income includes Interest on Fixed Deposits during the year amounting to Rs. 87.19
Cr as compared to Rs 70.70Cr in the previous year.

» Total comprehensive income has increased by 2.6 times from Rs 162.21 Cr in the
previous year to Rs 424.30 Cr in the current year.

(Rs. In Cr.)

Standalone Financial Performance

800
695.86
700
603.78
600
500
424.29
400
309.82
300 238.86
200 162.21
100 87.39
14.06 - 28.24
O I
FY 23 FY 24 FY 25
W Revenue from Operations M Total Income Total comprehensive income

Key highlights of Consolidated Financial Performance

Consolidated financial results for the year ended March 31, 2025, represents the numbers
of the Company along with 1 Associate Company and 1 Trust which have been consolidated
from financial year 2023-24 in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards.

The total revenue stood at Rs 441.00 Cr, revenue from operations at Rs 348.95 Cr and the
total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the owners of the Company is Rs
424.30Cr.
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INFORMATION ON THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY:

In around 3 years of operation, your Company has established as a highly credible platform for
resolution of large ticket stressed assets in a transparent manner. Till 315t March 2025, lenders
have referred 172 accounts with aggregate debt exposure of Rs 5.06 Lakh Cr.

NARCL has made binding offers for acquisition of total 57 accounts with debt exposure of Rs. 2.89
lakh Cr. (including 2 accounts with debt exposure of Rs. 0.33 lakh Cr. for which NARCL submitted
consolidated resolution plan as a resolution applicant).

NARCL has acquired total 26 accounts with debt exposure of Rs. 1.56 lakh Cr. (including 2
accounts as a resolution applicant). Accounts acquired are at various stages of resolution

Further, 2 identified accounts with business potential of Rs. 0.017 lakh Cr. are at various stages
of evaluation.

Your Company’s contribution in market making of legacy large non-performing stressed assets
has been well recognised by the market participants.

Summary snapshot of business performance is as under:

(Rs. In Crs)
Particulars During FY 2024-25 Up t031.03.2025
Debt Managed 63,803 156,315
Acquisition 15,579 26,007
Recovery 1,676 1,982
Redemptions 1,585 1,835
Business Performance
160000 156315
140000
120000
100000 92512
80000
60000
40000
15579
20000
. 3665 ©763 3665
0 || ||
Debt Managed (Cumulative) Acquisition Cost AUM

mFY 23 FY 24 mFY 25
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BRIEF BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANY:

National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (NARCL) was incorporated as a Government
Company on July 07, 2021, under the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”). The Company was
registered with Reserve Bank of India w.e.f. October 04, 2021, to commence the business of
securitization or asset reconstruction under Section 3 of the Securitization and Reconstruction
of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (SARFAESI). The Company’s
principal activity is acquiring Non-Performing Assets (NPA) from the Banks and Financial
Institutions and resolving them through appropriate resolution strategies enunciated in
SARFAESI Act.

The approval of Government of India for issuance of Government Guarantees up to Rs.
30,600 Cr for the purpose of acquisition/resolution of stressed assets to the NARCL for

Security Receipts (SRs) has been granted on 315t March 2022. The Government Guarantee
will cover the shortfall between the face value of SRs issued by the trust to the selling lenders
for an individual asset and the net realization amount attributable to the selling lenders for
that asset.

DIVIDEND:

Your directors do not recommend any dividend with a view to conserve resources for future
growth.

SHARE CAPITAL:

As on 31°' March 2025, the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of your Company
stood at Rs. 2,750.00 Cr. comprising 275,00,00,000 (Two hundred Seventy-Five Crores Only)
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. The entire shareholding of the Company is in dematerialized
form.

UNSECURED, RATED, UNLISTED, REDEEMABLE NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (“NCDS”)
ON PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS

During the year, the Company has made Private Placement Issue of 20,000 Unsecured,
Rated, Unlisted, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) to its existing shareholders
in their existing holding proportion vide its offer (PAS 4) dated 28t January 2025 and allotted
20,000 NCDs at face value of Rs 10,00,000/- each aggregating to Rs. 2,000 Crores (out of
27,000 NCD aggregating Rs. 2,700 Crores) as per the terms of the Investment Agreement.
The payment of interest and/or redemption amount on the NCDs, has been timely paid by
the Company on their respective due dates.
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DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE

Debenture Redemption Reserve has been created to the extent applicable on Company in
terms of the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited is the Debenture Trustee for the Non-Convertible
Debentures issued by the Company.

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

During the year under review, MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Link Intime India
Private Limited), was the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company.

DETAILS OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme/ Plan.
BORROWINGS

The Company has sought approval from the Board followed by the Shareholders for raising
of funds via the Issuance of Unsecured, Rated, Unlisted, Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures (NCDs) aggregating to Rs. 2,700 Cr in one or more tranches on the terms and
conditions mentioned in the Investment Agreement dated 10" March 2022. The issue was
opened for subscription during the year for aggregate value of Rs. 2,000 Crore NCDs which
were duly allotted. The issue was subscribed by the shareholders in the sharing ratio as per
the terms of the Investment Agreement. The balance NCDs for Rs. 700 Crore will be raised
from Investors whenever required in future.

Additional borrowing limit up to Rs. 500 crores (fund and non-fund basis) was also approved
by the Board & shareholders. The Company has not made any borrowing during the year
towards the same.

CREDIT RATINGS

Corporate Ratings

On February 13, 2024, CRISIL Ratings has assigned its 'CRISIL AAA Stable' rating to the
proposed Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of National Asset Reconstruction Company
Limited (NARCL) which was reaffirmed by CRISIL dated January 31, 2025.

The rating assigned / reaffirmed to this instrument is highest in terms of ranking.

The rating is driven by the Company’s strategic importance to the Government of India; this

is reflected in the role NARCL plays in implementing the government’s initiative of revival
and resolution of the non-performing assets (NPAs) in the banking sector in India.
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Recovery Ratings of Security Receipts issued by Trusts

On the other hand, Credit agencies are regularly assessing the Recovery ratings of the assets
held in trusts as required by the RBI regulations. The rating of Security Receipts from the
rating agencies and the Net Asset Value of such Security Receipts has been communicated
to the Security Receipt holders as per RBI Guidelines in this regard.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN THE FUTURE

During the year, there have been no instances of significant and material orders passed by
the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s
operations in the future.

ACQUISITION OF NON-PERFORMING ASSETS

Your Company has acquired eight accounts during the year and is managing a total of twenty-six
accounts up to 315 March 2025.

(Rs. in Cr)
Particulars As on As on
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total Debt Managed 156,315 92,512
Acquisition Cost 26,007 10,428
NARCL Investment 4,141 1,804
Lenders Investment (Secured by GOI Guarantee) 20,039 6,823
Lenders Investment (Not Secured by GOI Guarantee) 1,827 1,800
Total Security Receipts (SRs) Issued 26,007 10,428
SRs Redeemed 1,835 250
Total outstanding SRs 24,171 10,177

Debt acquired as Resolution Applicant

In pursuance of Reserve Bank of India notification DoR.SIG.FIN.REC.75/26.03.001/2022-23 dated
11 October 2022, during FY2023, the Company applied for as a Resolution Applicant and was
subsequently declared as the Successful Resolution Applicant (SRA) under the Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited ("SIFL") and Srei
Equipment Finance Limited ("SEFL"). The resolution plan submitted by the company has been
approved by National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) on 11 August 2023. SRA appointed Boards
have taken over control of both the companies with effect from 26 February 2024.

SREI’'s admitted debt exposure under CIRP was approx. Rs.0.33 lakh Crores. The same was backed
by loan assets advanced by the two NBFC entities, Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited ("SIFL") and
Srei Equipment Finance Limited ("SEFL")

14 of 178




RESOLUTION AND RECOVERY ACTIVITIES

Resolution strategies for all the financial assets acquired have been finalized and have been
implemented & monitored through our exclusive agent India Debt Resolution Company Limited
(IDRCL). IDRCL was set up with a primary objective of providing debt management and debt
resolution services to NARCL. It is engaged in the business of debt management, operations
management of assets acquired by NARCL as Resolution Applicant, resolution advisory, support
and consultancy services in relation to debt resolution, insolvency resolution, liquidation process
and research and analysis on commercial basis.

We are pleased to inform that recoveries have commenced and are mostly expected in line with
estimates made at the time of acquisition. Total recovery during FY 2024-25 is Rs 1,676 Crores
with SR redemption of Rs. 1585 Crores.

NET WORTH, ASSET UNDER MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

(Rs.in Cr)
Particulars As on As on
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net worth 3,358 2,934
Asset under Management 24,171 10,177
Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 75% 143%

ECONOMIC SCENARIO, INDUSTRY OUTLOOK-CHALLENGES & OPPORTUNITIES

The National Statistical Office (NSO) vide its estimates of May 30, 2025, has shown real GDP
growth in Q4:2024-25 at 7.4 per cent as against 6.4 per cent in Q3. Real Gross Value Added (GVA)
rose by 6.8 per cent in Q4:2024-25. For 2024-25, real GDP growth was placed at 6.5 per cent,
while real GVA recorded a growth of 6.4 per cent.

Economic activity continues to maintain the momentum in 2025-26, supported by private
consumption and traction in fixed capital formation. Investment activity is expected to improve
in light of higher capacity utilization, improving balance sheets of financial and non-financial
corporates, and government’s capital expenditure push

Trade policy uncertainty continues to weigh on exports prospects, however the conclusion of
free trade agreement (FTA) with the United Kingdom and progress with other countries is
supportive of trade activity.

Agriculture prospects remain bright on the back of an above normal south- west monsoon
forecast and resilient allied activities.

Services sector is expected to maintain its momentum.
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However, Spill overs emanating from protracted geopolitical tensions, and global trade and
weather-related uncertainties pose downside risks to growth. (Source Monetary Policy -RBI June
2025)

After touching a decadal low in March 2024, the GNPAs of the banking sector continue to trend
down and are estimated at 2.4% as of March 2025.

The assets under management (AUM) of ARCs saw significant growth during a period of sharp
rise in GNPAs in the banking sector. Today, however, the asset quality of the financial sector is at
its healthiest.

Additionally, recent draft guidelines on securitisation of stressed assets, allowing lenders to pool
such assets and repackage them for different risk classes of investors, if implemented, may bring
more competition to ARCs, leading to further slowdown in new acquisitions in the near-to-
medium term. (Source CRISIL Report)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company being unlisted is not governed by Regulation 27 under SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 containing mandatory
provisions on Corporate Governance. However, its earnest endeavor has always been to
benchmark its Corporate Governance practices with the best in the world. Integrity,
transparency, accountability and compliance with laws which are the columns of good
governance are cemented in the Company’s robust business practices to ensure ethical and
responsible leadership both at the Board and at the Management level. Also, your company
is in compliance with the corporate governance framework applicable to Asset
Reconstruction Companies as mandated by RBI.

Good corporate governance practice is an integral part of your Company’s philosophy and is
committed to achieving and maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance by
separating the Board’s supervisory role from the Executive management and the constitution
of various committees at the Board and Internal level, to oversee critical areas and functions.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In terms of the Investment Agreement dated 10" March 2022 including amendments dated
05t July 2024 and as per Article of Association of the Company, the Board of NARCL will
consist of Six (6) directors. The constitution of the Board of the company is as follows: (3)
Independent Directors, (1) permanent Nominee Director from Canara Bank (Sponsor Bank),
(1) Nominee Director from the other 14 Shareholder Banks, on a rotation basis, for a 1-year
term each, (1) MD & CEO.

The composition of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel is in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Act.

Brief profiles of the Directors are available on the website of the Company.
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APPOINTMENT/RESIGNATION/CHANGE IN BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL AS ON 31° MARCH 2025 ARE AS FOLLOWS:

During the year, *Shri Ajit Krishnan Nair who was appointed as a Nominee Director from
Canara Bank of the Company w.e.f.07%" July 2021, resigned from the Board of NARCL w.e.f.
30t November 2024, due to his retirement from the Bank. Smt V N Maya has been appointed
as a Nominee Director of the Company from Indian Bank w.e.f. 27" December 2024, Shri
Vikram Duggal has been appointed as a Nominee Director of the Company from Canara Bank
w.e.f. 27" January 2025 as approved by RBI.

Further to this, Shri P Santhosh who was appointed as Interim MD & CEO on deputation from
Canara Bank w.e.f. 16™ January 2024 was further appointed as full-time MD & CEO of NARCL
w.e.f 015t July 2024 as approved by RBI.

No Directors are liable to retire by rotation during the year.

*The Board places on record its appreciation for Shri Ajit Krishnan Nair for his valuable contribution
and guidance provided to the Company during his tenure.

The Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs’) of the Company as on the date of this report, as per
Section 2(51) and Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, are as follows:

Sr. Name Designation Date of appointment Date of

No resignation
1 Shri P Santhosh MD & CEO 01-07-2024 -

2 Shri Arindam Biswas Chief Financial Officer 14-09-2022 -

3 Shri Kapil Soni Company Secretary 17-08-2022 -

APPOINTMENT DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION 149(7) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Pursuant to Section 149(4) of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Central Government has prescribed that your
Company shall have a minimum of two Independent Directors. Also considering the
applicability as per RBI master Directives for Asset Reconstruction Company.

In view of the above provisions, your Company has three Independent Directors as on 315t
March 2025

The Company has received the declaration of independence from each Independent Director
under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) stating that they meet criteria of
independence as laid down in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act. Further all the
existing Independent Directors are registered on the Independent Directors Database
maintained by the Institute of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Rule 6 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. In the opinion of the Board, the
Independent Directors possess the requisite expertise and experience and are persons of
high integrity and repute. They fulfil the conditions specified in the Act as well as the Rules
made thereunder and are independent off;\gfr{],%nagement




FIT AND PROPER DECLARATION GIVEN BY DIRECTORS

In accordance with the RBI circular dated 11t October 2022, for ARCs as amended from time to
time, the Company has obtained annual fit & proper declarations from the directors, CEO and
the sponsor.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board of Directors (hereinafter called “the Board”) met Twelve (12) times during the
financial year. The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days. All
the Board meetings were held in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
All the applicable Rules and Secretarial Standards for conducting the Meeting of the Board
of Directors were complied with.

Date of Meetings: 12-04-2024, 15-05-2024, 24-06-2024, 29-06-2024, 31-07-2024, 12-08-
2024, 09-09-2024, 23-10-2024, 25-10-2024, 25-11-2024, 07-01-2024 and 12-02-2025

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

(A) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

In accordance with Section 178 of the Act, your Company has a “Nomination and
Remuneration Committee” (NRC). The composition of NRC is of Three (3) members as on
315t March 2025.

The Composition of the Committee as on date is as follows:

Sr. No.| Name of Directors Designation

1. Smt Malvika Sinha Independent Director, Chairperson
2. Shri Richard Andrew Mendonca | Independent Director, Member

3. Shri Vikram Duggal Nominee Director, Member

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met three (3) times during the year. Dates
of Meetings are 12-04-2024, 15-05-2024, 18-07-2024.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated Nomination &
Remuneration policy as per sub-section (3) of Section 178. The gist of the policy is provided in
Annexure | to this Report. The term of reference is as per the Act. The policy is made available on
the Company’s website and can be accessed at the mentioned web address: https:--
www.narcl.co.in-policies-.
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(B) Audit Committee:

In accordance with Section 177 of the Act, your company has an “Audit Committee”
comprising of three Directors, of which Two (2) Non-executive independent directors and one
(1) nominee director as on 315t March 2025. The Audit Committee acts in accordance with
the Terms of Reference specified by the Board as well as the regulatory requirements of
Section 1770of the Act.

Its purpose is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities of monitoring
financial reporting processes, reviewing the Company’s established systems and processes
for internal financial controls, governance and reviewing the Company’s statutory and
internal audit activities and all other responsibilities and duties prescribed in law and by RBI.

The Composition of the Committee as on date is as follows:

Sr. No.| Name of Directors Designation

1. Shri Richard Andrew Mendonca | Independent Director, Chairperson
2. Smt Malvika Sinha Independent Director, Member

3. ShriV N Maya Nominee Director, Member

The Audit Committee met five (5) times during the year. Dates of the Meeting are 21-06-
2024, 09-08-2024, 23-10-2024, 25-11-2024 and 12-02-2025.

All the recommendations of the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board during the year
under review.

(C) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors of the Company has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSRC).
The Composition of the Committee as on date is as follows:

Sr. No.| Name of Directors Designation

1. Smt Malvika Sinha Independent Director, Chairperson
2. Shri Richard Andrew Mendonca | Independent Director, Member

3. Shri P Santhosh MD & CEO, Member

The Meeting of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was held on 22.01.2025 during the
financial year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has duly followed the applicable Secretarial standards, relating to Meeting of
the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meeting (SS-2), issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (ICSl).

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

In compliance with Section 135 of the Act, read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility
have been applicable to the Company since its incorporation. NARCL has constituted a
Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) Committee and statutory disclosures with respect to
the CSR Committee and an Annual Report on CSR Activities forms part of this Report as
Annexure Il.

As part of its initiatives under Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), NARCL's total CSR liability
amounted to Rs. 1,63,87,395/- (Rupees one corer sixty-three lacs eighty-seven thousand three
hundred and ninety-five only) for the FY 2024-25 which has been spent during the financial year.

The said contribution was in accordance with the Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 and
any other provisions of the Act.

The Board has approved and framed the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. The
complete policy is made available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at the
mentioned web address: https: --www.narcl.co.in-policies-.

HUMAN CAPITAL

Our employees are our most valuable resources. As an organization, NARCL is fully equipped with
subject matter experts hired from the market and works on constructing the competencies with
the latest knowledge being imparted through various professional forums.

The robust framework on risk, compliance, and audits is well-established to ensure there is no
loopholes in the system. All employees of NARCL are being trained to maintain the highest ethical
standards. NARCL believes in open and transparent culture that helps employees to understand
each other and maintain a healthy professional relationship. NARCL organized an off-site and
every employee was trained on the concept and significance of ACE (Align, Connect and
Execution). The employee strength as on 315 March 2025 was 15 employees.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars required as per Section 134 of the Act, read with rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board) are as follows:
A.Conservation of Energy

The Company is in the service sector; hence this part of the Disclosure is not applicable.
B. Technology Absorption

The Company is in the service sector; hence this part of the Disclosure is not applicable.
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

There have been no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year.
MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE COMPANY AND CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS.

There have been no material changes and commitments that affected the financial position of
your Company, which occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial
statements relate and up to the date of this Report.

Present composition of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnels (KMPs) are as follows

Sr. Name of Director Designation Date of appointment
No.
1. Shri Diwakar Gupta Independent Director & Non- | 28-11-2023
Executive Chairman of the Board
Smt Malvika Sinha Independent Director 19-05-2022
Shri Richard Andrew | Independent Director 19-07-2022
Mendonca
. Shri Vikram Duggal Nominee Director- (Canara Bank) 27-01-2025
5 Smt V N Maya Nominee Director- (Indian Bank) 27-12-2024
Shri P Santhosh MD & CEO 01-07-2024
Sr. Name of KMPs Designation Date of appointment
No.
Shri P Santhosh MD & CEO 01-07-2024
Shri Arindam Biswas Chief Financial Officer 14-09-2022
Shri Kapil Soni Company Secretary & Compliance | 17-08-2022
Officer
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ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act,2013
read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual
Return for the year ending on 31st March 2025, is available on the website of the Company
at www.narcl.co.in.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
In accordance with the provisions of Section 129 read with Section 2 (6) and 2 (87) of the Act,
your Company does not have any Subsidiary/Joint Ventures Company

However, your Company has acquired equity shares of SREI Infrastructure Finance Limited
(SIFL) under resolution plan approved by the Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated August 11, 2023,
and holds 46% of total Equity share capital of SIFL. In pursuant to the said investment SIFL
has become Associate company of NARCL during the period under review. Your Company as
Resolution Applicant along with India Debt Resolution Company Limited are in the process
of implementing the above resolution plan.

The Consolidated Financial Performance of your company along with SIFL, as an associate
company, has been mentioned at point No. 1 “Financial Performance”.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under “equity method” of
consolidation, whereby NARCL records its share of SIFL losses in its financial statements.

A statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of the Subsidiaries,
Joint Ventures and Associates of the Company in Form AOC-1, as required under the
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and any other provision of the Act, as amended, is placed
along with the financial statements.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule
2015, your Company has implemented Indian Accounting Standards for preparation of its
Financial Statement and the following Securitization Trusts (floated by your Company) have
been considered as ‘associate’ for consolidation of Financial Statements:

Sr. No. Name
1 NARCL Trust - 0007

DEPOSITS
Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73(1) of theAct,
and the Rules made thereunder.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has a well-defined Internal Control System, commensurate with the size,
nature, scale, and complexity of its operations.
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The Audit Committee comprising of professionally qualified Directors interacts with the
auditor, internal auditors, and the management in dealing with matters within its terms of
reference.

The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls. It provides reasonable
assurance in respect of financial and operational information, compliance with applicable
statues, safeguarding of assets of the Company, prevention and detection of frauds,
accuracy, and completeness of accounting records and ensuring compliance with the
Company’s policies.

The Internal Auditor has been appointed by the Audit Committee of the Board. The Audit
Committee defines the scope and authority of the Internal Auditor in order to maintain
objectivity and independence. The Internal Auditor M/s Aneja Associates perform an
independent check of effectiveness of key controls in identified areas of internal financial control
reporting. The Statutory Auditors’ Report includes a report on the internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

AUDITORS
Statutory Auditors:

Your Company falls within the purview of the provisions of Section 139(5) of the Companies Act
2013, in the case of a Government Company or any other Company-owned or controlled,
directly or indirectly, by the Central Government, or by any State Government or Governments,
or partly by the Central Government and partly by one or more State Governments, the
Comptroller and Auditor-General of India (CAG) shall, in respect of a financial year, appoint an
auditor duly qualified to be appointed as an auditor of Companies under the Companies Act,
2013, within a period of one hundred and eighty days from the commencement of the financial
year, who shall continue pursuant to shareholders approval. Accordingly, M/s. Lodha & Co LLP,
(FRN: 301051E/E300284), Chartered Accountants, Mumbai were appointed as Company’s
Statutory Auditors by the office of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) for the

period starting from 015 April 2024 to 315t March 2025 vide their letter dated 215t September
2024, who have completed their independent audit of the Company’s accounts and that they
meet with the criteria prescribed under section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The members of the Company at the 03™ Annual General Meeting (AGM) had appointed M/s
Lodha & Co LLP, (FRN: 301051E/E300284) as Statutory Auditor of the Company, to hold office till
the conclusion of the 4" AGM of the Company.

NARCL has not yet received a recommendation for the appointment of the statutory auditor for
FY 2025-26 from CAG.

23 of 178




Auditor comments on Standalone and Consolidated financials of the Company

The Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended on 31t March 2025 issued by M/s Lodha & Co
LLP, (FRN: 301051E/E300284), does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark
on the Standalone financial statement. Statutory Auditors of the Company highlighted that there
is the ‘qualification’ in the audit report of consolidated accounts of Company basis qualification
in the consolidated audit report of its associate company , Srei Infrastructure Finance
Limited(SIFL) . The qualification is with respect to non-inclusion of some step-down subsidiaries
of associate company ( SIFL) . NARCL has accounted for its share of loss in accordance with the
“Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” to the
extent of carrying value of investment, therefore there is no downside risk due to this
gualification. Standalone & consolidated financial statement provides a true and fair view of the
Company.

Reporting of frauds by auditors

During the year, no instances of fraud committed in the Company by its officers or employees
were reported by the Statutory Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 to
the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors of the Company.

Review of accounts by Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG)

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India, through letter dated 14™ August, 2025 has given a
supplementary audit report on the standalone as well as consolidated Financial Statements of
your Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, after conducting audit under Section 143 (6)
(a) of the Companies Act, 2013.

On the basis of supplementary audit for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 no significant
matter has been observed which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to
statutory auditor’s report under section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

Secretarial Auditor

Your Company has appointed M/s Dilip Bharadiya & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary
as a Secretarial Auditor of the Company, according to the provision of section 204 of the
Companies, Act 2013 for conducting Secretarial Audit of Company for the financial year 2024-
25. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remarks and hence it does not require any further explanation. The Company has complied with
applicable Secretarial Standards of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

M/s Dilip Bharadiya & Associates have issued the Form MR-3 which is attached in “Annexure
m”.
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Internal Auditors:

As per the provision of section 138 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 13 Of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, every unlisted public company having paid up share capital
of fifty crore rupees or more during the preceding financial year is required to appoint an
Internal Auditor to conduct an internal audit of the company. Further, clause 32 of RBI
master circular states that “Internal audit: ARCs shall put in place an effective internal control
system providing for periodical checks and review of the asset acquisition procedures and
asset reconstruction measures followed by them and matters related thereto”. Accordingly,
the Company has appointed M/s Aneja Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
100404W) as an Internal Auditor. The said firm has been reappointed as Internal Auditor of the
Company during the year.

The Company has engaged M/s Aneja Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
100404W) as Independent Internal Auditors to periodically review various aspects of the financial
systems, implementation of policies and other statutory compliances including RBI directives.
The Internal Auditors attend Audit Committee meetings regularly and present their reports on a
guarterly basis to the Audit Committee for review.

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY

During the year, your Company has not given any loan to any person or other body
corporate. During FY 2024-25. The Company has made an investment in the Equity capital
of SREI Infrastructure Finance Limited (SIFL) of Rs. 46,00,000 (Rs. Forty Six lakh only)
aggregating to 46% of SIFL paid up capital. The Company has not provided security in
connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person and acquired by way of
subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate under
Section 186 of the Act.

CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES

There were no contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1)
of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management is an integral part of the Company’s business plan to achieve the long-term
objectives. The Company has well defined Board approved Acquisition, Resolution, Risk
Management and various other policies which ensure compliance to Securitization and
Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act 2002 and Reserve
Bank Guidelines/Circulars.
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The Risk & Compliance Committee (erstwhile Risk Management Committee) of the Executives
is entrusted with the responsibility of reviewing the Risk Management operations in the
Company.

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Company conducts its business in a fair, transparent and ethical manner within the
existing rules and regulations prescribed for ARCs. The Board of the Company has adopted/
reviewed all the policies in accordance with the SARFAESI Act, 2002 and the RBI guidelines.

ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE AND THAT OF ITS
COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The Annual evaluation was carried out to evaluate the performance of the Board, Chairman,
and individual Directors. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board has carried out an
annual performance evaluation of its own performance, and that of its committees and
individual Directors. The Board, through its Independent Directors meeting, NRC meeting
and Board Meeting has reviewed the performance of the Directors. The Evaluation inter-alia
provides the criteria for performance evaluation such as Board effectiveness, quality of
discussion contribution at the meetings, business insight, strategic thinking, effectiveness of
the Board’s Committees, etc. Further, your Company follows the framework of ‘Fit and
proper’ criteria for the Directors on the Board as laid down by RBI.

ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM, CODE OF CONDUCT & WHISTLEBLOWER

The Company has adopted the Vigil Mechanism Policy pursuant to which whistle blowers can
raise their concerns relating to fraud, unethical business conduct, abuse of authority, malpractice
or any other activity or event which is against the interests of the Company or society. The policy
provides for safeguarding the whistle blower against victimization.

The functioning of the Vigil Mechanism is overseen by the Audit Committee.
During the year no case was reported under the Vigil Mechanism of the Company.

Your Company has a Code of Professional Conduct as a part of HR policy and Whistleblower is a
part of Vigil mechanism Policy and quarterly reports about complaints, if any, received
thereunder to be submitted to the Audit Committee. Till now no direct complaints have been
received during the financial year under review. No whistleblower was denied access to the
Competent Authority nor denied protection as envisaged under the Policy. The Policy is made
available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at the mentioned web address: https: -
-www.narcl.co.in-policies-.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The total number of full-time employees as of 315t March 2025 was 15. The remuneration
provided to Key Managerial Persons is in compliance with the limits prescribed under the
provisions of Section 197 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) of The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company is committed to provide a work environment that ensures every employee is
treated with dignity and respect and afforded equitable treatment. Your Company has
always endeavoured in providing a safe and harassment free workplace environment that is
free from unfairness, discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment for every
employee through various interventions and practices.

The Company has proper Committee for prevention of sexual harassment at workplace and
also adopted the policy on prevention of sexual harassment of women at the workplace
during the year under review.

The Policy is made available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at the mentioned
web address: https: --www.narcl.co.in-policies-.

There were no cases reported during the year ended on 31 March 2025. To build
awareness, compulsory training programs have been conducted during the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, including all
applicable amendments and rules framed thereunder. The Company is committed to ensuring a
safe, inclusive, and supportive workplace for women employees. All eligible women employees
are provided with maternity benefits as prescribed under the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961,
including paid maternity leave, nursing breaks, and protection from dismissal during maternity
leave.

The Company also ensures that no discrimination is made in recruitment or service
conditions on the grounds of maternity. Necessary internal systems and HR policies are in
place to uphold the spirit and letter of the legislation.
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GENDER-WISE COMPOSITION OF EMPLOYEES

In alignment with the principles of diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI), the Company discloses
below the gender composition of its workforce as on the March 31, 2025.

Male Employees: 11
Female Employees: 04
Transgender Employees: NIL

This disclosure reinforces the Company’s efforts to promote an inclusive workplace culture
and equal opportunity for all individuals, regardless of gender.

DOWNSTREAM INVESTMENT

The Company neither have any Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) nor invested as any Downstream
Investment in any other Company in India.

THE DETAILS OF AN APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS
OF THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR.

The Company has not made any application or nor any proceedings against the Company is
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016.

DETAILS OF THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME
OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING A LOAN FROM THE
BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

During the financial year, the Company has not entered into any One-Time Settlement (OTS)
with Banks or Financial Institutions. Accordingly, the requirement to disclose the difference
between the valuation at the time of OTS and the valuation at the time of availing loan is not
applicable to the Company.

OTHER DISCLOSURES:

The Company is in compliance with applicable secretarial standards issued by thelnstitute of
Company Secretaries of India.

The Provisions of maintenance of cost records and Cost Audit as specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

Your Company did not transfer any sum to the General Reserve for the financial year under

review.
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VIGILANCE CASES

Opening balance as Vigilance cases Disposed off Balance as on

on 01.04.2024 received during the 31.03.2025
year

NIL NIL NIL NIL

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and to the best of
knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained/received

from the operating management, your Directors make the following statement in terms of
Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and confirm that:

(a)

(b)

in the preparation of the annual accounts/financial statements standalone as well as

consolidated for the year ended on 315t March 2025, the applicable accountingstandards
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

that such accounting policies as mentioned in Note 2 of the Standalone and consolidated
Balance Sheet and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company forthe year ended on 315t March 2025 and of the profit and loss of the company
for that year.

that proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting recordsin
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

that the annual accounts are on a going concern basis; and

that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were
adequate and were operating effectively.

the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisionsof all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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O NARCL

Annexure |

GIST OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Policy is designed to attract, motivate, and retain the best human talent in a
competitive market. The Policy reflects the Company's objectives for good corporate
governance as well as sustained long-term value creation for shareholders. The Policy
applies to the Company's Board of Directorsand members of Senior Management
including Key Managerial Personnel.

National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “NARCL” or
“Company”) has been incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013 as a Government
Company (limited by shares) on 7th July 2021.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy (“Policy”) is formulated in compliance with
Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read along with the applicable rules, as
amended from time to time.

OBJECTIVE:

The objective of this Policy is to inter alia lay down matters relating to the terms of
appointment of directors (and related matters) and to set out certain guiding principles
for matters relating to remuneration for directors, key managerial personnel (“KMP”),
senior management and other employees in pursuance of the statutory obligation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Board of Directors (“Board”)
under the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

The Board has the power to constitute/reconstitute the NRC from time to time in order
to make it consistent with Company’s policies and applicable statutory requirements. As
per the Act, NRC shall consist of three or more non-executive directors out of which not
less than one-half shall be independent directors.

TERMS OF REFERENCE/ROLE OF NRC:
e Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in

senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down.

e Recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

31 of 178




e Specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees
and individual directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the NRC or by an
independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance.

e Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director.

e Recommend to the Board this Policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors,
key managerial personnel, and other employees.

e Carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or
enforced by any statutory notification, amendment, or modification, as may be
applicable.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE POLICY:

The Board approved Policy shall be reviewed and amended as and when required or at least
annually for incorporating regulatory updates and changes, if any.
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Annexure |l
DISCLOSURES ON ACTIVITIES PURSUANT TO CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
POLICY (CSR)

[Pursuant to clause (0) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

Annual Report on CSR activities for the financial year

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
Objectives of the Policy

The key objective of the corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) policy (“Policy”) is to establish the
basic principles and the general framework of action for NARCL's management to undertake and
fulfil NARCL’s CSR obligations. In furtherance of this objective, the Company may undertake CSR
activities, which are broadly related to the following:

Rural development projects, promoting education, eradicating hunger, malnutrition and poverty,
promoting gender equality, empowering women, promoting health care and sanitation, ensuring
environmental sustainability, promoting employment, enhancing vocational skills, protecting
natural heritage and culture, disaster management including relief, rehabilitation and
reconstruction activities and such other matters which fall under Schedule VIl of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Companies Act”).

Contribution to the prime minister’s national relief fund or any other fund set up by central
government for socio economic development and welfare of schedule caste and schedule tribes
and other backward classes, minorities and women.

In addition to the activities listed above, any other activities specified in Schedule VIl of the
Companies Act or otherwise specifically permitted by the government as eligible CSR activities
under the applicable law from time to time.

It is clarified that; all the aforesaid activities or programs shall be undertaken in India only and
also that such programs and activities shall not be designed to benefit only the employees of the
Company and their family.

. Composition of CSR Committee as on date:

Sr. No. Name of Director Designation

1. Smt Malvika Sinha Independent Director, Chairperson
2. Shri Richard Andrew Mendonca | Independent Director

3. Shri P Santhosh MD & CEO

. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and details are
disclosed on the website of the company: https:--www.narcl.co.in-policies-.

. Provide the executive summary along withaxglgh—;gwk(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects




carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable:)- The summary on Impact
Assessment of CSR Projects is not required as the quantum of CSR spent for the year was
less than Rs. 10 Crores.

. a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: The average net
profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 132 was Rs. 81,93,69,753.

b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section
135:Rs. 1,63,87,395

c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programs or activities of the previous financial
years: Nil.

d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any. Nil

e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year ((b)+(c)-(d)): Rs. 1,63,87,395

. a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):
Rs. 1,63,87,395.
b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable for the financial
year under review.

d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year ((a)+(b)+(c)): Rs. 1,63,87,395
e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: Rs. 1,63,87,395

f) Excess amount for set-off, if any: Nil

. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through CSR amount spent
in thefinancial year: Nil.

. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Not Applicable.

Sd/- Sd/-

P Santhosh, Malvika Sinha,

MD & CEO, Independent Director,

Member CSR Committee  Chairperson CSR Committee
Din: 08515964 Din: 08373142
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Annexure Il
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

NATIONAL ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
Birla Centurion 8t Floor, Unit No.1,

B Wing, Pandurang Budhkar Marg,

Worli, Mumbai 400030

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by National Asset Reconstruction Company
Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts- statutory compliances and

expressing our opinion thereon.

Further, we have verified books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report
that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended
on March 31, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns and other records
maintained by the Company as given in Annexure - A, for the Year under review, according to
the applicable provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder and the Companies Act,

1956 (to the extent applicable),
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(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder; to the
extent applicable;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings, to the extent applicable;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) to the extent applicable:-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 - NA
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Shares Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 2013 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with clients
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 - NA
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Stockbrokers) Regulations, 1992 and NA
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992-
NA
We further report that, based on the compliance mechanism established by the Company which
has been verified on test-check basis, we are of the opinion that the Company has generally
complied with the following laws applicable to the Company:
a. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and its circulars, Master Directions, notifications pertaining to
Asset Reconstruction or Securitization Companies
b. The Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest
Act, 2002.
c. The Securitization Companies and Reconstruction Companies (Reserve Bank) Guidelines and
Directions, 2003.

d. The Security Interest (Enforcement) Rules, 2002
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. During the financial Year under review
the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

The Company is a Union Government Company as per Ministry of Corporate Affairs records, thus
many provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 have been exempted fully or on partial basis to the
Company. The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with a proper balance of
Nominee Directors appointed from the respective Banks, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel that took place during the year under review were carried out in

compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (or shorter notice as per consent) and
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda

items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All resolutions/decisions including Circular Resolutions of the Board of Directors are approved by
the requisite majority and are duly recorded in the respective minutes. The majority decision is
carried through, while the dissenting views of the Directors/ Members, if any, are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,

regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Year under review:

i. The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 29th June 2024 noted the approval received from

RBI regarding appointment of Mr. P. Santhosh [Interim Managing Director and CEO] as the
permanent Managing Director and CEO of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from
1st July 2024; which was approved by the Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on
19th December 2024
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The Board of Directors revised the Auditor’s Report as per the recommendation of Comptroller
Auditor General (CAG) and approved the Revised Auditors’ Report in their meeting held on 25th
September 2024.

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 25th September 2024, made an application for
extension of Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2024. The said
approval was granted, the company held its Annual General for the Financial year 31st March

2024 on 19th December 2024

. The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 12th April 2024 and 25th November 2024,

approved the amendments in the Investment agreement and the Articles of Association in
confirmation with provisions of circular of RBI dated October 11, 2022 on Review of Regulatory
Framework for Asset Reconstruction Companies (ARCs) with respect to composition of Board
Structure and change in the coupon rate for issuances of NCDs, which was approved by the

Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 19th December 2024.

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 12t February 2025 approved allotment of 20,000
(Twenty Thousand only) unsecured, rated, unlisted, redeemable 8.92% Non-Convertible
Debentures (herein after referred as NCDs) of face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten lakhs

only) each at par aggregating Rs. 2000 crore on Private Placement Basis.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed as Annexure - B to this

report.
For DILIP BHARADIYA & ASSOCIATES
sd/-

Date: 29.08.2025 SHIVANGINI GOHEL

Place: Mumbai M No. ACS No.: 25740, C P No.: 9205

Peer Review Number: 5825/2024
UDIN: A025740G001116291
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Annexure - A

List of documents verified (physically-electronically):

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

Annual Report for the Financial Period ended March 31, 2023.

Minutes and Attendance Registers of the meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees
held during the Year under review.

Minutes of General Body Meetings held during the Year under review.

Statutory Registers viz.

- Register of Members.

- Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding.

Agenda papers submitted to all the Directors - Members for the Board and Committee
Meetings.

Declarations received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 184(1), 164(2), 149(3) and 149(7) of the Act.

E-Forms filed by the Company, from time-to-time, under applicable provisions of the Act,

alongwith the attachments thereof, during the Year under review.
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3)

4)

5)

6)

Annexure - B
To,
The Members,
NATIONAL ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
Birla Centurion 8t Floor, Unit No.1,
B Wing, Pandurang Budhkar Marg,
Worli, Mumbai 400030

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter,

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices followed by us provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.
For DILIP BHARADIYA & ASSOCIATES
sd/-

Date: 29.08.2025 SHIVANGINI GOHEL

Place: Mumbai M No. ACS No.: 25740, CP No.: 9205

Peer Review Number: 5825/2024
UDIN: A025740G001116291
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O NARCL

Form AOC-1

Annexure IV

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

SI. No. Particulars Details
1. Name of the subsidiary -
5 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from i
the holding company’s reporting period
3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the |
relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries
4, Share capital -
5. Reserves & surplus -
6. Total assets -
7. Total Liabilities -
8. Investments -
9. Turnover -
10. Profit before taxation -
11. Provision for taxation -
12. Profit after taxation -
13. Proposed Dividend -
14. % of shareholding -

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - NA

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. - NA
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate

Companies and Joint Ventures

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Name of associates/Joint Ventures

SREI Infrastructure Finance
Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

315t March 2025

2.Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was

NARCL

associated or acquired

19" December 2023

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the

company on the year end

No. 4.60
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 46.00
Extend of Holding% 46%

3. Description of how there is significant influence

Control of more than 20% of
total paid up share capital

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not

consolidated

Associate Company SIFL has
been consolidated

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per

latest audited Balance Sheet

(11,01,242)

6. Profit/Loss for the year

i Considered in Consolidation -

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

(19,212)

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. N.A

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

N.A

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
P Santhosh Diwakar Gupta
MD & CEO Non Executive Chairman &

Independent Director

Din: 08515964

42 of 178

Din: 01274552




Annexure V
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts-arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis. Nil

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

(f) date(s) of approval by the Board

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts /arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

P Santhosh Diwakar Gupta

MD & CEO Non Executive Chairman &
Independent Director

Din: 08515964 Din: 01274552
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NATIONAL ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The preparation of financial statements of National Asset Reconstruction Company
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the
management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance
with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to
have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 13 June 2025,

l. on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of National Asset Reconstruction Company
Limited for the vear ended 31 March 2025 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers
of the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to inquires of the statutory auditor and company

personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which
would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report under section
143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

N '-ml\n-.--‘h
(Vijay Nanalal Kothari)
Principal Director of Audit (Shipping), Mumbai
Place: Mumbai
Date: 14.08.2025
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) READ WITH SECTION 129 (4) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NATIONAL
ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2025

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of National Asset Reconstruction
Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the
management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under section 139 (5) read with section 129 (4) of the Act is responsible for
expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 read with section 129 (4) of
the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit
Report dated 13 June 2025,

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the consolidated financial statements of National Asset Reconstruction
Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 under section 143(6)(a) read with section
129(4) of the Act. We conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statements of National
Asset Reconstruction Company Limited, but did not conduct supplementary audit of the
financial statements of SREI Infrastructure Finance Limited and NARCL Trust — 0007
(Associates) for the year ended on that date. This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditor and is limited
primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge
which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditor’s report under
section 143 (6) (b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

“\H\W

(Vijay Nanalal Kothari)
Principal Director of Audit (Shipping). Mumbai

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14.08.2025
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Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of
National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Mational Asset Reconstruction
Company Limited (“the Company”), which comprises of Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025,
Lthe Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Staternent of Cash Flow for the yearthen ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies information and
other explanatory information,

In our opinicn and to the best of our infarmation and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the infarmation required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act) in the manner o required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amaended, {"Ind A5") and other accounting principlas generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2025, its profit (including other comprehensive income),
changes In equity and its cash flows for the year ended an that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10} of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of aur report, We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Fthics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAIl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The Other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to the Board
reportand Management Discussion and Analysis but does not include the standalone financial statement
and our auditor's report thereon,

Dur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. -
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In connection with aur audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, cansider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalane financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board Report including annexures to the Board Report, If we conclude that thereis a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Actwith
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
finan{:jalpusitinn,flnancialperrormancetinctudingmhercnmprehensiueincomej,changesin equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting princ ples generally accepted in india,
including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,

This respansibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and tor preventing and detecting
frauds and other iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going cancern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concarn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about wnether the standalone financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar, and 1o issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantae that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exlsts,

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
agpregate, they could reascnably be expected toinfluence the economic decisions of users taken an the
basis of these standalone financial statements,

As part of an audit in accardance with Shs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procaduras responsive 1o those risks,
and obtain audit evidence thatis sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
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from errar, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional amissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has an adequate internal
financial control system with reference to financial statement in place and the operating
effectiveness of such contrals.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial stalements or, il such
disclosures are inadequate, to maodify our opinion. Our conclusions are Dased on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and cther
matters that may reasenably be thought 1o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter:

The standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024 were audited by predecessor
auditor whose report dated June 24, 2024 expressed an unmodified opinion on those standalonefinancial
statements.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statement and our report on the other legal and regulatory
requirements below is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Pursuant to the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give inthe Annexure "A”
a statemeant on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and cbtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. Ay ‘“*u%
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{b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears fram our examination of those books and records.

{c) The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in

agregment with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Bules, 2015, as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31,
2025 from being appainted as a Director in terms of Saction 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness aof such contrals, refer o
our separate report in Annexure "B".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according To the explanations given 1o us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its director during the year Is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 187 of the Act,

(h}) With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditar's report in accordance with the Rule 11
af the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of gur
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impactits financial position.
[Refer note no 48.1 to standalone financial slatements]

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. Therewere no amounts which were reguired to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company. :

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds

[which are material either individually ar In the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned

or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any cther sources or kind of

funds) by the Company to or in any other persan or entity, including foreign entity

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that

the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.
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b} The management has represented, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds
{which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or enlity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and apprapriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representation under sub clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(g) of The Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as provided under (a) and (b) above, contains any material
misstatement. (Refer note no. 47.9 to the standalone financial statement)

v, The Company has not declared / paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software far maintaining its account books for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recarded in the software, Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with. The Company
s in compliance with the preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention as per the Act.

With regards to the directions issued by Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section
143(5) of the Act, vide their letter GA/CA-1/Directions & Sub-Directions / 2024-25/31, dated April
18, 2025 and their email communication dated June 02, 2025 to the Company, refer to our
separate report in "Annexure "C".

For Lodha & Co. LLP

P Chartered Accountants
o "‘i;_ k. Firm registration No. - 301051E / E300284
;-\f{munmmm; 4 |
cl dap )
O J.‘?'X .)PJQ
%@dmﬂy ’\“
R. P. Baradiya
Place: Mumbal Partner
Date: June 13, 2025 Membership No. 044101

UDIN: 25044101BMIXDES204
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Annexure “A" referred to in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited on
the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

i. a  Inrespectof Company's Property, Plant and Equipment (FPE) and Intangible Assets:

A The Company has maintained proper records, showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of PPE and relevant details of right-to-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the PPE of the Company have been physically verified by the
management as at year end and the frequency whereaf of verification is reasonable considering
the size of the Company and nature af its PPE. According to the infarmation and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our examinaticn of the records, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification,

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinaticn of
the records of the Company does not hold any immovable property (other than immovable
property where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the Company) and hence reporting under clause 3(1){c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

d. The Company has not revalued any of its PPE (including right- of-use assets) and Intangible
assets during the year and hence reporting under clause 3{i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the recaords of the Company, neither any proceedings have beeninitiated during the year nor are
pending as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1888, as amended, and rules made thereunder and hence reporting under
clause 3{i){e) of the Order is not applicable to the Carmnpany.

i, a  Considering the Nature of business, the Company dogs not have any inventories and hence
reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Campany has not been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 crores
on the basis of security of current assets, in aggrogate, at any point of time during the year fram
banks and financlal institutions and hence reporting under clause 3(1i)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

iil.  Inrespectof investmentin, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances inthe
nature of loans, secured orunsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties:
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wil.

will.

{a) Accordingtothe infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or
guarantee ar provided security to any other entity and hence reporting under clause 3{iii)(a} is not
applicable to the Company.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, investment made are in the ordinary course of business and
accordingly in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. The Company
has not provided any guarantees, given any security and granted any loans and advances in the
nature of loans and guarantea,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Campany, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans and hence reporting under clauses 3{iii}(c), (d), (e} and {f} of the Order is nol applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has complied with the provisions of 186 of the Act, to the extent applicable with
respect to the investments made during the year. The Company has not provided any loans,
guarantees and securities to parties covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning
of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies [Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 have been accepted by the Company and hence reporting under clause 3{v) of
the Order is not applicable ta the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the central government under Section
148(1) of the Act, for the business activities carried cut by the Company and hence reporting uncer
clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services tax, provident fund, employees’ state (nsurance, income tax, sales tax, custom duty,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues during the year with the appropriate
authorities. No undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues were
outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a peried of maore than six months from the date
they became payable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination of the
records of the Company, there are no statutory dues mentioned in clause vii (a} which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) and hence reporting under clause 3{viii} of the Order is not apolicable to the
Company.,
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Xi.

(a) Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to us and

(b)

(c)

()

(e)

(a)

{b)

{a)

(b)

(¢

on the basis of our examination of the records, the Company has not defaulted in repaymeant of
any loans/ other borrowings during the year and hence reporting under clause 3{ix) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution ar
other lender,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has raised term loan from banks by way of Non-
Convertible Debentures during the year and the same were applied for the purpose for which the
loan were obtained.

On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements, in our opinion the Company
has not raised any shori-term fund during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix}(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the recards of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds fram any entity or person on
account of or tg meet the abligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint venture and hence
reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not raised any funds on the pledge
of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint venture and associates and hence reperting under
clause 3{ix)(f) af the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company has notraised any money by way of Initial public offer or further public
offer {including debt instrument) during the yvear and hence reporting under clause 3{x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on cur examination of the
recards, the Company has not made any preferential allotment, private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year or in the recent past and hence reporting
under clause 3{x)(b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the
information and explanations given 1o us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of
such case by the management.

During the year, no report under sub section 12 of Section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed in Rule 13 of Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, no whistle blower complaints were received by the Company during
the yearand hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c] of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xvil.

Xix.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company is nat a Midhi Company and hence reparting under clause 3(xii)
of the Order Is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, all the transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188
of the Act and all tha detalls have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required
by the applicable Accounting Standard. (Refer note no. 37 to the standalone financial statements)

{a) Accarding to the information and explanations given to us and an the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has an adequate internal audit system cemmensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b} We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining nature, timing and extent of our audit procedure.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entergd into any non-cash transactions prescribed
under Section 192 of the Act with directors ar persons connected with them during the year.

(a) The Company being a Securitisation and Reconstruction Company ('SCRC’) under Securitisation
& Reconstruction of Financial Assets & Enforcement of Securities Interest Act, 2002, itis neither
required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank aof India Act, 1934 nor carrying
out any non-banking financial or housing finance activities and hence reporting under clause
3{xvi) (a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Campany.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Cempany is neither a Core Investment Campany (CIC) nor there
is any care investment company within the "Companies [n the Group” as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and hence reporting under clause 3{xvi)
(c}and (d) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation by the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and hence
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According ta the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report indicating that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year fram the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all Uabilities falling due within a period of
one year fromthe balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
recards of the Company, there are no amounts unspent in respect of corporate social responsibility
towards ongoing or other than ongoing projects and hence reporting under clause 3(xx) (a) and (b) of
the Qrder s not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not-applicable in respect of the audit of Standalone
Financial Staternents and hence no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this

Teport,

For Lodha & Co. LLP
— Chartered Accountants
/,:”/;. & Co S Firm registration No. -301051E / E300284
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( X j/" R. P. Baradiya
N : Partner
Membership No. 044101

UDIN: 25044101BMIXDESZ204

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 13, 2025
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Annexure “B” referred to in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited on
the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statement under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statement of The
Mational Asset Recanstruction Company Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essentlal component of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Gver Financial Reporting issued by the [nstitute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adenuate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting recards, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reperting (the "Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal financial
controls and both Issued by the ICAlL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate Internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves perfarming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal
financial controls system with respect to standalone financial statement and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statement
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
an the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is suificient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinlan on the Campany's internal financial controls system with reference to standalone financial
statements,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

& Company’'s internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed ta provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
recards that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thattransactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the entity are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management;(3) provide reasonable assurance redarding preventlon or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or dispasition of the entity's assets that could have a material effect on
the standalone financial statements; and {4) also provide reasonable assurance by the internal auditors
through their internal audit reports given to the organisation from time to time.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalane financial
statement, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controis, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
aof the internal financial contrals with reference to standalone financial statement to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statement may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

Ingur opinion, ta the best of our information and accerding to the explanations given to us, the Campany
has, broadly, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial contrel with reference to
standalone financial statement criteria established by the Company considering the essantial
Component of internal control stated in the Guidance Naote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reparting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Far Lodha & Co. LLP

S B O Chartered Accountants
/e -_..;,--%-'-4-&;;\,_:_‘1;\_: Firm registration No. - 301051E / E300284
“u_\_____I.. l"ﬂ_.':' LB
|1.“ [ T ﬂ."ﬁ.-L'IJ:" % | M‘
R.P. Baradiya
Place: Mumbal Partner
Date: June 13, 2025 Membership No. 044101

UDIN: 250441018MIXDE5204
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Annexure “C" referred to in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited on

the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Report on directions issued by Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(5) of the
Act, vide their letter GA/CA-1/Directions & Sub-Directions / 2024-25/31, dated April 15, 2025 and
their email communication dated June 02, 2025 to the Company

Part 1~ Directions issued under Section 143(5) of the Act:

5. No.

Directions

Auditors reply on the action taken on
the directions:

1

Whether the flmmpany has system in place 1o
pracess all the accounting transactions through
IT System? If yes, the implications of processing
of accounting transactions outside IT system on
the integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any, may be stated,

Whether there is any restrﬁaﬂrihg of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/
interest etc. made by a lender to the company
due to the company's inability to repay the loan?
If yes, the financial impact may be stated.
Whether such cases are properly accounted for?
{In case, lender is a Government company, then
this direction is also applicable for statutory
auditor of Lender campany).

recejvable for specific schemes from Central /
State Government or agencies were properly
accounted for / utilized as per its terms and
conditions? List the cases of deviation

Assess the fair valuation of all the investments,
both gquoted and unguoted, made directly by the
Company or through Trusts, for Post-retirement
benefits of the employees. This includes
verifying wvaluation methodolegies, ensuring
consistency with Ind AS and reviewing
supporting documentation. The auditor shall
provide a brief note on the valuation approach,
its  reasonability, and compliance with
applicable regulations, reporting any matarial

| deviations or misstatements,

According to the information and

“explanations given to us and based on

examination of records by us, the
Company is processing its accounting
transactions through Tally Software
including manual processing of net asset
value of investments in security receipts
and provision for expected credit losses.
Considering the above, it does not affect
the integrity of the financial statements,

hcmrding to the information and
explanations given to us and based on
examination of records by us, there were '
no restructuring of loans/ waiver/ write off |
of debts/ loans/ interest etc. made by the
lender to the Company.

i Accu-r'c-fi'r{g_ ta the information and

explanations given to us and based on |
examination of records by us, during the
year, the company has not received any
funds in the nature of grants/ subsidy.

The Company is keeping its employees’
gratuity contribution  funded to  an
approved gratuity fund. The Funds of the
gratuity trust Is managed by an Insurance
Campany.
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Whether the Company has identified the key
Risk areas? If yes, whether the Company has
formulated any Risk Management Policy to
mitigate these risks? If yes, (a) whether the Risk
Management Policy has been formulated
consideririg global best practices? (b) whether
the Company has Identified its data assets and
whether it has been valued appropriately?

Yes, the Company has identified its key
risk areas in the Risk Management Policy,
last amended on lanuary 07, 2025, as
ultimately approved by the Board of
Directors. The risk management policies
have been formulated based on the
Company's assessment of the risk and
mitigation of risk. The Risk Management
Policy 1s based on the globally accepted
three tines of deferce. The data assets of
a company can be of various types such
as proprietary databases, customer
information, algorithms, and intellectual
property , Customer Data , Names,
contact info, demographics, Operational
Data, Financial Data, Proprietary
Algorithms & Madels etc. NARCL is a new
entrant in the ARC industry constituted to
cater to high value stressed assets and
has limited data base in possession.
Therefore, no data assets identified yet

Whether the Company is complying with the
Securities and Exchange Board of India {SEBI)
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirernents) Regulations, 2015, and other
gpplicable rules and regulations of SEBI,
Department of Investment and Public Asset
Management, Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Department of Public Enterprises, Reserve Bank
of India, Telecom Regulatory Autharity of India,
CERT-IN, Ministry of Electronics and Infermation
Technology and National Payments Corparation
of India wherever applicable? If not, the cases of
deviation may be highlighted,
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Reserve Bank of India - The Caompany has
complied with the Master Direction -
Reserve Bank of India  [Asset
Reconstruction Companies) Directions ,
as amended from time to time with
regards to accounting and disclosures.
There are no deviation from accounting
and disclosures.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs - The
Campany has complied with the
directions af Ministry of Company Affairs.
There are no deviation from the
directions.

Securities and Exchange Board of India
[SEBI) [Listing Cbligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and
other applicable rules and regulations of
SEB| - Not Applicable, as the Company is
an unlisted Public Company.

Telecom Regulatory Authority of India,
CERT-IN, Ministry of Electronics and
Information Technology and MNaticnal
Payments  Corporation  of  India;
Department of Investment and Public
Asset Management; Department of Public
Enterprises - Based on the Nature of
Companies business activities, the
above-mentioned regulation s not
applicable to the Company
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Part 2 - Directions issued vide their letter GA/CA-1/Directions & Sub-Directions / 2024-25/31, dated
April 15, 2025

5. No.

Particulars

Observations / Findings

1

As per Master Circular, Asset reconstruction
companies issued by Reserve Bank of India on
February 10, 2022, point no. 25 i.e. Fair Practice
Code, sub point no. 4 for Assets recenstruction
companies shall put in place Board Approved
Policy on management fees, expenses and
incentives, if any, claimed from trusts under
their management. Whether the same has been
put in place by the Company.

PFlace: Mumbai

Date

According to  the information and
explanations given to us and based on
examination of records by us, the
Company has put in place Board
approved policy on management fees,
expenses and incentives, which forms
part of its “Financial Asset Acquisition
Policy”. The said policy was approved by
the Board in its meeting dated December
08, 2021 and the same has besen last
updated onlanuary 07, 2025.

ForLodha & Co. LLP

JJune 13, 2025

Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. - 301051E / E300284

;\u.-r‘;\

R.P. Baradiya
Partner
Mambership No, 044101

UDIN: 25044101BMIXDES204
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
CIN ; UBT100MH2021G0I263521
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

[Fs. in lacs}
Asat Agat
Particulars Nate
March 31, 2025 miarch 31, 2024
Assets
1 Fimancial assets
{a] Cash and cash equivalents 3 52,133.63 93,131.85
{b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4 59.676.35 10,198.79
(e} Trade receivables 5 21,973.65 7,840.21
H] Inwestments ] 41727673 1,85,264.65
{e) Otherfinancial assets 7 407236 1,638.67
Total Financial assets ] 5,55,132,72 2,98,075.17
2 MNen-financial assers
(@) Current tax assets (net) g 252,61 175,30
(b} Proparmy, plant and equipment 9 45530 547.81
|c | Otherintangible assets 10 in 13.59
{d} Other non-inanclal assets 11 13457 762.45
Total Nen-financial assets (11} BHG.ES 1,598.95
Total Assets [1+ 11} 5,56,019.41 2,99,674.12
Liabilities and Equity
Linbilities
1 Financial Hahilitles
|a) Trade payables 12
(i total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprizas = =
{ii] total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro and small enterprises 0.01 95.24
(B} Debtsecurities 3 2,02,155.46 -
{¢} -Other financial liabllitles 14 653,99 B06.67
Total Financial liabilities {111 2,02 809,46 501.51
2 Mon-financial liabilities
{al Provisions 15 389.74 670.18
(bl Deferred tax Hakilities (net} 16 16,520.71 4,510.29
fei Other nan-financial llabllities 17 210,89 132.32
Total Mon-financial liabilities IV} 17,321.34 5,312.94
3 Equlity
{a) Eguity share capital 18 2,75,000.00 2,75,000.00
(b Other equity 1EA 60,888.51 18,459.27
Total Equity (V) 3,35,8B8.51 2,93,458.27
Total Liabllities and Egquity {100+ IV + V) 5,56,019.41 2,59,674.12
Material accounting palicies information and other explanatery notes 1-54 & Annexura |
The above Standalone Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
As per our report of even date attached
For Lodha & Co. LLP For and on behali of the Board of Directors of
Cherterad Accountants Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Firm Registration Mo. 301051E/ E300284 .
ﬁ,ﬁam&wa Diwakar Gupta P Santho
Partrer B Chairman MD & OEQ
M.No. 044101 ot B S D: 01274552 DIN: UB515%64
W 3
e ] \ %
ey i i
ey (A LR A
2 | e s Arihdam Biswas apil Soni
i __,r"l,::':: / Chief Finarcial Officer Company Secretary
b S
Place: Mumbai PFlacei Mumbal
Date: lume 13, 2025 Diate: June 13, 2025
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MNational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
CIN : Us71000H 2021601363511
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2025

{Rz, in lacs)
. Forthe Year ended |  For the Year ended
Particulars Note
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations
(a] Fee & ather related income 19 75,553 33 12,849.74
{b) Interest income 20 520,35 B50.00
{c) MNet gain on fair value changes 21 3&,264,20 10,386.33
Total revenue from operations {1 60,378.48 23,8B86.07
Other income (11} 22 5,205.37 T086.79
Total income (=141} 69,583.85 30,382.85
Expenses
(a] Finance costs i 2,451.85 127.57
{b) Fees and commission expense 24 4,033.27 1,800.00
{c) Imgairment of financial instruments 25 3,481.43 571.86
{d) Employea benefits expense 26 1,232.98 1,338.41
&) Depreclation,amortization and impairment a7 190,12 el
ify Unrealised fesas & expenses written off 28 £03.67 3,579.01
&} Dther expenses 9 1,004.36 1,919.06
Total expenses |IV) 13,197.68 9,513,62
Profit before tax (V=111V} 56,386.17 21,469.24
Tax expensa V1) 30ia)
Current 1ax 1,869.42 SR.42
Deferred tax charge 12,010.28 4,287.19
Tax relating to earlier vears 79.68 5540
13,959.38 525101
Profit for tha year (Vil=v-V1) 42,426.79 16,218,723
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss
Remedsurement gains on defined benefit plan 3.21 459
Income tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to profit B loss A0k [0.86) {116}
Other caomprehensive income 2,55 343
Total comprehensive income for the year 42,429.34 16,221,656
Eammings per equity share {Face value Rs.10 per share) 31
Basic and Diluted 1.54 0.89

Material accounting policles information and other explanatory notes 1-54 & Annexure |

The above Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunetion with the accompanying notes
As perour report of even date attached

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

K);A.u-a._hﬂ._} E_}h-;’sf,__ \l )

For Lodha & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 301051E/ E300284

r Diwakar Gupta P Santhosh
Partrer D 57 Chairrman MO & CED
M. No, 044101 bk CiM: 01274552 DiM: DR515964

.'I.-‘t.

-.Ir."'
{~—I? | b-".'l_lfﬁE--'-i'ﬂ I.-r

e Birs - Y

Arindam Blswas Kapil Soni
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbal

Date: Jung 13, 2025 Date; fune 13, 2025
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
CIN : UBT100MHI021G0I363511
Standalone Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Rs. irlacs)
Particulars For the Year endad Far the Year ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

CASH FLOW FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Met Profit Bafore Tax 56,386.17 11,469.24
adjustments for;

Depreciation, amortization and impairment 180,12 17771

Intzrest on deposits with banks 18,719.19) [7,070.25)

Impairment of financial instruments 3,481.43 571.85

Net gain an falr value changes (34,264.20) 110,386.33)
Fees & expenses written off BU3.67 357301
Finance cost 2,451,85 127.57
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 20,329.85 8,468.80
Waorking sapital changes:

{Increasa)/Decreass |n trade recaivables [16,554.40) (7.325.43)
(Increase)/Decraase in othar financial and non-financial assets {3,259.94) {4,959.46)
|ncrease/[Decrease] In trade payables 95.23) 5.2
Increasef{Decrease] in other financizl & non financial Habilitles (262.18) 1B6.B2
Cash used in operations {251.20) [3.573.96)
Direct taxes paid [2,027.27) (632.27)
INET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (&) {2, 279.17) [4,206.23)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchate of property, plant & equipment (3530) (106.300
Proceeds from sale of progerty, plant & equipment - 041
Increase/[Decrease| in bank deposits not considered as cash & cash equivalent (48,243.84} 44,752.22
Interest received on deposits with banks 748647 5,4%8.54
Investment in equity shares of an assoclate - {a46.00]
Proceeds from redemption of securlty recelpts 35,942.78 5,575.81
Investiment in security receipts [2,33,690.64) {1,25,4440.25)
MET CASH LISED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) {2,38,540.53) |68, 765.57]
CASH FLOW FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES:

Preceeds fram Issue of equity shares - 1,34,085.50
Proceeds from issue of non-convertiole debentures 2,00,000.00 -
Payment of lease liabilities {178.52) (185,409
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C} 1,59,821.498 1,33,910.10
MNET INCREASE / (DECREASE] IN CASH AND CASH EQLIVALENTS {A+B+C) (40,998.22) &0,938.30
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 93,131.85 32,193.55
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year |Refer note no, 3] 52,133.63 93,131.85

taterial accounting poficies information and other explanatory notes

1-54 & Annexure |

The above Standalone Statement of cash flow shauld be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

As per cur report of even date attached
For Lodha & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 301051F/ E300284

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Diwahar Gupta P Santh
MO & CEQ
DIN; 08515964

o [ [ \&w
R.F.Blﬂﬂi'ﬂh % C¢

Chairman
DIM: D1274552

"‘{f ‘w&ﬂml'_"" b
Arindam Biswas il Sani
Chiaf Financial Officer  Company Secratary

Farnar
M Mo, 044101

Place: Mumbal
Date: june 13, 2025

Place: Mumbal
DaterJune 13; 2025
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
CIN : Us7100MH20216G01363511

Standalone Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

A. Equity Share Capital {Rs. Inlacs)
Particulars No. of Shares Amount
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,40.90,45,000 1,40,904.50
Changes in equity shara capital during the year 1,34,09,55,000 1,34,085.50
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2,75,00,00,000 2,75,000.00
Changes in aquity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 2,75,00,00,000 2,75,000.00
B. Other Equity
Reserves & Surplus Items of Other Tatal
Comprehensive
Particulars Income
Betained Earnings Debenture Redemption | Re-measurement
Reserve of net deflned
benefit plans
Balance as at March 31, 2023 223761 - 2,237.61
Profit for the year 16,218.23 - 15,218,23
Other Comprehensive income (net of 1axes) - - 3.43 343
Total Comprehensive Income 18,218.23 - 3.43 16,221.66
Balance as at March 31, 2024 18,455.84 - 343 1B,458.27
Prodit for the year 4242679 % - 42,428.73
Other Comprehensive income (net of taxes) - 255 255
Total Comprehensive Income 42,426.79 - 2.55 42,499.34
Transfers tof{from] retained earnings {17,165.90] 17,168,590 = z
Balance as at March 31, 2025 43,712.73 17,168.80 5.88 60,888.61

Material accounting policies information and other explanatory notes

1-54 & Annexure |

The above Standslone Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

As per our repert of even date attached

For Lodha & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Ne. 301051E/ E300284

m:-jia

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Fdsirsihai f—u‘}x-t« NY

A.P.Baradiya - Diwakar Gupta P Santho
Parter d”._ﬁi“‘ﬁ-h Chalrman MD & CEQ
M.No. 044101 —~8 X DIN: 01274552 DiN: nsﬁi 5964
N
YR
MUMBAL01 |4 /
| 2 .
m,wig{u- i
Arindam Biswas pil Sani
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 13, 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 13, 2025
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Corporate Information

Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as "MARCL" or the
“Company” or “ARC"} has been incorporated under the Companies Act, as a Government Company
(limited by shares) on 7™ July 2021 domicile In India & having a CIN UG7100MH2021G0I363511. The
Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India w.e.f. October 04, 2021 with Registration no.
030/2021 as a Securitisation and Asset Reconstruction Company under the Securitization and
Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 The Company's
registerad office is at - Unit No.1, 8th Floor, Birla Centurion, Wing B, Plot No,794, Pandurang Bhudhar
iarg, Worli Mumbai 400030, Maharashtra, India.

The Company's principal activity is acquiring Non- Performing Assets (NPA) from the Banks and
Financial Institutions and resolving them through appropriate resalution strategies enunciated in
SARFAESI

The Government of India provides guarantee on Security receipts (SR) issued by the Trust setup by
MARCL to the selling lendars in accordance with the guarantee agreement entered into between

MARCL and Government of India.

2. Material Accounting Policies Information
2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements
2.1.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and RBI guidelines as may be applicable to the Company from time to
time.

2.1.2 Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared and presented on the geing concern basis and at 3
historical cost basis, except for following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value;

(i} certain financial instruments such as financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
through profit and loss ("FVTPL") instruments;
{ii} Employee Defined Benefit Plan measured as per actuarial valuation

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows;

s Level 1 inputs are guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company can access at reporting date.

s level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, which are
observable far the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

s Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or habilities,
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Notes te Standalone Financial staterment for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.1.3 Presentation of financial statements

The Company prepares its balance sheet and profit and |oss account in compliance with the Division
Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and
presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are penerally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amaunts without it being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle

on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

#  The normal course of business
=  The event of default
=  The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the company and or its counterparties

The Company will present its annual and any other periodic financial statements/results as per the
requiremnents of applicable law from time to time.

2.1.4 Functional and Presentation Currency
Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company.
2.1.5 Rounding of amounts

All the values are rounded to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule 1l to the Companies
Act, 2013, except where otherwise indicated. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupee.

2.2 Business Model Assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company's business model iz not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher
level of aggregated portfolios and is based on ohservable factors such as:

- How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personriel,

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and, In particular, the way those risks are managed.

- How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

- The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the
Company's assessment.
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.2.1  The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest test ("SPP| test”)

Az a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial
assets to identify whether they meet the solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset. The most significant elements of
interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of money and
credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgement and considers refevant
factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the
interest rate is set.

2.3 Financial Instruments

& financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or eguity instrument of another entity. Financial assets primarily comprise of Investments,
loans, deposits, trade recelvables and cash and cash equivalents. Financial liabilities primarily
comprise of borrowings and trade payables.

2.3.1 Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, depasits and borrowings
are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument, This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the
customers’ account: The Company recognises debt securities, deposits and borrowings when funds
reach the Company.

2.3.2 Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Trade receivables are
measured at the transaction price.

2.4 Subseguent measurement of Financial Asset

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets
and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

=  Amortised cost
= Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.4.1 Amortized cost and Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
receipts and payments that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt
instrurnent, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including
expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for
any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised
cast of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowanca

2.4.2 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial
assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows that give rise on specified dates to sole payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding and by selling financial assets.

2.4.3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either designated
by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value
under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when
one of the following criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis:

-The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis

- Financial assets at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value, Changes in fair value are
recorded in profit and loss.

2.5 Investment in Subsidiary and Assoclates

= Control is defined to mean where an entity has power over the investee, existing rights that
give It the current ability to direct the relevant activities and it also has exposure to variable
returns from the entity.

* Investment in subsidiaries and associates — Equity shares are measured at cost in Standalone
Financial Statements.
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial statemeant for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.6 Purchase/Acquisition of Security Receipts ("SR")

» For security receipt that fall within the planning period as defined by the Reserve Bank of
India {RBI), the fair value of Security Receipts is considered to be the cost of acquisition.

» SRs are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of such are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss, The fair value
of Security Receipts is determined based on the last declared MNet Asset Value (NAV) which is
calculated using ratings or gradings reviewed by an approved Credit Rating agency. However,
the NAY has been reviewed on Quarterly basis, so that any material change in valuation of
SRs s recognized immediately.

e SRs are measured at fair value through profit and loss based on the Company adopted fair
valuation methodology. Refer note no 2.1.2 for determination of fair value methodology.

2.7 Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

» Investments in equity instrurments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably
elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading,

= Financizl assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

s Dividends on investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ when the
Company’s right to receive the dividends is established.

2.8 Loans and advances

» The Company may grant loan to borrowers. Such loans are provided to only those borrowers
whose loans, ARC has already acquired from the respective banks/financial institutions in the
form of Trusts. Such loans can be provided for the purpose of disposal of liabilities which delay
realization of dues, Revival of borrower's operations, to enable borrower meet working capital
requirements, etc

= Such loans are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the loans granted are added to or deducted from the fair value on initial recognition.

s Based on the business model and SPPI test, the loans are subsequently measured at amortized
cost.

2.9 Other investment including debt securities

= The Company in accordance with its investment policy may purchase ather financial assets
[other than those specified abave).

e Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to purchase are added to or deducted from the fair value on initizl recognition.

» Based on the business model and SPPI test, such financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost or FVTPL.
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Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

= Financial assets measured at FVTPL are fair valued based on the Company adopted fair
valuation methodology.

2.10 Financial liabilities and Equity Instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

2.10.1 Financial Liabilities:

A financial liability is a2 contractual obligation to deliver cash or ancther financial asset or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the Company or a contract that will or may be settled in the its's own
equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Company is or may be cbliged
to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative contract aver awn
equity that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash [or
another financial asset) for a fixed number of the it's own equity instruments,

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial labilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial lizbilities are initially recognised at fair value in case of
loans and borrowings net of transaction costs that are directly attributable.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

2.10.2 Loans and Borrowings

After initial measurement, financlal lizbilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Amartisad cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium an issue/acquisition
of funds, and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in Statement of Profit & Loss.

2.10.2 Financial Liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial llakilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held far
trading, if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term, This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading, unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Financial liabilities, designated upon initial recognition at FYTPL, are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.10.4 Debtissued and other borrowings ("Financial Liabilities")

2.10.5

2.10.6

* Financial Liabilities are recognized when the funds reach the Company.

¢ All Financial Liabilities are measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the loans granted are added to or deducted from the fair value on initial
recognition

s After initial measurement, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on issue funds,
and casts that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Borrowing costs/Finance costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest rate method.
Finance charges in respect of assets acquired on finance lease and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
costs,

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur, Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the horrowing costs.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

2.11 Reclassification of financial assets and financial liahilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their Initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, ar terminates a
business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

2.12 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

2.12.1 Derecognition of financial assets

& financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have
expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has transferred the financial 2sset and
substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the assets to another party.
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The Company has transférred the financial asset if, and only Iif, either:

s The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset;
or

= |t retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an chligation to pay the recelved cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass=through’ arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'], but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay those cash flows to one ar mare entities (the "eventual recipients'), when all of the following
conditions are met:

s The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has coliected
equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full
recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates

= The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual
recipients

The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without
material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for
investments in cash or cash eguivalents including interest earned, during the period between the
collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
# The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asseft, but has transferred contral of the assat

The Company considers control to be transferred if and anly if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and
has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the
Company's continuing involvement, inwhich case, the Company also recognises an associated liability,
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligaticns that the Company has retained.
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2.12.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires,

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification Is treated as a derecognition of the ariginal liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid,
including modified contractual cash flow recognised as new financial liability, is recognised in profit or
lass,

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for trade receivables (including unbilled
revenue) and other debt financial assets not held at FYTPL, In this section all referred to as *financial

instruments’,

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Far all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on the
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses
{12 manth ECL).

Lifetime ECL [LTECL] represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12 months ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Based on the above process, the Company categorises its financial instruments into Stage 1, Stage 2,
and Stage 3 as described below:
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Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the company recognises an allowance based on 12m ECLs,
Stage 1 financial instruments also include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and
the financial Instruments has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a financial instrument has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the company records an allowance for the 12m ECLs, Stage 2 financial instruments also
include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the financial Instruments has been
reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Financial instruments considered credit impaired. The Company records an allowance for the
LTECLs.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probahbility of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data. As for the exposure at default,
for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for
loan commitments, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together
with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined
based on historical trend and the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of
the debtors.

2.14 Write offs

Financial assets are written off entirety only when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery.
if the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first
treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any
subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instruments in statement of prefit and
loss.

2.15 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment in value.

Subsequent costs incurred an an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition eriteria i.e. it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow ta the entity and cost can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance are
recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates
arrived at, hased on the useful lives estimated by the management. The identified components are
depreciated separately over their useful lives.

As per the reguirement of Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the
useful lives of the respective property, plant and equipment which are as per the provisions of Part C
of the Schedule Il for calculating the depreciation,

74 of 178



National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

| Nature of asset Estimated useful life
Office Equipment 5 years
Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, | 3 years
laptops, ete. |
Furniture & Fixture | 5years
Leasehold improvements Over the period of lease
| Vehicles 5 years or lease period whichever is lower

Assets costing less than Rs.5,000/- are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. Assets taken on
finance lease are depreciated over a period of lease.

An item of property, plant and eguipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets 15 derecognised at the time of
replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The residual values, useful
lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.16 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets
are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the
date that they are available for use, The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based
on a8 number of factors including the effects of cbsolescence, demand, competition, and other
economic factors. Amaortization methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each
financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortisation
period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Estimated useful life of software and website will be over a period of 3 years to 5 years..

2.17 Retirement and other employee benefit

2.17.1 Defined contribution plans:

The Company's provident fund scheme and employee pension scheme are defined contribution plans.
The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognised during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.
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2.17.2 Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity scheme is considered as definad benefit plan, The Company’s net abligation
in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, If any, is deducted,
The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Remeasurements gains / losses, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan
assets (excluding amaunts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liabllity), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCIin the period in which they accur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods
Past service costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss an the earlier of:

- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Met interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

- Metinterest expense orincome

2.17.3 Short term employee benefits

Employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the
related service. Liahilities recognised in respect of short-term employes benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amaount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

2.17.4 Other long term employee benefits
Compensated Absences

Long-term compensated absences are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of
each financial year, Actuarial gains/losses, if any, are recognised immediately in the 5tandalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.18 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable
amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount, The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
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recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that
a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount Is reassessed and the
asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

2.19 Leases
2.19.1 Leases as a Lesseg

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

2.19.2 Rights-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencemerit date of the lease (i.e the date of
underlying asset is available for use). Rights-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any eccumulated
depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of rights-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Rights-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

2.19.3 Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the |lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date as the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities Is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
madification, a change in lease term, a change in lease payments or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.
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2.19.4 Short term lease

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and |ease liabilities for short term leases
of property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease payment
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over lease term.

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, highly liquid investments that are readily
canvertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value,

2.21 Revenue recognition
2.21.1 Net gain/(loss) on financial asset measured at FVTPL

Changes in fair value of the financial assets recorded in balance sheet, measured at FVTPL, are
recorded in statement of prefit and loss.

As per the RBI circular, profit on redemption of security receipts is accounted only after the full
redemption of security receipts. &mount realized in surplus/ deficit of the acquisition cost of security
receipts in accordance with the terms of the trust deed/ offer document is recarded as profit/ loss on
sale/ redemption of security receipts.

Profit/loss an sale of financial assets, measured at FVTPL, are recorded in statement of profit and loss.

2.21.2 Fee and commission income

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is
measured at transaction price i.e. the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to the customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. The Company consider the terms of the contract to determine the
transaction price.

a. The fee income comprises of Management fees/Trusteeship fees. The Company receives
Management fees/Trusteeship fee from trusts declared by it for acquisition of financial assets
and the same is accounted for an accrual basis as per terms of the relevant trust deeds and offer
document issued by the Trust. Management fees/Trusteeship fees are calculated and charged as
a percentage of the net assets value ['NAV') at the lower end of the range of the NAV specified
by the Credit Rating Agency. In case of NAV is not specified by the Credit rating Agency,
iManagement fees are to be reckoned as a percentage of the actual outstanding value of 5Rs,
befare the availability of NAV of 5Rs.

b. Redemption incentive and recovery incentive is accounted based on terms of the relevant trust
deeds and offer document issued by the Trust
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c. Any upside share n excess realisation over acquisition price of financial asset by trust is
recognised at point in time basis as per terms of the relevant trust deed/offer document only
after full redemption.

d. The above receipts are recognised as revenue excluding G5T.

2.21.3 Interest Income

e Under Ind AS 109, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method on
all financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the espected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest on the bank deposits is accounted for an accrual
basis on time proportion basis, as per the terms of the deposits,

= |ntereston Funded expenses is recognised on accrual basis, The accrual of the same is suspended
whenever the expense receivable is being written off.

2.21.4 Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when right to receive is established {provided that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably].

2.22 Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the fareign currency at the
date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items,
which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are
translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which they arise.

The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency
menetary items as below:

1. Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition
of a property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are capitalized and depreciated over
the remaining useful life of the asset.

2. Exchange differences arising on other long-term foreign currency monetary items are
accumulated in the “Foreign Currency Monetary [tem Translation Difference Account” and
amortized over the remaining life of the concerned monetary item.

3, All gther exchange differences are recognized as income or as expenses in the period in which
they arise.
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2.23 Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are incurred in the normal course of the business for its smooth functioning,
Operating expenses are accounted on the basis of incurrence.

2.24 Expenses on behalf of the trusts for acquiring assets

Pre- Acquisition expenses

Expenses incurred at pre-acquisition stage for acquiring assets viz. due diligence etc. are recognised
as expenses for the period in which such costs are incurred in accordance with the Master Direction =
Reserve Bank of India (Asset Reconstruction Companies) Directions, as amended from time to time.

Post- Acquisition expenses

Expenses incurred after acquisition of assets on the formation of the trusts like stamp duty,
registration charges, etc. which are recoverable from the trusts, are written off, if these expenses are
not realised within 180 days from the planning period or downgrading of 5Rs [i.e. Net Asset Value
(MNAV) is less than 50% of the face value of 5Rs] whichever is earlier in accordance with the Master
Direction — Reserve Bank of India [Asset Reconstruction Companies) Directions, as amended from time
to time, Any subsequent recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss. Consequently, the interest
accrued on such post-acquisition expenses are also written off.

2.25 Provisions and other contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company determines the level
of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates
specific to the liability. The expense relating to any pravision is presented in the statement of profit
and loss net of any reimbursement,

Contingent lfability is disclosed in case of a present obligation arising from past events, when It is not
probable that an outflow of rescurces will be required to settle the obligation and a present obligation
arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible. Claims against the Company, where
the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent
liabilities.

2.26 Contingent Assets

Cantingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements.

2.27 Taxation

2.27.1 Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit
and |oss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.27.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences as on the reporting date between the carrying
amaounts of assets and liabilities in the financial staterments and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferrad tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and unused
tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company shall recognise deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses where the Company
believes that the said deferred tax assets shall be recoverable based on the estimated future taxable
income which in turn is based on approved business plans and budgets. The losses are allowed to be
carried forward to the years in which the Company expects that there will be sufficient taxable profits
to offset these losses.

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary difference,
unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient taxable temporary
differences which are expected to reverse in the period of reversal of deductible temporary difference
or in periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back. When this is not the case, deferred
tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable that:

= the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible
temporary difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

2.27.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to
iterns that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respactively.
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2.27.4 Goods and services tax fvalue added taxes and input tax credit

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:

- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
autharity, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense Item, as applicable

- When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

Goods and Services tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the supply of
goads ar service received is accounted and when there Is no uncertainty in availing/utilising the
credits.

2.28 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before extraordinary item and
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past
or future cash receipts and payments. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities
are segregated based on available information.

2.29 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the eguity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts
to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share s
computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year
adjusted for effect of interest and other financing costs, net of taxes, associated with dilutive potential
equity share by aggregate of weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares inta equity shares.

2.30 Exceptional items

An item of income ar expense which by its size, nature or incidence requires disclosure in arder to
improve an understanding of the performance of the Company is treated as an exceptional item and
disclosed separately in the financial statements,
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2.31 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in cutcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabllities affected in future periods,

2.31.1 Sources of key estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other sources of key estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond
the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

2.321.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e, an exit price) regardless of whether that
price is directly abservable or estimated using another valuation technigue. When the fair values of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannat be derived from active
markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation technigues that include the use of valuation
models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values,

For Investments made into Security receipts (SRs), Company uses discounted cash flow model, given
that the 5Rs are less liguid instruments and expected cash flows including timing of cash flows are
estimated by using guantitative and gualitative measures regarding the characteristics of the
underlying assets mainly the manner of resolution plan, arbitration negotiations, nature & value of
collaterals, manner of resolution and other economic drivers. For any valuation which are based on
models, Judgements and estimates are applied, which include considerations of liquidity, credit risk
{both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

2.31.3 Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement,
in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which
can result in different levels of allowances.
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The Company's ECL calculations are outputs of cash flows projected from the expected recoveries of
assets acquired by the Company and applying a present value factor to them.

Probahilities of defaults (PDs) the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and
expectations of future conditions.

2.31.4 Defined benefit obligations

The cost of post-retirement benefit plans are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial
valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases, martality rates
and future pension increases, Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject
to significant uncertainty.

2.32 Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notilies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies [Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company,
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{til | In Freed depasits with arginal metwnty of 3 months or 5113108 F3.1F1.36
less [rachading Interest actrued)
Tetal 135,68 93,131.85
A Bank balencs other than cast ded cach equivilants
Anat iy b
ficaitary
s March 31, 2005 March 31, 2024
Demashs wich maturiiy graaber than 3 moniha bet s 59,676.35 10,188.79
this 13 masiths e luding Fleresl secrumd)
Tatal 59,676.35 18, 16070
5. Trade recevvables
Parteulors Ana o g
Mareh 31, 7025 Parch 31, 2004
Trade hi
| |Sensred, consldered good
i, |Uetpcured, eanvidered gead:
Unindled revenus 568105 B720R
. Bifad peanug 3.24 3
Lews : Expeciled oredit luss (EELY 3,710.62] {BAY.5G|
Teanl Z1.9T3.05 7.8a0.31 |
5.1 Aguing o trude receivebbes outstanding as at March 31, 2015
Particulars Outsianding for foltowing periods from due dabe of pay === Total
_ Leas tham & menth B monthi - 1 year 1-2 years 3L ymars Merm than 3 yram
Linbiled revenus EXGFE 252,65 R = 25,643 01
Hiled revenue 1.29 185 & = L]
Lezss: Enpectisd cresdit boss ECLI 19,710.17] 11,328,986} [ . 13, 710.62)
Total Taaam | 0 TeneR E10419 = 11,573.65
5.2 Ageing far trade receiunblos outitanding o et Maech 33, 3024
F [ ¢ for leliowing perieds fram due date ol § Tatal
| Luss than & months & mewiihs - 1 ywar 11 yuar -3 ywars | Mare than 3 years
Unkilled rrvense 3,7rL00 1.570.00 1,380.687 | - B.7X8.67
Lewa- Digwerted cradit lads [FC1) [EELEL] 35878 1117.64; - |B85.E6]
Totsl 33TLTE 3,716.22 1,751.23 — - T.B40.21
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Katkonal Assel Reconstruetion Company Limited

Kaores to Siandsdane Finantlal Statemests ks a1 Mareh 31, 205

IR, Iy laes]
B, Inuestments
Agan A at
L
e BMareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I, |drveairesis in security receiphs (Aresesure &)
Carrbed a1 Fafr value throwph predit or loss
of an Associse 50,4500 42 55,427 &0
Drihars 166, T8 01 1,.2%.701.35
i |insnasEmant in sguity shares of am associabe, Cat
o1y = Unguotid, Tully padd up
SAE Infrastraciorn Finange Limied {50,000 Egquity
shiared Having face value of Rs, 30 Eaeh) 4600 OO
[Tatsl - Geous (A] 4,17.276.73 4,85,264.55
| [l investments = india §17,276.01 185 1665
[IK s cutside India B :
Total (&) 4,17,276.73 1,85, 16485
Curreni R 54,657.3%
San curreni 1, LEeAT 1,26,667.26
Annawure & Investmests in securiby recstpts
N baeunis Humbar ol sacsiiy Cenmanding face value | Dutstanding face value
am v : "
R e unic| [As. per anit] Fair value s at Fairvalueasan
b s TR L gt "“"‘;‘1";;‘“““" wat asat March 512025 | March 31, E02e
K0 Mlarch 31, 1025 March 31, 2028
In Arsociaten
1 [ NARCL Tnust - D007 £00,00,000.00 E0,00,300.60 41761 92379 SO,504.82 £5,427.50
Subi 1alal [4) &0,00,000.00 5,00, 000,00 | s0.50043 48,017 48
In Others
1 | MARCL Truss - 0001/7022-23 5355,000.00 53,55,500,00 1206000 160000 | 62,154.51 £1.164.50
3 [WARCL Trum - DN0/2022-23 48.875.00 4B.825.00 4RL68 | 1in.67 7471
3 |NARCL Teast - DXOASINTE-T3 53,050,000 93,053.00 ET7.HL [E ol LTl ] !dd.l_l'_'
& [WARCE Trust - D004 BOT 50000 6,07, 500,00 37E.T4 95754 | !lﬁ}"@? !:1]5.!1
& |BANCL Trist - P0G L33, 75000 3, 55.750.00 E47.18 HRE.DS | 3,243.11 332218
G |HANCL Trust - G005 15,0000 5,000, [} 1000 00 1,000.00 | 57l 787.55
T |NAARCL Trust - G0CH L63,500.00 b b5 U0 100 0 1,000 00 | 3,558.11 2,E25.00
8- |WUACL Trust - GOLS 10,50,000.00 10,%3,000. 00 10080 () 3,000.00 | 13,539.71 18.500.00
| 8 |PRARLL Trust - 0008 4,05, 000.00 4,5 00000 1,01 4 LE0aG 485628 £.050.04
L0 | MAACL Trust - DOLY 3.85,000.00 3,83 076,00 LA M1 100000 | 4,B02.58 3390
| L1|MARCL Trust - COLD 13 500,03 4,11 56000 1000 M) 800100 | 5.216,1% 4. 035.00
| 12 |MARCL Trust - DOLL 3,85, 720,00 3,85 T30, 100 D 1,000.00 | 347339 3,557.20
| 13 rtARCL Trust - COLT 7,76,500.00 7,76 500.00 k5153 1,000.00 | B.5E7.69 7.765.00
L1a&{MARCL Trust - COLE 10,05,000.00 I0.0% 00004 LAEK (1 1,000 00 LTILIA 1005004
153MARCL Tram - D018 BES, 505,00 565 305,00 00 () PR CIE ] 984258 5.E55.05
16 NARCL Trugt - DOL3 1,75,980.00 1.75,550,00 .00 1, MO Asns L75% 00
17 [NARCL Tt - D013 10,29,000.00 - 100600 - 11.653.80 -
1RIHNARCL Tinit - DOTL 3,72,600,00 = 1.200.00 = LR 4
1B ENARCL Tiad - G 4777100 s 1,000.00 - £ -
TOfNAREL Tieat - DO 1.35.100050 = 1.006.00 = 1.541.90 ]
21} NAREL Trust - BOTT 4.50.000.93 - 100 o | 450000 -
21| NARCE Trust - 02D 15.94,500,%0 - #5145 i | __Is1jo.eT .
LT HARCL Trust - 0014 5,40,000.00 - 1.500.00 = 5.400.00 =
28| HARCL Trust - 008 1,75,492,105.00 = 150000 | 1,79, S3LES | .
15 | MARCL Trust - 6016 10,07, 018.50 - LoGE.00 = | 10,978.13 | -
Suib fonal B 3,54,09,978.00 1,0,40,913.00 | 146,728,391 | L.19.751.24
Tatal (ask] 4,14.09.370.00 1404001000 | | 41723073 1,B5,216.65
7. Other financlal assets
o Avat
Prrtiedlsng
March 11 3035 March 31, 2034 |
i |securhy degosa for legsed premises and others 10569 16900 |
cansicered good |
1. |&mount recoveratde from s 4,6A0.70 1.567.14 |
Less © Enperzod crese doss {ECL) {718.03) [57.56}
3,962.67 152558
Tatsl 407336 1, HERET
B Cuwrent fad ardets [Met)
Pascleulass Apat Asal
farch §1. 2025 March 11, 3124
| |Admnce mcome fas and TO5 15161 §75.30
|Mat of proviaians for income tax of Bo 187028 lacs
|Frevious year Hs, B03.57 |acsh
Totad 25261 17530
"
x-?:'
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Motes to Standal

Financial Star

%, Praperty, plant and equipment

"t b #t March 31, 2025

|Rs. i lacs]
As al Mareh 11,1025
Gress Block Ar d D pe ediation, Amartisatian and hrpak i fhet Nlack
Description af assets As at Additlons during ﬂ:’:::::* Az at Asat Change far the | Dispesals dusing A= at Asat s ot
April 01, 2024 the yeor iy thiz pat March 31, 2025 Agril 08, 7024 year the year March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2025 | Manch 31, 2024
Ownud Asgets =<
Computers 37.56 0.84 - 3840 2008 1044 - an.52 783 1788
Cffice equipmiony 33.87 Q.30 - M7 L] 545 = 11.14 .03 25.18
Furniture & fittings 148 . 075 323 R} 047 122 100 E¥E]
ihicles BOLOE 3497 - 54,57 370 15.77 = 1548 758 5630
Leased Assals
Right of s leasehpld assets - Office TIEA] - 6.5 9,48 164.58 11731 £ 332,00 IBETAS SAL62
lpremines
|Tnl=| BGLT2 .06 7.60 B890.1% 213.91 175.94 L 39387 456,30 GaT.HL
As at March 31,2024
Gross Blodk Aroumulsted Depredation, Amartisation and k rert Black
Discription of Assets Auat Additions during :d'f:::l::’:! s at Asat Change Tar the | Bisposals during A at Aot Az at
April 0%, 2023 the yoar March 31, 2024 Aprll 01, 2028 year the year March 31, 2004 | March 31, 2034 March 31, 2023
duwing the year
Clurned Asdety
Computers W65 395 1M 3756 284 077 b3 .08 17,458 1871
[iffice e 150 3237 . 1367 615 454 . = T 135
Furniture & fittings - 3.98 = 3.58 - 075 - .75 113 =
Wehicles - &0, 00 = &0 - 370 - .70 50.30 =
u:ndns__;.!'u
Right of use lrasehald assats - Dffice T36.33 - B TIE3Y L HE A | - 184.69 Sd1.62 B&9.33
premises
Tnl;_l 73646 106.30 1.04 #6172 a3.07 16747 0E3 215.91 B4T.E1 708,35
0.0uher Imtangible Assets [Rs, In lacs)
A% at March 31,2025
Grozs Block ALL Deprecation, A ipn and Impairmend Mol Blogh
Dedeription of Asiets Asat Additions during ﬂm:l Az at Asat Charge for the | Disposals duaring Azat s at Azat
April 01, 2024 the year dhifirag il yaas March 31, 2025 Apeil 01, 2024 year the year Maarch 31, 7025 | Msarch 31, 2025 Barch 31, 2028
Saftware |Inchading website} 3061 - . 3061 17,31 118 = Ir.Ad 311 13,39
Total 3,61 = B - AL 17.22 10.18 - 740 111 13348
A at March 31,2024
Groas Block Actumulated Depreciation, Amortsation and Impairment Net Blodk
i } Dizposal)
% FE(R] | Description of Assels Adal Adiditions during ek gt A at Charge bor the | Diypossh during Ay ol Asat R sl
[ April 01, 2023 the year g e flarch 31, 2024 April 01, 273 WERT the year March 51, 20248 | March 31, M24 March 31, 2023
Saftese |Incading websile) IEL - - 30,62 659 10,23 s 1133 13.34 34
Total 3061 H s A0LG1 [ 10.23 & 17.22 13.33 23.567
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Matbonal Asset Recanstroction Company Limited
Mates to Standalone Finandal Statements as at March 31, 32025

{R=. Ir lacs]
11. Other non-finaneial assets
Particulars At PaEwt
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(insecured considered good, unless Mated ctharwdse)
{I] Balanees with goernmant autharities - GST inpus 1ax credit A7 08 08,08
ii| Pripiaid gsparses AC46 36
(] Critfer adwanoes 7.03 16.56
Total 134.57 TELAS
12 Trade payables
A5 ot As ot
il March 31, 2025 March 33, 2024
!L’ Trade EB!!H&
{1} Tatal cutstanding dues of micro and small enterprizes * = 5
(i} Total outstanding dises of creditors other than micro and smal enteronzes ROl ‘35.33_
Tatal it 95,24

*Dues to micro enterprizes and small enterprises have heen determined ta the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of

|mfarmatlan co¥ected.

11.1 Bues payable ta Micra and Small Enterprises water the Micta,Small and Medium Enterprizes Development Act 2006 os well 33

ampndmans

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2025

Agat
Parch 31, 20ds

|1} Principal amount remsning uroald to amy supalier as ot the end of the accounting
vemr.

|li} Inferest due thercon remvaining unaald 1o ary supplier as 3t the end of the
stoaunting year,

(111} The amnunt of intereer paid alang with the amounis of the payment made to the
supplier beyund appoimed day.

{iv} The ampount af mterest due and payable for the year.

{v| The amount of interest acoraed and remalming unpald at the end of the accowsnting
LLLCE

twi] The amnount of further interes) dise and payahile sven in 1he succeeding year, untl
lsuch date when the interest dues as above are actually pad.

Tatal

12.2 Ageing for trade payables

Az at March 31,2025

= jing tor fellpwing perods frem due date of payment

Particulars

Less tham 1 ynar

1-1 years

-1 years

Mowe tham 3
yirars

Taotad

|i] Undizputed Trade pagable - FSKE

([ Dridisputed Trade payably - Others

@01

o.oE

Tatal

0.01

o.0e

At at March 31, 2024

Dutstanding for following perlods from due date of payment

Particufars

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-1y=Brs

More than 3
ynars

Toaal

i) Undisputed Trade payable - BASWE

tii) Undisputed Trage payable - Others

9524

5534

Takal

55,24

95.24

There are ro disputed trade payables, hence the same is nal distlesed in the ageing schedule,
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Pierbed b Stardalons F |5 &% at March 11, 2025
1, In lwes)
13, Debd Secaritisd
. i FBaat Ay at
s March 31, 2025 Miarch 31, 2624
Unsieured =
Nor-conerilble debentures, 8t smaortited cast 2,00,000.00 o
Aod: Interest accrued bt nol due 2,155.46
Tatsl [A) 20115540 -
{i| Deb4 Securiies inindia 20L155 46 -
il Deka Socurilies ourside india - .
Tortal ] 2,02,155.96 La
131 Tewwns and Conditions
I Riat Axan
| Parieula Aarch 31, 3035 Mareh 31, 2024
B.52% pa, 20,000 Umneowred, rated; unllsted, redesmable, non converible 2.00,000.00 -
debantures haviog face value of As. 10,008,000 each
{Buliet repayrmerl rat bevend 5 yaads from Hiua dale L. Fubvuary L1, 20250
Total 2,00,000.00 i

Maturiy profile above & dsdlosed at face valuw whicl excludes the accreed interest pryabée on NCDS,

13,2 The compary has urilzed money cbtained by way af non-commertible deaentures sureg thi year fon 15 surpose for which they were chtained,

13.3 Additional disclosure pursuant ta Ind A5 7 [Debt securifies movement during the yesi]

Yaar anded Year enmesd
Particalsrs tarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Upering balance - z
Cashi tlows 2,000,006, 02
Mun casli changas® 2.165.46
Tatkal 2,02,155.46 *
® Man cash changes represents imeress arcnged but not due on NCDs.
14. Qther financial Eaulinies
Byay Azl
il March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Security depost 235 o]
L LiksSry dor exparses 20855 21573
L bt Matsilives 451 15 563
Total E53.99 BOEET
15, Proylslens
By al At
ERFL Parch 31, 2025 March 31, 2034
Frovisions for em benafis
- Gratuily n.od 2.17
- Leawe: h i 11E. 08 7430
- Duher nmployee benofits pryvablo 173.58 35071
Total LLEN]] &T0.18
16, Dwfuried tax llakelay [met]
Particul r; AERt #ul
ki March 31, 262§ March 31, 2024
Dhaferpeid i maek =
Predeninary expenses alowables u's 350 over a period of time ®71 13.81
|Expenses provided bul alluwatds in incame Tas o0 payment bisis iLn §i.1a
Proviion for Expectod oragll boss 113480 238,40
Dilfessntn botwsen hook deprecacion & rax deprociation 371 331
Aight of use lennhald sysets 1 357
Digfesrad foa Nobitiy
Unbilled rewerie Taxed oo bHlling F 6340 1,157.13
Falr valuation adjusimient of secaniy receipts 11,237.65 26108
Tatal 16,520.71 4 510,84
17. Other non finencial akilities
Asat Aial
P March 31, 2023 Atarch 31, 2034
StalLtany dues Ll 41089 13232
Total 41085 131.82
v '-:\G\
O N
= Ir Yia)
Ihefa |
* 1~I'L*H.-J'-.Iirhpn'j-lll #
SN Ja )
,?é\._“_‘__,_f i :‘.rflll
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

18, Equity share capital

[R5, Ir lacs}
Partlculars aom AR
arch 31, 2025 March 31, 1024
{a) Authorised capital
3, 75,00,00,000 equity shares of Az, 10/ each [Previows year z 2,75,00,00,000
equity shares of Bs. 10/ aach) 2.75,000.00 2,75.000.00
(B} Issund, subseribed & paid up
2,75,00,00,000 equity shares of Bs, 10+ gach, fully paid up {Prevaous Year -
2,75,00,00,000 squity shares of Bz, 10/ each, fully paid up] 2,75,000,00 275,000,000
lc] Reconcillation of the numbar of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Pariculars A at Ad
M_H‘I'I:h 31, 2025 Narch 31, 2024
Balarnce at the baginning of the year 2,75,04,00,000 1,40, 50,45,000
Issieed during the year - 1.34,04,55,000
Rudu:linn:dunng'rhe year - .
Balance at the end of the year 2,75,00,00,000 2,75,00 00,000

[d} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity shares: The Company has ane class of equity shares havirg a par value of As. 10/ per share, Each tharehalder is eligible for ope vote per share
hald, The dividend proposed by the Board of Diractors, if any, is subject w the spproval of the shareholders 0 the Annual General Mesting. In the
evant of liguldation, the eguity sharefslders are eligible to recelve the semaining assets of the Company after distribution of all prefesantial amounts
In progortsan to their shareholding,

|e) shares In respect of each class In the company held by its holding company or its ultimate bolding company Including shares hald by or by
subsidiarias or associates of the halding company or the ultimate holding company In aggregate :
MIL

{f) Detail of sharehalders holding 5 parcent or more

Particulars Al @l March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Hamae of Sharehobd Mo, of Shares haid % of holding Mo, af Shares hald % of halding
Canara Bank 33,00,00,000 12.00% 33,00.00,008 12 00%
State Bank of lndia 27,22,50,000 0.80% 27,23, 50,000 3.50%
Linlan Bank ol India 27,22.50.000 8.590% 27,22.50,000 5.50%
Bank of Baroda 27,22,50,000 5.890% _|::h?.2uu.um B.00%
Indian Bank 27,22,50,000 2.50% 27,22,50,000 9.50%
Fumjab Mational Bank 24,75,00,000 B.005% 2&,75,00,000 L0
Bank af India 24, 75,00.000 S.00% 2£,75,00,000 5.00%
Bank of Maharashira 13,75,00,000 5.00% 13,75,00,000 5003
|C:81 Bank 13,75,00,000 F00% 13,75,00,008 5.00%
ICIC] Bank 13,75,00,000 5.00% 13,75,00,000 5,005

e} The Campany does not have any promoters {as delingd under Sectlon 2{69) of the Companies Act, 2013].

(h) Shares reserved for lssue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares or dislavestment, Including the terms and amaunts

MIL

(1] Fer the period of e years mmedlately preceding the date at which the Balance Sheet is prepared:

- Apgregate number and class of shares allotted as fully pald up pursuznt to contrast without payment being recelved in cash;
- Aggregate number and class of shares sllotted as lully pald up by way of bonus shares; and

= Aggregate number and class of shares bought back

NIL

(I} terms of any securities convertible Into pguity shares issued along with the earliest date of conversion in descending ordor starting from the
farthiest such date
MIL

[k} ealls unpald [showing aggregate valun of calls unpald by directors and officers)
MIL

I} forfeitad shares [amount anginally paid up)
HiIL
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Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

184 Other equity

(s, In lacs)
B At ! Asat
s March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Retained earnings &3,712.73 1E 455 B4
Other comprehensiva incoma 5,98 143
Deberture redemption reserve 17,165.90 =
Closing balance &0, 588,51 18,459.27

i} Retained earings: These are the profits that the Company has earned 1l date, bess any transfer to génersl ieserve, statutary reserve, dividends ar
other distributions paid to shareholders,

11y other comprehensive income: This represents remeaziremeant of defined employer hanetit plans {net of tares).
jii} Debenture redemption reserve: The Companias Act 2013 requires companies that lssue debentures to create 4 debenturs redamption reserve

fram annual profits until such debentures are redeemed. The Company is required to transfer a specilied percentage (as provided in the Companies
fct, 2013) af the outstanding redeemahble debentures to debenture redemption reserve.

o

-

H pumaatn) .
b

-
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to the Standalone Financizls Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

[Rs. In lacs)
19.Fee & Cther related income
Wi Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 [ March 31, 2024
Management fees/Trusteeship fees 22,347.47 9,671.05
Recovery incentivas 3,245.86 537,33
Other related income - 2,641.36
Tatal 25,593.33 12,849.74
20.Interest income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on funded amount from Trust 520.95 650.00
Total 520,85 650.00
21.Met gain on fair value changes
particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Fair value changes - unrealised
On security receipls 34,264.20 10,385.33
Total 34,264.20 10,386.33
22.0ther income
Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Interest on deposits with banks 8,719.19 7.070.26
Interest on income tax refund - 20,34
Unwinding of interest on financial assets 6,60 6.19
Excess provision written back & others A473.58 .
Total 9,205.37 7.086.79
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MNational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
MNotes to the Standalone Financials Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

[Rs. In facs)
23, Finange costs
Particlar Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on debt securities 2,354,556 =
Commission on bank guarantee - 57.03
Interest on leass abligntions S6.80 70.54
GO guarantee commission 2,260.82 BES.51
Less - Aecoverable from trust's {2,260,92] |BE9.51)
Total 2,451.85 127.57
24, Fees and commission expense
Partieulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Management feos 2,400.00 | 1,800.00
Recovery linked fees 1,633.27 | -
Total 2,033.27 | 1,800.00
25. Impairment of financial instruments
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Feas and expenses 3,481.43 571.86
Total 3,481,483 571.86
26, Employes benefits expensa
; Year ended Year ended
la
b i March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Salaries and wages 1,058.86 1,196.74
Contribution to provident and other funds 8461 91.497
Staff welfare expenses 85.51 47.70
Total 1,732.98 1,338.41
27. Oopreciation, amortization and impairmant
particikars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Depreciation of tangible assets 32.63 19.77
Amortization of intangible sssets 10.18 10.23
Amaortization on right of use assets 147.31 147.71
Total 190,12 1771
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Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Motes to the Standalane Finoncials Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

[Rs. In lncs)
28, Unrealised fees & expenses written off
bR Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
|Unreafised expenses including interest on funded expenses 803.67 35790
|written off
Total #03.67 3,579.01
18, Other expanses
Year ended Year ended
Fticib Mareh 31,2025 | narch 31, 2028
Legal and professional charges 21297 395.05
Financial,Legal due dilipance & other expenses 274,47 1,086.94
Filing fees, stamp duty & registration Expenses 11.13 21823
Advertisement expense 12,24 1.31
Director sitting fees GEB.&9 67.31
Rent, taxes and @norgy onst 27,64 118,47
[Travelling, boarding & lodging expenses 95.24 6162
Insurance 10.05 12,05
Auditar's fees and expenses®
- hudit fees 10,22 10.53
- Tax audit fass 1.50 157
- Out of pocket 074 -
Repairs and maintenance 2199 10.62
Carporate social responsibillty expanses 163.87 o7
Miscellanocus expenses BE.O1 B3.45
Total 1,004,356 1,919.06

®Includes As 1.70 lacs paid to previous auditer
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MNational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Nates te Standalene Financlal $taterments as a1 March 31, 2025

30 The major campandnts of the tax experse for the year ended March 33, 2025 and March 31, 7024

{Rs. In lags)
&, Particulars Yoar ended Yuar anded
W March 31, 2025 March 31, 2028
Statemant ef profit & |oss
[T [1) Profit & loss section |
|
Curvent Income tax ;
Current Income tax charge 1.B68.4F 0842
Tax relating (o sarfisr years 79.658 55.40
|Deterred tax;
lﬂulahumurlshﬂhrum Tevpid o timporary dillerences 13,010,328 &, 287,18
| InCome TIx BN reported |n the stal t ed prodic & dasi 13,558,38 §.252.01
(np|Orher comprehensive income {01
Current insome tae :
Nt gain/ (kisd an remeaiurament of delined benehis plans .06 LIS
Income tan rted in OC1 DLEE 1.18

Reconciliation of tax expanie and the stcounting profit multiplied by india's domestic Tas rate $or the vear ended March 31,3028 and yezr erded March 31, 2024

[Fex. i faes)
5. Partioalars Yuar endud Faat wndwd
No. Mnteh 31, 2025 Flarih 31, 2024
1| Pral balars ta 56, 306.17 21,469.24
2| Applicable tax rate 25 1TH 25.1%%
3| PET * Apalicable tan e {172 14.193.27 5,403.78
4| Recenciling e
Dilferemse In tax for items which are not alliwed 2= deduction and cffect of deferred tax
fml|ema 1311.55) 192,77
|b)| Tax refating to it lier yuars 79,58 55.40
Tatal (EILHY 1152.37)
Tax recogrisad during the year (344) 13,558,148 525100

Componenis of defered tax assets and liabifities recognised |n Balance Slsat and Statament of prodic & joss lor yeas andad March 31,2025 B March 312024

1.5 onents of delermed tax {nseis)/ Hahilies (A5 In lazs)
Mo Parfioulars Balaner Sheat | Statoment of Prodit B Lot
|
As at Bz at Year enced Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 1024 | March 51,3018 | March 31, 2029
1| Difference In book and Income tae degresintion {!.?1] ro.ay_: 1504 12.63]
2| Preliménary enpenes {3.72) 115,410 271 -w!'.-"-’.-..
3] Expected credit loss 11,114,560 (232400 {875.21) 114333
q{Unbiked revenue s an Giling E.A53,40 Z,1597.13 4,2EE.27 1,8453.66
S {Falrvauatian adiustmunt ol security receists 11,237.05 1,814.01 883151 251403
E{Othiers [52.31) LT |5.51p (35,60
[et tax exp ik } I:2'.| 1201028 4,287.19
| Mot deferred tax [Assets)y Uaksilities 16,520.71 4,510.64 | |
Recancillitlon of the defesred 1ax eapense for the vear ended March 31, 2925 [As m lacs]
Sr. Particalars ﬂplﬂlnlﬂd.lﬂmilnﬂj Tax incoma/ [expense) | Tax bncome/ |exsensa) | Closing Balance Ak en|
Mo, April 01, 2028 :Mnl'ﬂm year recognised during the year Ptarch 31, 2025
staftement of Profitf Loss | recogrised statement
| wnder Prodit/Loss ssction | of Profit) Lass under
£ OC| e ction |
1]DiMerance in boak and income tax d=predation |21y 1350} - t2.720]
2 |Preliminary exuenes (19413 871 = [B.ﬂii
3 |Ewppctnd crodic loss i {208 40 (B76.21] = {1, 108604
4 |Unbdfed revenue taxed on billing 2,197.13 4, 266.07 - ,Aa83.60
5 |Falr vabuation ad|ustment of securlty reeeipts 2614038 862351 - 11,237 565
&{Othars {4270} 18511 - {5231}
Total 4,510.04 12,010.28 = 16 AT0.71

i 3 i‘—.‘_l
o | LI Bhl-ﬂij % |
9 !
-
: "I;ﬁ:'
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Recancllation of the dal d tan far the year ended Maech 31, 2034 (R, in lace]
5F, Partleulars Cpening Balarce ason|  Tax incomef {expensa) | Tae Income/ jexpense] | Closing Balamce as an
M April 01, 2023 | during the year retogriind duiring tha year Mdarch 31, 2024

statement of Profit! Less | recognised statement
under Proft/Lass seetlom | of Profia) Loss under
Ol sectson
1| Difference in boak sad income tax depracadion 4L | [163) . jo.a1)
2| Prelitnindey empenes [FERF] &7 - {18:41]
3| Espesied credit lnss [2e.47]] {143.93) - [238.40)
4| Unbiled revanue tamd on bling 353,47 | 1,/43.56 - 2,197.13
5 |Falr valuation adjustment of serunty recelpts - | 1.614.03 151a.03%
&|Othars {9,058 |33.66)) - 42,70
Tatal 123.26 | 4,287.39 - 4,510,484
There ae na items on which defered tax atset has pal been cecapnised in (be Balsnce Shee
31 arriings per share [EPS)
Year ended Year ended
Farticubars March 31, 3028 March 31, 2024

Predit £ Lo atiribatable 1o sguily shassholdess far basic diluted earnings per-skare 4343579 | pLal ek |

alter tax (As. bn lacs)

Mo of shares HM.UE‘.WH 2, 75,00, 1,000

Welghted avstage noo of ecuity shares oulstanding during the year fus Baslef dilutid 2.75,00,C0, 000 1.82,32.23,790

marnings per thare |

EPS [Baskcand Dihded - As. pershare) 154 03

Hominal value per shore - By, per share 1003 1000

51 Employes Banefils;
Emploves benelits incluge Prowdent lund, Persinn, Grajuity and Comperssied abrences,

i} Defined contribution plans:

These are plans in which the Compary pays pre:defined amounts to separate funds snd does rol hoe amy lugal or informad ooligation to pay adddions? suma. These eomarcas of eeniriutioes
1o the Employees” provident fund and Pension fumd _ The company’s payments 1o the definad eppribation plans ars reported a: cspenaes ie the year inowhoch the smployees parform the
serwees that the payment covers. Duting the carrent year, on steount of Defined corribution alans, thi Company has charged Re.7334 Bes (Previois year: ALB1.33 [aes] To Statement of
prafit & loss.

Ii} Defined henefit plans:

Espanses for defined benefit plans are caloulated as at pach balance sheet date by indesendent sciusiss (except for casual leave on actuals). These commilenents afe walied M the preient
valug.of 1he expestod Future with cansideraticn for cafculated future salary Incresies, g 4 giscount rase corresponding to the Intorest rafe estimated by the actuiy having
regard to tho Intorost rate on gavernment bonds with a remaiing term that is almost squivalent o the average balance working period of employess. Incramentsl lishifty haiec an the
prajected wnit credit method o at the reporting dats, i charged ta the Satement of pralit and base. The actuarlal gaire { Iosses are acoounted in the Steemint of preditand base Exces of {alr

value of plan assets aver defined beneht obiigation & not recognised an grewids al pradence.

Tha Company makes & provisios for graully ard compeaiated aboemees based on actuarial reports (Escept arovislon Tof casual lesve of By 1453 lazs),

[A] Gransng

The principal assumptions used Tor the purpeses of the actuasial vafuations were a3 fallows,

{Fs: i tres)
Particulars As o Mbasch 31, 2025 Az at March 31, 2020
Discousi N!_E]M & 50% p.a. 11—@“-.?.—'.'.‘..
Expeciud ranofs] of salary i THpd, X pa.
Amounts rocagnised i the statement of profit and lass in respect of these defined beneflt plans a2 as folinws
[Pa. in foes)
Particulars Ais 8t Maseh 3, 2075 Bx at Manch 31, 2024
Service costn
Current sevvice cost 1165 1051
Past service past and {painitlosy fram seltlements = =
Net imberest fepenie (A5] 011
e ety of defined beneflt costs recogrised in proflt or loss 11,20 1062
Anmeaturement on the net defined benafit liability:
Retiirn on plan ssers [eaclnding amounis inphaded i net Inteeest cdponso| 0.5 0,24 |
Artuaris fgesns} [ losses arising leom changes in learcial . 045 a43
Actusris! (esins) f losses arising lram experince sdjusimons 1445 1535
Companenis of defined hanafit costs rec Im okher perect hee [ncame [E41] (a,53|
Tatal .78 .03
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The ameunt Included in The bilanee sheet arlsing frem the Company’s caligation in respect af {is defined beoelm plans is as folaws:

(. i s
Partiodlars Az 2t March 31, 2638 A5 91 March B, 2024
Predent vabue af lunded delined henafin cbiigaticn 24.37 15.13
Fair valus of plan ausats 12230 (1896
riet fanded obligati o.M aiy
Present wahue al unfunded defined bensedil abligation - .
Nt Nnbility asiing from delined hienefit obilgation f.08) 017
[T i Im (ke prasent value of e defined bannfit [ are ns fallows, [, ?mbEL
Particulars A3 at March 31, 2035 A5 at March 31 2024
Oprning defimed henefit obilg 15.1% B.B0
Cuvrent service cask 11.65 0,51
interest cost 109 0.6
|Remezsurement oniesi
|Acbuarial grirg and fesies rising Iim ehanges In demsograghic sssumptions . -
Actuatiel gairn and levies arisihg fram changes in finantlal [ 036 .43 |
sigvaarial gales and hovies arlsing 1rom erperence adju (4.6 |5 6]
|Ennadits paid I -
| Dosing defined benafit obligation 24,37 15.13
Movements in the fsir value of the plas siiets are as fallows, [As. M docs)
PFarticulars A% at March 31, 2005 A5 at Masch 31, 2024
E,Penlng_falrulupnl plan assets 14.90 -
Empl cantributian Ty 14,65 |
1Ir|.'herﬂ1:nn plan asseis 1.54 .55
Retarn on plan assets excludirg amounts included in intenest income {0.05) |m22}
Benefits pald = -
astens distrbuted an sarlemens ! T
Clusing fair valwe of plam adiets 24.30 10,94 |
[As. 4n loes}
Comngery of assets Az 2t March 31, 2025 iz a March 31, 1024
Podicy af mswrance 24.30 14.95
Total 24.30 14,85

Nisks associated with defined benefin plan

Is d bo the follovwing risks:

Gratulty Is @ defined bemefit plan and o

Intesast rate plsk: & fall in the discoust rate which |s linked 19 the Giec. Aate will mcregs= the present valoe of the Usailing requisiag higher provision. & fall in the discoant rate generally
wereases the mark to market value of The atsets depending an the duratian of aszes,

Salary Righ: The present valioe of the dalined bovalit plan liability bs @lcuiated by reference to the Tuture salaney of membees, &4 such, an ncrease in she salary of the members more than
assurmid kevel will Increase 1he alan's Habliny,

Inyestment [tisk: Trve present walue of the defined Benefin alan labilay is calculaned weing o dsooan rane which s determaned by reference 1o mirken peldi ot the énd of tha regarting pericd

an gorvennment Bonids, 11 the setern un plan eeet i bafow s rata, it will create a plan dedict. Currently, far the plan in india, i Bas & relsively Balanced min of invgsaments In governmant
securitien, wnd arser debt intraments.

Aaat Liability Matehing R The alen faces tha AL riek a5 1o the matching cash flow. Since the poan (5 imvested in fines af Ruie 101 of income Tax Ruales, 1962, inls generally reduces ALk
Tk

Martality Risk: Since the bere(its under the plan s not payable for life ime snd payahble Gl rsieemenr 3ge anly, pian dans rat have any longevily risk.

Cancentratian Hisk: Plan i having a concentration risk a5 8l the esiets ase fnvesoed with the insurarce company and 2 defaslt will wipe uut all he asiats. Althaugh prosabilay of this B very
less 3 Insurance compan ey have 1o Tollow fegulatory padeling.

Semsitivity Anabysh SN . i )
Partioulars ¥ear ended Wear encded
Piarch 31, 2025 Masch 31, 2024
Defined benedit abligation an increase in 50 bps in Discount rate 23.18 14.29
Defined benedit abligation on increase in 50 bos in Salary sscalation e 2502 1534
Impact ol increass in 50 bps in Discownt rate on DBO £ 915 | -5 5d4%
Impact of increase in 50 bt In Sslacy escalation rat= an OB0 6% 1434
Defined benedit obligation on decresse in 50 bps in Discount rate 2560 1603
Defined benefit ohligation an decresse in 50 bps in Salary esealarion re 2367 14.87
Impact of decrease in 30 bpi in Dicount rate un DBD 51T 5.095%
Impaet of decranse in 50 bps in Seady sscstarion rate an 08D -LHBH -1LETH
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aturity Frofile of Belined Benedit Plons (Rs: dn doea )
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting Year nhaled Year ended
fnrch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

| 141 fallawing year 015 o7
[2nd fcliowing year nis o.0s |
Jrd fallawing year 0.7 .03 |
Ath fallowing ves 11s 051
5th Fallowing veas 115 075
Sum of years 5 To 10 & above 12.13 mrr
|8} Compenseted abrencey:

a] Axyely & Linbililies recngnized in the Fenancal Slatement (1. dn ko)

Particulars AE at March 31, 2005 At at March 51, 2024

Mon-curnsnt Fabilties S0.50 7059
Current Kabilitiey 25._1_! 3.32
Tartal 116.08 7430

Bl Actuarial assumptiong

Paricalars &5 ak March 31, 3095 &% a1 March 31, 2024

Dizcouni rate BT ',r_&
"'!."!.'3 Excalation rads 7.0 7.00%
| Aritian tate -

|Ape - 35 & helow 5,007 5.00%
Ape - 75 Lo 35 yeary .00 5.00%
| Age - 35 to 45 yaars 3.00% 40T
| A - 45 1w 55 ywars 2.00% 2005
Age - 55 A aboun 2.00% 2.00%

3.1 Indormation about the ansets scquired under (BE Including type snd valise of assets acguired, the sector wise distibution based an buslress of the carporats deblor

Year of scquisltlon

Type

Walue of axsets siguired
[ cmuititinn enst]

Seever ol the business

FY 3031374

Dbt of AFS]

Rs.2400 Crores

[T

33.1 Implentation status of the Aesalution plans approved by the adjudiesting autharlty an a quassdy basls

{n persuance of Aesaree Bank of indiz notificatian Dof.SI6, FINREC T3,/ 26.03,000/2022-23 dated 11 Qowber 2022, during FY2023, the Company appfied Tar a5 a
Resclution Applicant and was swbseguently dectared as tha Sutcesfil Resalusins Applicant [SRA) under the Corparate Inscluancy Resolution Procuss (CIRP) of Srel
inifragtructure Finance Liméted {"SIFL") and Srei Equipmend Finange Limived ["SEFR), The rasalution plan submitted by the company had aparavied by Nationad Comaany
Law Trikisnal [MELT] am 11 Adgust 2023, S84 appoimed Anaeds had tmien ovor contral of bath the companies with effect from 26 Feliruary 2024,

SRET's pdmatod deht expnsure undes CIRP was aparox A5.32,815 Crores. The same was backsd by e asiets alvanced by th teo NBST entities, Srel Infrastiictise
Financa Limited [“5IFL"} and Srel Euipnyent Fimamce Limited |["SEELT).

Bocovery B progresding g pée erisaged timulings wader the R
il retaueries from the laans extended by SEFL

2l P'IH. B

=The 5 tistesd Re, 2,400 Cr wilki HCELSR covar bedng 188 (8506/2400) with rating grade of BRE by CATSIL
=The sirrons aulsianding SAs af ~&s 1,001 Cr a5 an Masch 31,7025,

*Talil recoverias for AFCs ol dala =g 4,302 Cr

=y farward [5 10 ensure H_udgmpﬂun of balance MCOs.

*MEBFL license from BB for 51FL has baen obtained an Fﬂ.: fek i RS

% beamm at 1he company with bossd sversighn i foemubating strategies Tor
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34

[As. In lazs)
Category wise Firancial Assets and Financtal Uahilites
As at March 31, 3025
Falr vailie
Particulars Amartised Cost PTRL FeToc Tatal
I:.lrl'!l|l1[ dalue
|Financis| Assels
+ Cash & Cash Equivalents 52,135.63 = = 52133.53 |
- Bank Balarea ard stler thas Carh & Cash E0,675.35 . 55 67655
|Equivalents
- Tradde Recelvahle 11,973,685 - 41 97965
- investmenis in Seousi iy Recaipts - 4,17 330,73 a 4,17,230.71
« investments in Equity 4503 AR00
- Depasits 16569 & - 103,58
- Aumeim Recovarabie frorm Trugts and Othars 3,962,687 = | = 3962.67
Tatal 1,37,900.39 4,17,230.73 | + 5,55, 132.72
|
Financlal Liabilites |
-Trade payable [ - I . [
= Dbt Securitios 20215546 202 155 48
- Gneusity Deposh 135 - - P ]
- Linkilery fur ang 059 - - 20059
- Linkility For Innses 45115 | - = 45115
Total 2,07 BO0S.46 | « | = 2,02.805.46
i At March 31, 1024
Falr unlue
Particulary Amortisod Cosk FUTRL | EVTOIE Tatal carrying
1 sl
[Fir inl Assnes 1
- Caih & Caih Eguivalants 93,131.85 - : 93,131.85
- Bank balance and other than Cash & Cash 10,155.79 ~ = 12,199.75%
Equbialonts
= Trade Aecolvabls 7.B4002L | - - 7.840,31
~Ivemstrmunts in Seour ity Receipts == = | 1,85,218.65 - 185,218.65
- Irrrestments bn Equilty AE.03 | = - 4600
- Dupasits 10508 - = 10209 |
= Awmiint Racoyerabie from Trusts and Others 1,529.58 - 1,929.58
Tatal 1,27, 85652 185,218,065 : 1.08.075.17
Financisl Liahllitles
- Trade payable = 3534 = - 95,24
= Seourity Depoilt 7.25 = 725
= Liabllity for sspenses 215.7% = - 219,79
= Liatility for leases 530,63 - > STH.ET
Tatal 80191 - - 901,94 |
Fadr Vialuw measurements recogndsed on the Balance Sheet
Asat March 31, }02%
Parklculars Lewell | Level 2 [T Total
Financial Assets
= ipvestmpent in Sis P | = 4,17,290.73 & 17 230,73
A at Mirch 31, 2124
Particulars Level 1 Livel 7 Leweld Tatal
Financiol Assets
- Inuestment in SAs - = 1 65, 21R.65 1,85,218 65

Reconclation of Level 3 Fair value

Partlzifars Ineestment in |
SRs

Baldrice as at March 31, 2033 54.968.28
Add; Net gain an faif velie chings insluded s l.D.!BM!-'
Staternent of Profit B Loss [Unrealized) |
Add: Irsestment mede during the year 1,25.440.25 1
Leas: Hndnmplﬂnnl"lmuﬂn:nﬂdmmﬂu year {5,5?5\.!1]!.
Less: Tranadas ot af Lovel 3 Al |
Balonpe s ol Masch 31, 2024 1,85,218.55 ;
Agdd: Net gain an Fair vabue ehangs inzloded in 34, 254.20 |
Statement of Profit B Loss (Unrealised)
Add: immstment made during the year 2 83, 690,64
Less: Redermption af | s dusring the vear | 35,942 76
Liss: Transfor out of Level -
Baliroe # ol March 31, 2025 4,17.230.73 |
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L

Sermaltivity Anslysin

{Rs. Im Eacs]

For the falrvabuns of Investmant in 377, ressonably possible changes at the regorting date to ane of the significant unchserabie inpa, heldiag suther nputs sorstant, would kave the fallawing sflect,

bagad an roalisation
of collaterals valus

Ll

Imcrease/Decrease | Sensitivity impact furthrmr Sensitivity Impact for the year
Imikin erded March 31,1325 ended March 31,2004
Falr value as ot | Fadrvalue as at Slgnidlcant wnabgirvibis  |Fair Value Fair ¥alue Falr Value  |Fair Value
Nature of March 31,2015 | March 33,2034 vable inpuks Input Increase Decrease Increass Deorease
Imeestmant (m Sesurity Aecaips 4,17,230,73 1,E5,21B.55 (Fatimatad cash flow " 18 EF9.01 18528.01 871182 874162

This ekplaing tho judgments and estirata mada in datarmining tha Fair Value of financial Instruments that are ja) recogrised and messurec 81 Fair Valoe |B] measwmd s amanised eost and far which a0
values wre disclesnd i ihe liransal satements. The faér valis hlerarelry [ basad an Inputs ta vatustion techréques that ane used to measure fair value thok are either obaervable of unobservakle and

caniat of lallowing three bevels!

Lewel 1 ¢ Leved Thierarchy inchades financial instnanents messured using quoted price, This irchides lated sguity shares, taded bands, mutual furds, ez, that have guotes price.

Lewed 3 1 The Fair value of finapcial Instrumaents that are not traded bn acthve maret (s determined usng vahustion techriques which masximéae the uis of akienabln market dia and rely as imls passibls
an antity specific estimates. |fall sigrifizant inputs reguired fer detarmining fairvatue of an financial instrument are absardable, the imstrument I includes in Laved 2,

Lewgl 3 : 1f one ar more of the significant input s fat based on observable market data, the instrurment 15 included jr Level 3.

Valuation Methodaologies

Investments in Secirity Receipts: The Companies investments primarily consists of Investmants in 5. Falf valus of isvestisnts 0 Sacurity Recelpts are cassified a5 Fair Value through Profit & loss, and
are determined using MAY by fleteng Sgencies a5 soscifled by BB Gudebnes and are dassifed a1 Level 3. The ratings ate Baied an teccweny mting sealn.

Cases which fall undes planning periad as defmed by the AB1 guidelines for 55/, cost of Securdy Receints are coni'darnd as falr valus,

Maragement hos assessad that all financial assets and {irancial labilibes meansed ot amaortised cost spprogimates thais Fadr valus,

Maturity anafysis of ass=ts & labilities

The takle bejow shows an aritysis of ssseis and liabillies analyied according 1o when they afe sxpssted 1o be recovered or saitlsd.

[ 10 Yarsn
March 31,3015 March 31,2024
Particulars Less than 1 year| Mare than 1 year Total Leasthan 1year | Motethanl Total
| yEAr
Hinamcal assets
Cash and cash equevalents 52,133.63 - 52,138.61 o5,1%1.85 - §3.135.85
Hank balance other than cash and cash aquivalanis 58,676.35 £9,676.95 10,193,049 - 10.183.79
Trads Aeenlvabies 17, 624 3,974.41 21373865 T.TAL 89 S5&.32 7021
Eméestmeris 38, 617.26 3,78,655.47 4,17.375.73 58,657.39 1,35,507.36)| 1,85 0648 65
Qther financial assers 280,48 Bd1.88 &7 36 147601 152.66 L&36.E7
1,71,656:88 3 ES47E.T0 5,55,190.72 1.72.006. %4 L25.868.24| 29807517
Man-fimanclal assets —— i
Current tax assats iret} 2 25351 25251 : 1750 175.30
Praparty, plart sai sguipnant - 49630 416:30 - 4781 Ba7.81
Ciher intangible assets f 3.al 331 - 33 ]J___I;_'
Other non-financial dxiets 1357 - 134.57 - 75245 plor ]
134.57 15113 BAG.6Y * 1,596.95 1.598.55
i
Toital assets L.75,782.53 3,84,227.88 5,56,015.41 1,72.306.54 | 1,77,467.19] 1.99,674.12
Rearch 31,2005 Harch 31,2024
Particdlars Less tham 1 year| More than 1 year Tatal Less than 1 yaar ] Mors than 1 Totad
| yEEF
Financial Eahilities |
Trads payabies .01 F 0,01 5524 - 95,24
Debe Seeurities 215548 200,000,080 4,02.155.46 | ho %
Cithar finarclal llabites 251,258 0265 654,00 223 371 4L8.4p BOE.67
150682 2,00,302.65 2,02, 805.47 44251 az3.40 BOLa1
|Mea-financial llakbilitos 1
Erovisions 208.78 .58 ELERES 593,021 TL1E BT0.18
Cafarred taa |isbifities |net] = 16,520.71 16,520,71 Gl | 4,51044 A,510.44
Qther nan-financial liabillties £10.08 - 410,89 132.2] = 13232
09,65 16,611.68 17,321.34 i34, 458180 531254
Tatal llakilllies 3, 11647 1,16,914.3% 2.20,130.81 LI79.55] 503500 5,214.8%

Fer the assats and liabiities mentioned abave where na contractual matwrity s awaiale, the mapagement has dane ar sseismem b arrive at the probabln maturity timeline based o same

assurnplions and estimatos.
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37 Related Party Transactlons

A5 per Ind A5 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, the relajed party where control exists or where signilicent influence exisis and with whom

transactions have taken

place are as belaw:

37.1 Name & relationship with related parties:

iz

Assoclates

Srel Infrastructure Finance Limited (w.e.f Dec 27,2023}

NARCL Trust - 0007 (w.e.f Dec 08,2023}

Key managedal persannel

Mr F Santhash
Mr.Natarajan Sundar
MrAsindam Biswas
Mr.Kapil Sand

Dther related partles
MrDhwakar Gupta

B3 Malyika Sinha

A AJit Krishnan Nair
B Richard Mendanca
Br Xarnam Sekat

Bde Subrata Blswas
Mr.Jetha Hand Chopra
Mr.Aakesh Singh
M3, ¥ N Maya

Mr Vikram Duggat

Enterprise over which significant Influence exerclsed

Srel Equipment Finance Limlted |w.e.f Dec 27,2023)

Emplayee Bonefits Trust
NARCLEmployees Group Gratuity Scheme Trust

Managing Director & CEQ (w.e.f fan 16,2024
Managing Director & CEO [Up to Jan 04, 2024)

Chicl Finance Oificar
Company Secretary

Independent Director (w.ef Nov 28,2023}

Independent Director

Nominee Direcior (Up to Nov 30,2024)

Independent Director

Independent Director (Up 1o Aug 19, 2023]
MNominee Director (Up to Sept 30, 2023)
Nominee Director (Up to Sopt 20, 2023)
Hominee Directar (Up 1o Mar 10, 2024)
Mominee Director (w.e. Dec 27,2028)
Hovninee Director [w.e.f ran 27,2025)

(R, Inlaes)

Partlculars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Key mansgerial Hey managerial
Enterprise over which parsonnel [ Cther Enterprise over which| personnel / Other
Assoclates signilicant Influence related Assoclates significant influence related
wxarchiad partles/Employee axerclsed parties/Employee
Senafits Trust Benefits Trust
Tronsgctions with reloted porties
LIncame
Fres bitled during the yeor & Other reloted income
MNARCL Trust - 0007 558262 = 182155 . =
Srei Eauimem Finance Limited - = = 2541.35
Inteteat income
MNARCL Trust - 0007 = = 052 = =
1.40 s 293 %
f = P - 3,22
= 2E9.07 298,40
= - - 60,000.00 -
Sred Infrastructure Finance Limited = & = 46.00 =
IV.Redemption during the year
NARCL Trust - DDO7 {Security Receipts| 30,406.80 = L2 457280
V.Cantribution to Gratuity Trust
MARCL Employoos Group Gratuity Scheme Trust T.ED E_E;
2502060 = 55.4327.40 =
46.00 b 46.00
166.27)) - - 1174.53] - -
= . [162] 5]
NARCL Employees Group Gratuity Scheme Trust £ 2430 -

Motes

) Redated pary relationship is as Identified by the management and refiod upon by the auditons.
bl Mo amounts in respect of refated partes have been written offf wrinen back during the year ar has not made any provislon for doubitful debis/ recelvable.

] Related party ransactions have been disciosed on basls of value of transactions in terms of the respectve contracts.

dj Relmbursement of expenses has not been considered for disciosure,

with key

are those

Key

[ other related panties of the Campany

power to directy o

wi hive the authority and resg

Indirectly contral the activities of thy company and fis emplayees.

for planning and

Thie following table provides the total amount of tranvactions, which have been entered inlo with key management persennal { athar
related partied for the rilevant financial year:

Remuneration te KMPs*

Partlculars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Director Sitting Fees (o other related parbes 54.80 E1.00
1E3.75 21644
1052 13,36
263,07 25840

* Aemuneration Tof the year ended Mareh 31,2025 includes variable companent of previous year paid during current year,
# Remuneration excledes gratuity and leave encashment banefits a5 a llabifity b accounted for company as 8 whole,
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3B Fimancial Risk Management

The Company s exposed to market risk, eredit risk and liquidity risk, which may impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The Company
has a risk management policy to manage and mitigate these risks.

Market Risk
Market risk Is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises

of foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, The Company is primarily exposed to Interest rate risk.

[} Foreign Curr RI

Forelgn Currency Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises of fareign currency risk and interest exposure 1o the risk of changes in exchange rate as there are no off-shore business
transactions.

{ii] interest Rate Risk

Interest Rate Risk is the rsk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates, The Company's Investments are primarily in fixed deposits and security receipts issued by trusts, The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes is market rates relates primarily to the Company's debt obligations with fixed Interest rates. Hence the Company is not significantly
exposed ta interast rate risk,

Credit Risk

Financial Instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of Credit risx conslst principally of trade recelvables, unbilled
revenue, investment securities and other recoverable from trusts. By their nature, all such financial instruments invohee risks, including the
credit risk of non-parformance by counterpartias i.e. trusts. Howewver, the Company being trustee of all the trusts managed by it, the priority of
receivables) outstanding = a priority as per the watesfall machanism defined Trust Deed/ Offer Document. Hence, the Company is not

significantly exposed to credit risk.

Liquidity Risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting Its obligations asseciated with financial liabilities. The investrment
philosophy of the Company s capital preservation and liquidity in preference to returns. Although the investments in security receipts are not
tradable in market, the Company consistently generates sufflicient cash flows from aperations and has access to other sources of funding to
meet the financial obligations and maintain adequate liquidity for use.

Reconclliation of gross carrying amount

A) Trade receivables R L RET
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gross carrying amaount (Gpening balance) B,729.87 1,404,284
Add: Drigination of the trade receivables during the year 25,503,133 10,208.37
Less: Recoverles from trade receivables durlng the year B,638.93 Z,H82.94
Less: Trade receivables written-off/ {write-back) - -
Gross carrying amount [Closing balance] 25,684,27 8,729.87
B} Funded interest - clubbed under recoverable from trusts (Rs. In lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gross carrying amount [Opening balance) SE0.06 1,61
Add: Assets originated 468,85 5B5.01
Less: Met recoveries from trusts 14.8% 6.56
Less: Met assets written-off/ [write-back} 435,51 £
Gross carrying amount [Closing balance) 598,51 5E0.06
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C) Funded Expenses - clubbed under Recoverable from Trusts

Particulars Az at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gross carrying amount (Opening balance) 1,006,856 20607
Add: Assets originated 5,120,73 5,547.85
Less: Net recoveries from trusts 1,677.53 1,168.05
Less: Met assets written-off/ {write-back) 368.16 3,579.01
Gross carrying amaunt {Clasing balance) 4,081,290 1,006.86
Reconciliation of expected credit loss [ECL)
A) Trade receivables [Ris. In lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 tiarch 31, 2024
Impairment loss allowance {Opening balance} BES.06 374.88
Changes in Impairment loss allowance due to -
add: Origination of the trade receivables during the year 2,822.08 516.32
Less: Recoveries from trade receivables during the year 1,12 1.54
Change in estimates - -
Imparrm:nt |oss allowance [Closing balance) 3,710.62 BEO.66
8} Funded Interest - clubbed under recoverable from trusts {Rs. In facs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Impairment loss allowance [Opening balance) 57.56 0.47
Changes In loss allowance due to -
Add: Assets originated 29.26 57.09
Less: Net recoveries from trusts 0.34 0,00 |
Less: Net assets written-offf [write-back) - |
Charnge in estimates - -
Impairment loss allowance [Closing balance) BE&.4H 57,56
C) Funded Expenses - clubbed under recoverable fram trusts {Rs. In lacs)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Impairment loss allowance {Opening balance} - -
Changes in loss allowance due to -
Add: Assets originated 631,55 -
Less: Net recoveries from trusts - -
Less: Met assets written-offf [write-back) =
Change In estimates = -
Impairment loss allowance [Closing balance) 631,55 =

Operational Risk

The Company contrals operational risks 1o ensure that operationzl losses {financial or reputational), including any related to cenduct of

business matters, do not cause material damage to the Company.
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Reputational Risk
The Company protects is reputation from material damage by ensuring that any business activity is satisfactorily assessed and managed by the
appropriate level of management and governance oversight.

Compliance Risk
The Company has no appetite for breaches in laws and regulation, while recognising that, regulatory non-compliance cannct be entirely
avoided, the Company strives to reduce this to an abselube minimum,

38 Corporate social respansibility

Thie Company has constituted a CSR committee as required under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, together with relevant rules as
prescribed In Companles |Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Aules, 2014 [*CSA rules’). The Compsany has framed the CSR policy and has
identified the CSR initiatives and the methodology for spending the same to ensure appropriate end use of funds so spent.

|As. inlacs)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

a) Amount reguired to be spent by the company during the year 163.87 xR
b} Amount of expenditure incurred 163.B7 3107
c) Shortfall at the end of the year - =
d) Total of previous years shortfall 2 =
e} Reason for shortfall - 2]
f} Mature of CSR activities Healthcare, Social lssues | Healthcare, Social Issues
gl detalls of related party transactions -
hj where a provision is made with respect to a lability incurreg by =
entering inte a contractual obligation, the movements in the orovislon
during the year shall be shown separately.

Particulars

40 Revenue from contracts with customers
Disaggregated revenue

The tabla below represents disagzregated revenues from contracts with customers by type of services, geographical market and timing of
revenue recognition, The Management believes that this disaggregation best deplets how the nature, amount, timing and wncertainty of its
revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

{Rs. in lacs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Type of Services
Fees & atherincome 25,593 33 12,8459.74
Tetal revenue from contract with customers ' 25,593.33 12,8448.74
Geographical Markets
India 25,593.33 12,849.74
Outside India = -
Total revenue from contract with customers 25,583.33 12,849.74
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferrad at @ point in time - .
Services transferred over time 25,553.33 12,849.74
Total revenue from contract with customers 25,593.33 12,849.74
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Contract balance
[Rs. In lacs)
Particulars Asat | As at |
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Trade Receivables 25,684.27 | B,729.H7

41 Contingent Liability, Commitments and lease arrangements

41.1 Legal claims

There are no legal claims against the company as on March 31, 2035 & a5 an March 31,2024,

41.2 Contingent liabllities

There are no contingent liabilities as on March 31, 2025 and as on March 31, 2024.

41.3 Lease commitments - Company as a lessee

The company has entered into commercial leases for premises . Future minimum lease payments under non-canceliable leases as at 31 March

are, as follows:

{Rs, In lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within 1 year 19228 185.40
After ane year but not mare than five years 326.25 518.53
Mare than 5 years - -
This note provides information for leases where the company |s a lessee.
Right of use assets |Rs. In lacs)
i Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening 541.62 682.33
Additlon - =
Deletion/Adjustment {6.85) =
[Depreciation expense {147.31) [147.71)
Closing 387.46 541.62
Lease Liability [Bs. In lacs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening - 579,63 694,48
Addition - -
Deietion/Adjustment [6.85)
Accretion of interest 56.89 70.54
Payments {178.52) {185.40]
Closing 451,15 579.63
The statement of profit or Inss shows the following amounts relating to leases
{Rs. In lacs)
Particulars Year ended Yearended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on right of use assets 147,31 147.71
Interest on lease liabllity 56,89 70.54
Total 204.20 21B.25
-Z;I:_}’xl
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42 Capital management

The primary objective of the Company for its capital management is to ensure that It complies with externally imposed capital requiremen...
and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to suppaort its business and ta maximise shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividend payme
te shareholders, return capital to sharehalders or issue capital securities.

The Company's strategy Is to maintain eptimum gearing ratio. The gearing ratios are as follows:

[Rs in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash/ Bank balance as per Books 52,133.63 93,131.85
Bank balance ather than Cash and Cash Equivalents 59,678.35 10,199.79
Borrowings {Dabt Securities) 2,02,155.46 £
Met Deht 1,50,021.84 -
Total Equity 3,35,888.61 2,93,459.27
Debt/ Equity Ratio 0.60 -

43 There are no forelgn currency transactions during year ended on March 31, 2025 & year ended on March 31, 2024,

44 The Company has operation in single business segment and hence there are no separate reportable segments to be disclosed under ind ...
108 - "Operating Segments”

45 There are no subsequent events between the year ended March 31, 2025 and signing of the Financial Statements as on June 13, 2025 whir*
have material impact on the financials of the Campany.

46 Other additional regulatory information

46,1 Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the Company
The Company do not have any immaovable properties where title deeds are not held in the name of the company.

46,2 Loans and advances
There are no loans or advances in the nature of loans which are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined

under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person that are:
|a] repavabie on demand or
{b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

46.3 Details of benami property held
The Company do not have any benami property, where any proceeding has bean initiated or pending against the company for holding ap

8enami property.

464 Security of current assets against borrowings )
The Company has na borrowings from banks or financial institutions an the basis of security of current assets.
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46,5 Wilful defaulter

The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

A6.6 Relationship with struck off Companies

The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

46.7 Registration of charges or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

46,8 Ratios
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Capital to risk-weighted assets ratjo [CRAR} 74.8B4% 142.93%
Tier | CRAR 74.84% 142.93%
Tier || CRAR MA MNA&
Liguidity Coverage Ratio 18284.67% 23098.31%
Debt Equity Ratio 0.60 A
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 3.29 P

CRAR = Total Cépital,ﬂ' Risk Weighted assets

Tier | CRAR = Tier | Capital / Risk Weighted assets

Tier || CRAR = Tier Il Capital / Risk Weighted assets

Liguidity Coverage Ratio = High Qwallty Liquid Assets/Short-term obligations Tor naxt 30 days

Debt Equity Ratio : Debt Securities/Met Warth

Debt Service Coverage Ratio ; Profit before Interest & Tax /{Interest expense+ Principal Repayment in next 12 month 5}

46.9 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium;

46.10.

(A) During the year, the company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or antity{ies), including foreign
entities {Intermediaries] with the understanding that the Intermediary shall;
(iy directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identitied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company

[Ultimate Beneficiaries)
i} provide any guarantes, sécurity or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries,

(B} During the year, the Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including forelgn entities (Funding Party) with
the understanding [whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in othar persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate beneficiaries) or

{ii} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Undisclosed income
The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961).
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46,11 Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current financial year.
47 The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

48 The Company does not have entered inte any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

49 The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment {including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets during the current r

previous year.,
50 The Financial Statement is prepared in accordance with Division U0 to Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, The line items as per

prescribed format are not applicable to company and items which are applicable to company but having nil balance in the current ar
previous reporting period are not disclosed in this financial statements.

&1 Investor Education and Protection Fund
There is no amount required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

52 The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directars on June 13, 2025,
53 Disclosures as per the directions of Reserve Bank of India are given in Annaxure |.

54 Previous year's comparatives
Previous years figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary,to conform to the current year's presentation.

Signature to Note no. 1 to 54

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Pk ol WY M

Diwakar Gupta P Santhosh
Chairman MD & CEO
DIN: 01274552 DIM: D8515964
X é n =
fEELE
Arindam Biswas Kapil 5oni
Chief Financial Officar Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 13, 2025
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Annexure |

The fallowing additional disclosures have been made taking inte account RBI guldelines in this regards:

a) Names and addresses of the banks/financial institutions from whom financial assets were acquired and the value at which such assets was acquired

from each such bank/financial institutions.

Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra
{East),Mumbai-400051

{Rs in locs)
Mame of the Selling Bank f Financial Address Acquisition price % to total Acquisition price | % to total
Institution as on March 31, as an March 31,
2025 2024
Sponsors
Canara bank Integrated Treasury Wing, &6th Floor, 2,37,634.06 5.14% 1,05,755.56 10.14%
& Wing, Canara Bank Buiiding, C-14,
G Block, Bandra Kuria Complex,
Mumbai - 400051
Sub - Total [4) 2,37,634,06 5.14% 1,05,755.56 10.14%
Non-Sponsors
Bank of Maharashtra Apeejay House,1st Floor, 130, Or. V. G67,304.41 2.59% 22,507.31 2.16%
8. Gandhi Marg, Fort, Mumbai -
400001
|DB1 Bank Ltd DBl Tawer, 17th Fleor, WTC 3,72,582.51 14.33% 2,00,826,61 15.26%
Complex, Cuffe Parade, Mumbai-
400005
IFCI Ltd 8th & 9th fioor, Earnest House, 47,068.05 1.81% 10,903.15 1.05%
Mariman Point, Mumbai - 400021
India infrastructure Finance Company Ltd  [8Th Floor, Hindustan Times House, 75,502.78 2.90% 55,697.68 5.34%
18 & 20, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New
Delhi -110001
Life Insurance Carporation of India Yogakshema', leevan Bima Marg, 86,294,923 3.32% 29,267.00 2.81%
Mumbai-400021
Punjab National Bank PMB Pragati Tower, Plot No. C-9, G- 1,76,973.01 B.B0% 89,043 38 8.58%
Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Mumbai - 400051
State Bank of India Mumai Mazin Branch, 2nd Floaor, 4,97.800,88 19.14% 1,24.241.67 11.92%
Mumbai Sanchar Marg, Mumbal -
400021
The Jammu & Kashmir Bank Ltd Mt A Road, Srinagar 190 001 2193680 0.84% 9.433.00 0,90%
Union Bank of India Union Bank Bhavan,5th Floor, Central 1,01,440.83 3.90% 91, 750.03 E-.E-_B-%
Office, Mariman Point, 239, Vidhan
Bhavan hMarg, Mumbai - 400021
Axis Bank Axis HMouse,C-2 Wadia [nternational 1,58,203.55 6.08% 15,207.15 1.46%
Centre P.B. Marg, Worll,, Mumbai-
400025
Bank of baroda Baroda Sun Tower, 5th Floor, C 34.G- 65,281.64 2.63% 48,243.94 4.63%
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Mame of the Selling Bank / Financial Address Acquisition price % to total Acquisition price | % to total
Institution 4 as on March 31, as on March 31,
2025 2024
|
Bank of India Star House 1, 7th Floor, C5, G Block, 48,269.59 1.89% 43,504.79 417
Bandra  Kurla  Complex,Mumbai- |
A051 |
Central Bank of India S&M Branch, 48/49, Montieth 37,288.43 1.43%, 16,131.73 1.55
Road,Egmore, Chennal-600002 |
DAs Bank India Ltd Ground Floor,Express Towear,Narmian 4,056.07 0,16% 4,056.07 038
Paint, Mumbai-400021 |
|
DB Bank Ltd 1B, Camac  Street,Manasarowar 337.45 0.01% 337.45 0.0z
Building, Kolksta-700016 |
|
Dhanlazmi Bank International Centre Tower D1,0ffice 640.35 0.02% B40.39 0.0¢
Mo-10028,10th Floor,Senapati Bapat |
hdarg Prabhadevi, Mumbai-400013
|
Expart Impaort Bank of India Centre One Bullding, Floor 21, Weorld 6,350.80 0.24% 1,795.40 017!
Trade Centre Complex, Cuffe |
Farade Mumbai-400003
|
Federal Bank No: 27, 5th  Floor, Akshaya 600.00 0.02% B00.00 0.06%|
Shantifnna Salai,Chennai-e00002 |
Hinduja Leyland Finance Ltd Mo, 27, A, Developed Industrial 86.95 0.00% B6.95 0.01%|
EstateGuindy, Chennai-600032 |
ICICI Bank ICICI Bank Towers3d, Gurusaday| 2,03,332.84 7.83% 14.535.56 1.399{:}
Road, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700019
Indian Bank indian Bank, 1st Floor, Allahabad B7.822.68 3.38% 38,264.99 3.5?%]
Bank BuildingMear Bombay Stock
Exchange, 37, Mumbal Samachar] |
Marg, Fort Mumbai-400023
Indian Overseas Bank Annexe Bullding, 4th Floar, Central 48,533.18 1.B7% 14,636.08 1.40551
Office7a3, anma  Salai,Chennai-
BODOD2 ]
South Indian Bank Parines Crescenzo, 804, B-Wing, 8th 15,532.59 0,60% 1,500.43 U.M%i
Floar, G-Block, Bandra—Kurla
Complex; Bandra  EastMumbai- |
A0D051
PMB Investment Services Limited 10, Rakesh Deep Bullding,Yusuf Sarai 15,956.13 0.61% 18,661.87 1.?9591:'
Commercial Complex,Gulmanar
Enclave,Delhi-110049 I
ol Co™
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Name of the Selling Bank / Financial Address Acquisition price % to total Acquisition price | % to total
Institution as on March 31, as on March 31,
2025 2024
Karnataka Bank Mahaveera 05,53 0.00%: 85,53 0.01%
Circle,Kankanady, Manaluru-575002
Karur Vysya Bank Gayatri Tower ,1st Floor,954 Appa 5,035.62 0.19% 1,464.52 0.14%
Saheb Marathe Marg,
Prabhadeyi, Mumbai-200025
Punjab and Sind Bank Samvert, 1st Floor, Block-3,NBCC 56,895.82 2.19% 10,912.62 1.05%
Building East, Kidwai Nagar,Delhi-
110023
Small Industries Development Bank OfSwalamban Bhavan, Avenue3, Lane2, g 464,09 0.36% 7.,569.19 0.73%
India C-11, G Biock,Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra {East],Mumbai-400051
UCO Bank Uca Bank, Block-D,New Ali 01,832.83 3.53% 56,284.29 5.40%
pore, Kolkata-700053
REL Bank Limited One World Centre, Tower 2B, 20th 15,371.04 0.55% 2,432.00 0:23%
Floor, 841, Senapatl Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel, Mumbal-400013
Linited India Insurance Company Limited |24, Whites RoadChennai-600014 113.05 0.00%) 113.05 0.01%
Prathama UP Gramin Bank Ram Ganga,Vihar Phase 168.65 0.01% 168.65 0.02%)
2, Moradabad-244001
Standard Chartered Bank Crescenin, 4th Floor, Flot Moo © - 21,734.30 0.82% 2,540,320 0.24%
38/39.G  Block, Bandra  Kurla
Complex, Mumbai-400051
Societe Generale Bank 19th Floor, Peninsula Business 1,11B.00 0.040% 1,118.00 0:11%
Park Tower A, Lower Parel Mumbai-
400013
|
City Union Bank Gandhi Magar, Kumbakonam 612001 117.00 a.m’i - -
HDFC Bank Limited Sandoz House,Dr Annie  Besant 13,859:85 0.54% - -
Road Shiv Sagar Estate,Waorli,
Mumbai 400018
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Mame of the 5elling Bank / Financial Address Acquisition price % to total Acquisition price | % to total
Institution as on March 31, as on March 31, -
2025 2024
Indusind Bank iith Floor, Tower 1, One World 3.411.50 0:13% - -
Centre, Elphinstone Aoad,Mumbai
400013
Srel Equipment Finance Ltd 86C, Topsia Road [5), Kelkata 700046 1,016.40 0.04% - -
Sub - Total (B) 23,63,030.28 90,865 9,36,971.14 B9.BE
Total (A+B) 26,00,664.34 100.00%|  10,42,726.70 100.00°

b} Dispersion of various financial assets Industry & Sponsor wise

g *
s LR

(A5 in locs)
Industry Acquisition price as on March 31, | Acguisition price as on March 31,
2025 2024
Amount % to total Amount % to total
Sponsor
Road 44,924.60 1.73% 42,003.60 4.03%
Banking, Financial Services and Insurance 23,839.12 0.92% 23,839.12 2.29%
{BF5I)
Engineering, Procurement and 17,395.60 0.67% 17,159.40 1.65%
Construction (EPC)
Infrastructure B6,B18.50 3.34% 15,078.00 1.45%
Food & Beverages 562.00 0.02% 562.00 0.05%
Man-ferrous Metals and Commaodity - 2,478.80 0.10% 2,478.30 0.24%
Aluminium
Power 4,594.54 0,18% 4,584.54 0.44%
Consumer Products 1,294.00 0.05% -
Transport 41 ,E808.00 1.61%
Textile 13,919.00 0.54% - -
Sub-Total (A) 2,37,634.06 9.14% 1,05,755.56 10.14%
Non sponsors
Infrastructure 14,69,660.50 56.51% 3,41,922.00 32.79%|
Banking, Financial Services and Insurance 2,15,160,88 B.31% 2,16,160.88 2[].?3%';
Engineering, Procurement and 78,055.30 3.00% 75,106.60 T.20%,
Constriuction (EPC)
Power B58,600.45 2.64% £8,602.46 6.58%
Road 3,02,552.40 11.63% 1,81,993.40 17.45%
MNon-ferrous Metals and Commodity - 23,235.80 0.89% 23,235.80 2.23%
Aluminium
Sugar 22,250.00 0.86% 22,250.00 2.13%
Consumer Products 34,706.00 1,33% - 0.00%
Pharma 5,000.00 0,19% 5,000.00 0.48%
Food & Beverages 68, 880.94 2.69% 2,693.00 0.26%
Transpart 64,452.00 2.48% = =
Textile 8.427.00 0.32% - =
Sub-Total (B) 23,63,030.28 90,86% 9,35,971.14 B9.86%
Total [A+B) 26,00,664.34 100.00%|  10,42,726.70 100.00%
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Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial 5tatements as at March 31, 2025

¢} The above table (b) has been prepared by management and the same has been relied upon by the auditors,

d) Details of related parties as per the accounting standards and the amounts due to and from them . Refer Note 37

&) A statement clearly charting therein the migration of financial assets from standard to non-perfarming : NIL

f) Status of financial assets acquired in the Trusts set up by NARCL as required as per RBI Notification No. RBI/DOR/2024-25/116
DoR.FIMN.REC.16/26.03.001/2024-25 dated April 24, 2024 (Updated as on January 21,2025)

{85 in locs)
. As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
Particulars
2025 2024
a, Value of financial assets outstanding for realisation 10,14,341.57 3,66,459.00
b. Value of financial assets acquired during the financial year 15,57,937.64 6,76,267.70
c. Value of financial assets realised during the financial year 1,60,865.17 28,385.13
d, Value of financial assets Written-off / back during the financial year - -
2. Value of financial assets autstanding for realisation (a+b-c-d) 24,11,414.05 10,14,341.57
Mil il
f. Value of land and / or bullding acquired in ordinary course of business of reconstruction of assets
g} Status of Security Receipts (5Rs) issued by the Trusts set up by NARCL;
(A5 in lacs)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024
a. 5Rs outstanding as at beginning of the year 10,17,741.60 3,66,459.00
b. Movement during the vear -Partially to fully redeemed o &
€. 5Rs issued during the financial year 15,57,937.64 6,76,267.70
\d. SRs redeemed during the financial year 1,58,533.56 24,985.10
e 5Rs written-off during the financial year = 2
24,17,145.68 10,17,741.50

E. 5Rs outstanding as on March 31,2025 [a+b+c-d-g)

f.Value of Security Recelpts which could not be redeemed as a result of non-
realization of the financial asset as per the policy formulated by the Securitization
company or Reconstruction company under paragraph 7(6}(ii) or 7{8][ii} and
under paragraph 10.2 or 10.3 a: per Master direction dated April 24, 2024
(Updated as on lanuary 21,2025).

h) Additional disclesures as required in crcular no, . RBI/DOR/2024-25/116 DoR.FIN.REC.16/26.03.001,/2024-25 dated April 24, 2024 [Updated as on

January 21,2025] for the assets acquired after the aforesaid dates;

substantial discount {more than 20% of valuation as at the previous year end)

and the reasons thereof.

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024
1. Detalls of acquisition value of assets mare than the boak value along with the il il
basis of their valuation after August 05, 2014,
2. Details of assets of the trusts at the trusts level dispozed off during the year at il il

3. Details of Assets where the value of 5Rs has declined more than 20% below the acquisition value.

The following are the Assets (Trusts), where the value of 5Rs has declined mare than 20% below the acquisition value

Trust name Acquisition price MNAW % As at NAV 5 As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
MARCL TRLIST - DDD5 5,000.00 76.15% 105.01%
MNARCL TRUST - 0018 67,000.00 T6.83% 100.00%
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Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

i} Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification DOR (MBFC).CC.PD.No.103 f22.10.106/2019- 20 dated 13 March 2020 pertaining to Ass
Classification as per RBI Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRAC Norms) and impairment allowances made under Ind A% 109 ;

{Rsinlacs)
Financial Year Asset classification Asset Gross carrying | Loss Allowances Net carrying Provisions Difference
as per RBI Norms | classification as | amount as per ind | [Provisions) as amount required as per | between Ind
per Ind A5 109 AS required under IRACP norms AS 109
Ind A5 109 provisions apd

IRACP norms |

3 3 3 a (5)=(3)-{4) ) {7) = {a)-(6) |

MIL p

The Company does net have Mon Performing Assets {NPAs).

il Dizclesure pertaining to Fair Practice Code as specified in the Master Circular for Asset Reconstruction Companies-outsourced agencies 15 as under:

Payment have not been made to any agencies where director is interested party.

k) Information about assets acquired under 18C including the typa and value of assets acquired, the sector-wise distribution based on business of the

corporate debtor : Refer Note 33,1

[} Implementation status of the resolution plans approved by the Adjudicating Authority ona quarterly basis : Refer note 33.2

m) The company does not have any sale out of amortised cost business model portfolios,

n) Infarmation on the ageing of the unrealised management fee recognised in their books in the format specified below as part of the Motes to Accounts
the annual financial statements [applicable anly to ARCs preparing their financial statements as per Ind A5):

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Outstanding armount of unreallsed management fee 25,681.03 8,729.87
1. Dut of the above, amount outstanding for:
a. Amounts where the net asset value of the security receipts has fallen below 50
per cent of the face value - -
b. Dther amounts unreallsed for:
(1) Mare than 180 days but upto 1 year 9,252.65 3,570.00
(it} More than 1 year but upto 3 years 8,775.76 1,388.87
{iii} More than 3 years - -
Allowances held for unrealised management fee ana & b (2,000, 26} {491.43)
MNet unrealised management fee receivable 14,028,156 4467 .45
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&, Karim Chambers, 40, Ambalal Doshi Marg
{Hamam Street). Fort, Mumbal- 400 01
Telephone ; 0% 1-32-226914 1 4/4002 1415
& Co LLP + D09 |-22-4000 1 14004002141 4
Email - mumbailadhaco.com
Chartered Accountants
Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of
Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consclidated financial statements of National Asset Reconstruction
Company Limited (“the Parent Company") and its associate (hereinafter to be referred as “the Group”)
which comprises of consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the consolidated Statement of
Profit & Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the conselidated Statement of Changes in Equity
and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended (refer "Other matters” section
below), and notes ta the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given ta us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the infermation required by the Companies Act, 2013
{the Act) inthe manner so required and except for the impact of the matter referred in Basis for Cuatitied
Opinion section of our report, give @ true and fair view in canformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March 2025, the
consolidated profit {including other comprehensive inceme), consolidated changes in equity and its
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing [SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our respensibilities under those Standards are
further described in t1e Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. '

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred ta in Other Matter paragragh below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit oginion an the consolidated financial statements.

We draw attention to the following “Basis for Qualified Opinion" paragraph (as reproduced) incluced in
the audit report on the consclidated financial statements of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited, (an
associate) issued by their auditors vide report dated May 02, 2025:

“\We draw reference to Note No. 58 to the Consolidated Financial Statements which explains that SIFL
has not received Board approved financial results of 01 subsidiary, viz. Trinity Alternative Investment
Managers Limited and 02 subsidiaries of Trinity (stepdown subsidiaries of SIFL)viz. Hyderabad
Information Technology Venture Enterprises Limited and Cyberabad Trustee Company Private Limited for
the year ended 31st March, 2025 and year ended 31* March, 2024 and accordingly, the financial
statements of these companies have not been considered for consolidation as on 31 March,2025,
Consequently, these entities have not been included in the consolidation as of March 31, 2025 and March
31, 2024, We are unable to assess the potential impact on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March, 2025 or any other implication arising from this non-inclusion.”
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The Parent Company has accounted for its share of loss in accordance with the “Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 28 Investments in Associates and loint Ventures" to the extent o carrying valua of
investment. {Refer note na. 54 to the consolidated financial statements.)

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and auditor's repori thereon

The Parent Company's Board of Directors js responsible for the preparation of other information. The
Otherinformation comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to the
Board report and Management Discussion and Analysis but does not include the consolidated financial
statement and our auditor’s report therean.

Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other informa ion and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, aur responsitility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the ather infarmation is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to he materially misstated,

When we read the Board Report including annexures to the Boarg Report, if we conclude that there Is a
material misstatement therein, we are reguired to communicite the matter to those charged with
Bovernance,

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is respansible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect Lo the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that Eive a true and fair
view of the conseolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities:
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Parent Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the companies to continue as a Eoing
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related ta g0ing concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, of has
na realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are also responsible for

overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. e
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance butis not a guaraniee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consalidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professicnal judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from errar, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate internal
financial control system with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consclidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditicns
may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves tair presentation,

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditars, such other auditors remain responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion, <
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matlers, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with tham all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
saleguards.

Other Matters:

{a) We did not audit the financial statements of an associate included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group include the Group's share of net loss of Rs. Nil for the vear ended 31 March,
2025 (Rs. Nil for the year ended 31 March, 2024}, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements, In respect of an associate, whose financial statements / financial information have not
been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in sofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures Included Inrespect of the subsidiary
and assoclates, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far
as itrelates to the aforesaid subsidiary and associates, is based solely on the modified report of other
auditors.

{b} The consolidated financial statements far the year ended March 31,2024 were audited by predecessar
auditor whose report dated June 24, 2024 expressed an unmodified opinion en those consolidated
financial statements.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statement and our report on the other legal and regulatary
reguirements below is not modified in respect of above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualifiad
Opinion section above and obtained allthe information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) Exceptforthe possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Group have
been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and records.

{c] The Consolidated Balance sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss (including othar
comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changas in Equity and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) Exceptforthe possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
above, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

{e) The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, in nuru:}éniﬂﬂ may have

an adverse effect on the functioning of the Group.
,{ {,‘\
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(f} Onthe basis of the written representations received fram the directors of the Parent Company as
on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company and the
reports of the statutory auditor of associate company incorporated in India, none of the directors
of the Group companies and its associate company incorporated in India is disgualified as on
31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(E) The qualification relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith In
respect of consolidated financial statements are as stated in Basis of Qualified Opinion
paragraph above,

(h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financlal controls over financial reporting with
reference to financial statements of the Parent Company and its associate company and the
aperating effectivenass of such controls, refer Annexure "A".

(i} With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with the
requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accarding to the explanations given 1o us,
the remuneration paid by the Parent Company to its director during the year is in accordance with
the pravisions of Section 197 of the Act.

{j) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditar's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations which would impact its financial
position. [Refer note no. 37 to the consolidated financial statements]

il. The Groupdid not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring the amounts required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Pratection Fund.

iv. a) The Management of the Parent Company and an associate, which is incorporated in India
and whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us
and to the other auditor of such associate that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or Invested (elther from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kkind of funds) by the Company or associate to ar in any other person or entity, including
forgign entity (“Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend to or invest in
other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company or associate ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security orthe
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The Managemeant of the Parent Company and an associate , which is incorparated in India
and whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us
and to tother auditor of such associate that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or inthe aggregate) have been received by the
Company or associate from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company or assaciate shall, whether-girectly.or indirectly, lend to er invest in other
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persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoevar by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c)

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and aporopriate in

the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the associate
which are incorporated In India and whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representation under sub clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11{e) of The Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as provided under (a) and (b) above, contains any material

misstatement.,

The Parent Company or its associate company incorporated in India has not declared / paid

any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by respective
auditors of the associate company, which are the company incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, the Parent Company and its associate
company incorporated in India have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we and other auditars of associate company did not come any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered. Further, during the course of our audit, we
did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the
audit trail has been preserved by Parent Company and its associate company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention,

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's

Report) Order, 2020 (the *Order"/ “CARO") issued by the Central Governmentin terms of section
143{11) of the Act, ta be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Parent Company
and by the auditors of the associate company included in the consolidated financial statements
of the Parent Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no
gualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports except as below:

52 Name of Entities "CIN B parent | Clause
No. Company/ number
Subsidiary /
IE—————— Assuciate
1 Srei  Infrastructure | L29219WB1985PLC055352 | Assoclate 3lilc)
Limited
2. |srei Equipment | U70101WB2006PLC109898 | Subsidiary of | 3(i)(c) and
o Finance Limited o - Associate 3(xvii) |
8, Bengal Srei | U70109WB2004PLC100517 | Subsidiary of | 3(ix), 3{xvii),
Infrastructure Associate 3(xix)
s Development Limited | - I S
4, Srei Mutual  Fund | UGS990WE2009PTC 138790 | Subsidiary of | 3{xvii)
Trust Private Limited | Associate - —
5. Srei Capital Markets | U67190WB1998PLCO87155 | Subsidiary of | 3{vii)(b) and
Limited B Associate 3 xvii)
B. Controlla Electrotech | U2930WB1891PTCO52455 | Subsidiary of | 3(xvii)
Private Limited o] B Associate
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Insurance

UB7120WRB2002PTC095019 | Suosidiary of | 3(xvii)

LODHA
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Associate

7. Srei
Broking
| Limited
] Srej
Asset

Mutual
Managament
Private Limited

U74110WB2009PTC130801 | Subsidiary of | 3(xvii)

Associate

With regards to the directions Issued by Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section
143(5) of the Act, vide their letter GA/CA-1/Directions & Sub-Directions / 2024-25/31, dated April
15, 2025 and their email communication dated June 02, 2025 to the Company, refer to our

separate report in "Annexure "B".

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 13, 2025
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Annexure “A” with reference to consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March
31, 2025

Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statement under
Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Parent Company as at and
for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statement of National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (“the Company")
and its associate company, which is a Company incorporated in India as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent Company and its associate Company, which is
incorporated in India, is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls basedon
the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by
the respective companies considering the essential component of internal control stated inthe Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India {ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Aot

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and both issued by the |CAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note reguire that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasanable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal
financial controls system with respect to consolidated financial statement and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statement
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessmeant of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by auditors of
associate company, which is incorporated in India, in terms of their report referred to in the other matters
section above is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Parent
Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is @ process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assats of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recarded as necessany to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the entity are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management;(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acguisition, use, or disposition of the entity's assets that cauld have a material effect on
the consolidated financial statements; and (4) also provide reasonable assurance by the internal auditors
through their internal audit reports given to the organisation from time to time.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statement, including the possibility of collusion or improper managemeant override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference te consolidated financial statement to future pericds are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to cansolidated financial statement
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Parent
Company and its associate company, which s incorporated in India, has, broadly, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31, 2025, hased on the internal financial control with reference to financial statement criteria established
by the Company considering the essential Component of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Other Matter;

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3}(i) of the Act on the adequacy and ogerating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to 1 associate
company, which are company incorporated in India, is based on the carresponding reports of the auditors
of such company incarporated in India.

For Lodha & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. - 301051E / E300284

-

| }‘“v}ﬂ\

R.P. Baradiya
Place: Mumbai & Partner
Date: June 13, 2025 P Membership No. 044101

UDIN: 25044101BMIXDF1418
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Annexure “B” referred to in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited on
the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Report on directions issued by Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(5) of the
Act, vide their letter GA/CA-1/Directions & Sub-Directions / 2024-25/31, dated April 15, 2025 and
their email communication dated June 02, 2025 to the Company

Part 1 - Directions issued under Section 143(5) of the Act:

1,

' s. No.

Directions

Whether the Company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through
IT System? If yes, the implications of pracessing
of accounting transactions cutside IT system on
the integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, If any, may be stated.

| Considering the above, it does not affect

Auditors reply on the action taken on
the directions: -
According 1o the information and
explanations given to us and based on
examination of records by us, the
Company Is processing its accounting
transactions through Tally Software
including manual processing of net asset
value of investments in security recaipts
and provision for expected credit losses,

the integrity of the financial statements, |

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiverfwrite off of debts/loans/ |
interest etc. made by a lender 1o the comparny
due to the company's inability to repay the loan?
It yes, the financial impact may be stated.
Whether such cases are properly accounted for?
{In case, lender Is a Government company, then
this direction is also applicable for statutory
auditor of Lender company).

Whether funds {grants/subsidy etc.) received /
receivable for specific schemes from Central /
State Government or agencies were properly
accounted for / utilized as per its terms and
conditions? List the cases of deviation

According to  the information  and '
explanations given to us and based on
examination of records by us, there were |
no restructuring of toans/ waiver! write off
of debts/ loans/ interest etc. made by the
lender to the Campany.

According to  the information and
explanations given to us and based on
examination of records by us, during the
year, the company has not received any
funcs in the nature of grants/ subsidy.

Assess the fair valuation of all the Investments,
both quoted and unguoted, made directly by the
Company or through Trusts, for Post-retirement
benefits of the employees. This Includes
verifying valuation methodologies, ensuring
cansistency with Ind AS and reviewing
supporting documentation. The auditor shall
provide a brief note on the valuation approach,
its reasonability, and compliance with
applicable regulations, reporting any material
deviations or misstatements.
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Whether the Company has identified the key
Risk areas? If yes, whether the Company has
formulated any Risk Management Policy to
mitigate these risks? If yes, (a) whether the Risk
Management Policy has been formulated
considering global best practices? (b) whether
the Company has identified its data assets and
whether it has been valued appropriately?

Yes, the Company has identified its kay
risk areas in the Risk Management Palicy,
last amended on January 07, 2025, as
ultimately approved by the Board of
Directors. The risk management policies
have been formulated based on the
Company’s assessment of the risk and
mitigation of risk. The Risk Management
Policy is based on the globally accepted
three lines of defence. The data assets of
a company can be of various types such
as proprietary databases, customer
informatian, algorithms, and intellectual
property , Customer Data , Names,
contact info, demographics, Operational
Data, Financial Data, Proprietary
Algorithms & Models etc. NARCL is a new
entrant in the ARC industry constituted to
cater to high value stressed assets and
has limited data base In possession.
Therefore, no data assets identified yet

Whether the Company s r:{}mp'lying with the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
[Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and cther
applicable rules and regulations of SEBI,
Depanment of Investment and Public Asset
Management, Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Department of Public Enterprises, Reserve Bank
of India, Telecom Regulatory Authority of India,
CERT-IMN, Ministry of Electronics and Infermation
Technology and National Payments Corporation
of India wherever applicable? If not, the cases of
deviation may be highlighted.

Reserve Bank of India - The Company has
complied with the Master Direction -
Reserve Bank of India  (Asset
Reconstruction Companies) Directions ,
as amended from time to lime with
regards to accounting and disclosures.
There are na deviation from accounting
and disclosures.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs - The
Company has complied with the
directions of Ministry of Company Affairs,
There are no deviation from the
directions.

Securities and Exchange Board of India
{SEBI} {Listing Cbligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and
other applicable rules and regulations of
SEBI - Mot Applicabla, as the Company is
an unlisted Public Company.

Tetecom Regulatory Authority of India,
CERT-IN, Ministry of Electronics and
Infarmation Technolegy and National
Payments  Corporation  of  India;
Department of Investment and Public
Asset Management; Department of Public
Enterprises — Based on the Mature of
Companies business activities, the
above-mentioned  regulation s not
applicable to the Company
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Part 2-Directions issued vide their letter GA/CA-1/Directions & Sub-Directions / 2024-25/31, dated
April 15, 2025

5. No.

Particulars

Observations / -Findlngs

3z

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 13, 2025

As per Master Circular, Assel recanstruction
companies Issued by Reserve Bank of India on
February 10, 2022, point no. 25 i.e. Fair Practice
Code, sub point no. 4 for Assets reconstruction
companies shall put in place Board Approved
Policy on management fees, experses and
incentives, If any, claimed from trusts under
their management. Whether the same has been
put in ptace by the Company.

| updated on January 07, 2025,

According 1o the informatlon  and
explanations given to us and based on
examination of records by us, the
Company has put in place Board
approved policy on management fees,
expenses and incentives, which forms |
part of its “Financial Asset Accuisition
Policy". The said policy was approved by
the Board in its meeting dated December
08, 2021 and the same has been last

ForLodha & Co. LLP
Chartered Accouniants
Firm registration No. - 301051E/ E300284

-

e )

'—"-lr Ao 1.9 L'-F II
|!I 4 [ MUMBAIDT <t | R.P. Baradiya
G P
AT artner

Membership No. 044101

UDIN: 25044101BMIXDF1418
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
CIN : UG7100MH2021G0I363511
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

[Fis. In tacs)
s at Asat
Partieula MNobe
ket March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Aszety
1 Financial assets
{a] Cashand cash eguivalents 3 52,133.63 93,111 85
(b] Bank bafance other than cash and cash equivalents 4 59,676.35 10,199.79
{c] Trade recaivables 5 21,973.65 7.840.21
{d] Investments [ 417,230,732 L85 1B 65
{e} Othar financial assets 7 4,072.26 1,638.67
Total Financial assets {1} 5,55,086.72 1,98,029.17
2 Non-financlal assets
{a) Current tax assets (net) ] 252 61 175.30
[b) Property, plant and eguipment 9 496.30 B47.B1
[e]} Dther intangible assets in 3321 1338
{d) Other non-financial assets 11 134.57 TEZ A5
Total Nen-financial azsets (1) EBG.69 1,558.95
Total Assets (1 +11) 5,55,673.41 2,99,628.12
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilitles
1 Financial liabilitics
{a] Trade payables 12
(i) totat outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises o =
(it} total outstanding dues of creditors other than mecro and small anterprises 001 85.24
[b) Debtsecurities 13 2,02,155.46 .
{e} Cthar financial liabilities 13 653.99 B06.67
Total Financial liabilities (111} 2,02,800.46 90191
2 Mon-financial labilities
[a) Provisions 15 389,74 670.18
|t} Deferred ti Eabilities (net) 16 16.520.71 4,510.44
{e] Other non-financial Rabilities 17 410.89 132.32
Total Non-financial liablfites {1v) 17,321.34 5,312.84
3 Equity
{a] Equity share cagital 18 2.75,000.00 ,75,000.00
o] Other equity 184 GO.E4E.61 18,413.27
Tatal Equity (V) 3,35,642.61 2,93,413.27
Total Liabilities and Equity [+ W+ V) 5,55,873.41 2,99,628.12
Material aceounting palicies information and other explanatory notes 1-54

The above Cansolidated Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,

A3 per our repart of even date artached

For Lodha & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Hegistmﬂun MNo. 301051E/ E300284

*&amdlva

Fartner
KMo, 044101

Placel Mumbal
Date! fune 13, 2025
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Arkndam Blswas
Chisf Financial Officer

Place; Mumbai
Date: June 13, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

4/ EMPJQ \&‘\M‘N

Dlwakar Gupta
Chairmen
DM 01274552

wﬂmm

P Santhiish
D & CEQ
M: OB518954

Kapil 5bni
Company Secretary




Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
CIN : USTLO0MHZ 021G 0EEIS11

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2025

[Rs. In lacsh
Particulars Wi For the Year ended | For the Yearended
March 3L, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations
|a) Fee & other related income 19 25,593.33 12,849.74
(b Interest income i) 520,95 &50.00
{ch WNet gain on faar value changes 21 B,780.38 10,386.33
Total revenue from operationa (1) 34,894.66 23,EB6.07
Other Income [T} 22 8,205.37 1.086.79
Total icome {1N=1+11) 44,100.03 30,962.86
Expenses
(8] Fimance costs 23 145185 137,57
5] Fees and commission expense 24 4,033.27 1,800.00
1c] Impairment of fmancial instroments 25 348143 5TLEE
|d] Emplayee benefits expensa 26 1,232.98 133841
|e] Depreciation,amortizathen and impaioment Fi 190.12 immn
) Unrealised fees & expenses written off 28 0367 3,575.01
|g) Other exponses 23 L004.36 1,918.06
Taotal expenses [IV] 13,197.68 9,513.62
Frofit before tan [V=1114Y) 30,902.35 21,460.24
Tan expernde (V1) 300a)
Cwrrant tax 186942 0842
Deferred tax chargs 1201028 4,287.18
Tax ralating to earlier yesrs 70.68 55.40
13,553,308 52510
Profit far the year before Profit/{less) of assockates [VII=V-AT) 16,942.97 16,718.23
Shere in Profitfilcss) of Associates (VIN) 25 4R3.62 (4E.00)
Profit for the year (IX=VIVIT) 42,426.79 1617223
Other comprehensive Income
items that will not ba reckassified te prafit & loss
Remaaiurement gains on deflined benefiy plan 341 4,59
Inccme tax refating to items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss 3u) [D.E6} 116}
Other comprehensive Income 2.55 3.43
Tatal comprehensive Income for the year 42,429.34 16,175.66
Earnings per equity shere [Face value Rs, 10 per share] 3
Basic and Diluted 1.54 0.89
aterial accounting poficles information and othar explanatory notes 1-54

The above Consolidated Statement of Prafic and Loss shauld be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

As per aur report of aven date attached

For Lodha & Co. LLP
Chertered Accountamts
Firm Mgl!lel!nl'l Mo, 301051E/ E300284

)

R.P.Baradiya
Partnar T
#LND, 044101 granpie Lo
L P
f O Mol
\
f
Place: WMiumbai

Date: June 13, 2025

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Mational Asset Recanstruction

9, Wh.haﬁ “&f‘fa—t\, N

Diwmakar Gupta
Chairman
DIM: O3274552

VJW%:%:”‘""

Chief Financial Officer

Flace: Mumtal
Dave: June 13, 2025
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Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
CiN : UGT100MHID21GINIGEI511
Standelone Statement of Cazh flow for the year ended March 31, 2025

{fs. In facs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
Mareh 31,2025 March 31,2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Profit Before Tex 30,902.35 21,969,324
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, amortizetion and impairment 190012 mn
Interest on depasits with banks (B, 719.19) [7.070.24)
Impairment of financial instrements 148143 571.85
Net gain on fair value changes (B.780.318) [16,385.33)
Fees & cupenses writteén off BO3.67 3,579.01
Finance cos 245185 1757
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 20,379.85 8,468.80
Waorking capital changes:
(Imzrense)/Decrease in trade receivaliles [18,954.40) [7.325.43)
{Increase)/Decrease In ather financial and nonfinandal assets [3.269.94) [4,533.45)
|ncredse/{Decrease| in trads payables [55.23] 8524
|nerease{Dacrease| In other financial & non financial fablities [262.18) 186,83
Cash used in operathons 1251.50] {3,573.95)
Direct taxes paid [2,027.27] (B32.27]
WET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES [A) {2,273.17) {4,206.23)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of progerty, plant & equipmant [35.30] (106.20]
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment . 041
Increase/{Decresse] in bink disposits not eansidered ds cash & cash equivalent [4E,243.84)] 42 751,22
Interest recelved on depasits with banks 748547 G,458.54
Imestriient | equity shares of an assagiate . [96.00]
Proceeds from redamption of security receipts 35.542.78 5,57REL
Investrent in security receipts [2.33,650.64) [1,25400.25]
NET CASH LISED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B] 12,38,540.53) {68,765.57)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from igsue of eguity shares . 1,34,085.50
Proceeds from issue of non-convertible debentures 2,00,000.00 -
Fayment of lease Fabilities {178.53] (1E5.40})
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES |C] 1,99,B21.4E 1,33,510.10
NET INCREASE / [DECREASE] IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) |40,998.22) 60,538.30
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year 93,131.E5 32.1%3.55
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the yaar |Refer note no. 3] 52,133.63 53,131.85
Material accounling policies information and other explanatory notes 154

The above Consolidated Statemment of cash flow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

A ger our report of even date atached
For Lodha & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firrn Reglsprafion No. 301051/ E300284

0 [ u:f‘zx.l-_p_ghw

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
Natianal Asset Recanstruction Compa)

ny Limited
P Santhox|

R.PBaradiya Diwakar Gupta
Partrigr Chairman M & CED
MM, 044100 DN 01274552 DEN: DR5155
i (
. n

Arlndam Biswas Kapil Sani

Chiel Finandial Officer  Company Secratary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Diate: June 13, 2025 Date: June 13, 2015
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

CIN : UB7100MH2021G01363511

Consclidated Statement of Changes In Equity for the yesr anded March 31, 2025

8. Equity Share Capital {Rs: Inlacs)
Particulars Mo, of Shares Amount
Balancn as at March 31, 2023 1,40,50,45,000 1,40,904.50
Changes in equity share capitai during the year 1,34,08,55,000 1,34,085.50
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2,75,00,00,000 2,75,000.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year = =
Balance as at March 31, 2025 2,75,00,00,000 2,75,000.00
B, Dther Equity
Reserves & Surplus Items of Other Tatal
Comprehensive
Particulars [negme
Retalned Earnings Debenture Redemption | Re-measurement
Resene of net delined
benefit plans
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2,237.61 - 2,237.81
Profitfor the year 16,172.23 - 16,172.23
Other Comprehensive income {net of tarkes) - - 3.43 3.43
Tatal Comprahensive Income 16,172.23 a .43 16,175.68
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1!,4!!1!]14 3.43 18,413.27
Profit for the year 42,406,789 - 42.426.78
Qther Comprehensive income {nel of Laxes) - = 2.55 2.55
Total Comprehensive Income 42 428,79 - 2.55 42,429.34
Transters tof(from) retalned earnings {17,162.90) 17,169.80 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 43,666,773 17,168.90 5.88 60,842,561

Material accounting palickes information and other explanatary notes

1-54

The sbove Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes

As per our report of even date attached

Far Lodhe & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Flrm Registration No. 301051E/ E300284

W\

R.P.Baradiya e
i I
Partner s o™,
M.Mo, 044101 PN RSN
-'.f " 5
)%
Place: Mumbal

Date: June 13, 2025

F rnrokos

Forand an behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Diwakar 6 u;n
Chalrman
DiM: 01274552

; h(ﬂwg%__w

Arindam Blswas
Chief Financial CHicer

Place: Mumiai
Date: June 13,2025
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MNational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Mates to Consolidated Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Carporate Information

Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as "MARCL" or the
“Company” or “ARC") has been incorporated under the Companies Act, as a Government Company
(limited by shares) on 7™ July 2021 domicile in India & having a CIN U67100MH2021G0I1363511. The
Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India w.e.f. October 04, 2021 with Registration no.
030/2021 as a Securitisation and Asset Reconstruction Company under the Securitization and
Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002.The Company's
registered office is at - Unit Mo.1, 8th Floor, Birla Centurion, Wing B, Plot No.794, Pandurang Bhudhar
Marg, Worli Mumbai 400030, Maharashtra, India.

The Company’s principal activity Is acquiring Non- Performing Assets (NPA) from the Banks and
Financial Institutions and resolving them through appropriate resolution strategies enunciated in
SARFAESI.

The Government of India provides guarantee on Security receipts (SR} issued by the Trust setup by
MARCL to the selling lenders in accordance with the guarantee agreement entered into between
MARCL and Government of India.

2. Material Accounting Policies Information
2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

2.1.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and RBI guidelines as may be applicable to the Company from time to
time.

2.1.2 Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared and presented on the going concern basis and at a
historical cost basis, except for following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

(i) certain financial instruments such as financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
through profit and loss ["FVTPL") instruments;
[li} Employee Defined Benefit Plan measured as per actuarial valuation

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Levellinputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company can access at reporting date,

e Leovel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, which are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly er indirectly.

s Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities.
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to Cansolidated Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.1.3 Presentation of financial statements

The Company prepares its balance sheet and profit and loss account in compliance with the Division
Il of Schedule |1l to the Companies Act, 2013, The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and
presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts without it being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle
on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

=  The normal course of business

*  The event of default
e  The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the company and or its counterparties

The Company will present its annual and any other periodic financial statements/results as per the
requirements of applicable law from time to time.

2.1.4 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
controlled structured entities [i.e., Trusts). The Company consclidates a trust when it contrals it.

Contral Is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
invelverment with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee, Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control,

Tao support this presumption and when the Company has less than majority of the vating or similar
rights of an investee, the Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including:

s  The cantractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

=  Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

=  The Company’s voting rights and potential voting rights

®=  The size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the
haldings of the other voting rights holders

s Whether the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee, and has the power to affect the variahility of such returns

s Decision making authority in trusts managed by it, economic interests in the form af units of
Security Receipts [SRs), fees earned and collection incentives.

e |nvestment management and other contractual arrangements

=  Remaoval rights held by other parties
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Mates ta Consolidated Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

The Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or mare of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Company
gains control until the date the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and ather events in similar circumstances. If 8 member of the Group (Company and its contralled
structured entities) uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial
statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are
made to that Group member’'s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements
to ensure conformity with the Company’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same
reporting date as that of the company, i.e., year ended on March 31.

2.1.5. Investment in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof,
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105, Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the consclidated balance sheet
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. Distributions received from an associate reduce the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, In substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve
in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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After application of the equity method of accounting, the Group determines whether there any is
abjective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the net investment in an associate and that event {or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows from the net investment that can be reliably estimated. If there exists
such an objective evidence of impairment, then it is necessary to recognise impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate.

When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with Ind AS 26 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount, Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subseguently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to
be an associate, or when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with Ind AS 109. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same basis as would
be required if that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that assaciate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method

Is discontinued.

2.1.6 Functional and Presentation Currency

Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company.
2.1.7 Rounding of amounts

All the values are rounded to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 2013, except where otherwise indicated. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupee.

2.2 Business Model Assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an Instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher
level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:
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- How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
rmodel are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel.

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model} and, in particular, the way those risks are managed.

- How managers of the husiness are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

- The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the
Company's assessment.

2.21  The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest test ["SPPI test")

&s a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial
assets to identify whether they meet the solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI) test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset. The mest significant elements of
interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of money and
credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgement and considers relevant
factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period far which the
interest rate is set.

2.3 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrurment of another entity. Financial assets primarily comprise of Investments,
loans, deposits, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Financial liabilities primarily
comprise of borrowings and trade payables.

2.3.1 Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of |oans, debt securities, deposits and borrowings
are Initially recognised an the trade date, e, the date that the Company becomes a party to the
cantractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the
customers’ account. The Company recognises debt securities, deposits and borrowings when funds
reach the Company.

2.3.2 Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, an initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Trade receivables are
measured at the transaction price.
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2.4 Subsequent measurement of Financial Asset

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets
and the asset’'s contractual terms, measured at either;

= Amortised cost
e  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

2.4.1 Amortized cost and Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimatad future cash receipts (including
receipts and payments that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
cther premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including
expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument en initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for
any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised

cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance
2.4.2 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial
assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows that give rise on specified dates to sole payments of principal and interest an the principal
amount outstanding and by selling financial assets.

2.4.3 Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either designated
by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value
under Ind AS 109, Management only designates an instrument at FYTPL upon initial recognition when
ane of the following eriteria are met. Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis:

- The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or recognising gains ar losses on thern on a different basis

- Financial assets at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recorded in profit and loss.
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2.5 PurchasefAcquisition of Security Receipts ("SR")

For security receipt that fall within the planning period as defined by the Reserve Bank of
India [RBI), the fair value of Security Receipts is considered to be the cost of acquisition,

SRs are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of such are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. The fair value
of Security Receipts is determined based on the last declared Net Asset Value (NAV) which is
calculated using ratings or gradings reviewed by an approved Credit Rating agency. However,
the NAV has been reviewed on Quarterly basis, so that any material change in valuation of
SRs is recognized immediately,

SRs are measured at fair value through profit and loss based on the Company adopted fair
valuation methodology. Refer note no 2.1.2. for determination of fair value methodology.

2.6 Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investrments in equity instruments are classified as at FWVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably
elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehansive income for investments in equity instruments which are net held for trading,

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Dividends on investments in equity instruments are recognised as 'other income’ when the
Company's right to receive the dividends is established.

2.7 Loans and advances

The Company may grant loan to borrowers, Such loans are provided to only those borrowers
whose loans, ARC has already acquired from the respective banks/financial institutions in the
form of Trusts. Such loans can be provided for the purpose of disposal of liabilities which delay
realization of dues, Revival of borrower's cperations, to enable borrower meet working capital

requirements, etc

Such lpans are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the loans granted are added to or deducted from the fair value on initial recagnition.

Based on the business model and SPPI test, the loans are subsequently measured at amortized
cost.

2.8 Other investment including debt securities

The Company in accordance with its investment policy may purchase other financial assets
{other than those specified above),

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to purchase are added to or deducted from the fair value on initial recognition.

Based on the business model and SPPI test, such financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost or FYTPL.
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e Financial assets measured at FVTPL are fair valued based on the Company adopted fair
valuation methodology.

2.9 Financial liabilities and Equity Instruments

2.9.1

2.9.2

2.9.3

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial Liabilities:

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the Company or a contract that will or may be settled in the its's own
equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Company is or may be obliged
to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative contract over own
equity that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash (or
another financial asset) for a fixed number of the it's own equity instruments.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value in case of
lpans and borrowings net of transaction costs that are directly attributable.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and Borrowings

After initial measurement, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
amaortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue/acquisition
of funds, and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in Statement of Profit & Loss.

Financial Liabilities at FWTPL

Financial liahilities at FYTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. Financial liahilities are classified as held for
trading, if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
derivatives are alsa classified as held for trading, unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Consclidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.
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Financial liabilities, designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL, are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria In Ind AS 109 are satisfied,

2.9.4 Debt issued and other borrowings (“Financial Liabilities”)

® Financial Liabilities are recognized when the funds reach the Company.

s all Financial Liabilities are measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the leans granted are added to or deducted from the fair value on initial
recognition

e After initial measurement, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on ssue funds,
and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

2.9.5 Borrowing costs/Finance costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest rate method.
Finance charges in respect of assets acquired on finance lease and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings, to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
costs.

All other borrowing costs are expensed In the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost alse includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.9.6 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest In the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity, Na gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

2.10 Reclassification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company daes nat reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acguires, disposes of, or terminates a
business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.
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2.11 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

2.11.1 Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have
expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has transferrad the financial asset and
substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the assets to another party.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

= The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset;
or

= |t retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’ arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients'), when all of the following
conditions are met:

s The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected
equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full
recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates

e The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual
recipients

The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without
material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for
investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the
collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer enly qualifies for derecognition If either:

= The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
* The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Company cansiders control to be transferred if and anly if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the assetin its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and
has retained contral of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the
Company's continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability,
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The transferred asset and the associated liahility are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

2.11.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
maodification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid,
including modified contractual cash flow recognised as new financial liability, is recognised in profit or
[oss.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for trade receivables (including unbilled
revenue} and other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, in this section all referred to as “financial

instruments’.

The Campany follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables, The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company
recognises animpairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account,

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on the
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal ta 12 manth expected credit losses
(12 month ECL).

Lifetime ECL {LTECL) represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12 month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Based on the above process, the Company categorises its financial instruments into Stage 1, Stage 2,
and Stage 3 as described below:
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Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the company recognises an allowance based on 12m ECLs.
Stage 1 financial instruments also Include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and
the financial instruments has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a financial instrumeant has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the company records an allowance for the 12m ECLs. Stage 2 financial instruments also
include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the financial instrurents has been
reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Financial instruments considered credit impaired. The Company records an allowance for the
LTECLs.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default
{i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default, The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data. As for the exposure at default,
for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for
loan commitments, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together
with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined
based on historical trend and the Company's understanding of the specific future financing needs of
the debtors,

2.13 Write offs

Financial assets are written off entirety only when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery.
If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first
treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any
subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instruments in statement of profit and
loss.

2.14 Property, plant and eguipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment in value.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteriai.e. itis probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and cost can be measured reliably, Repairs and maintenance are
recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates
arrived at, based on the useful lives estimated by the management. The identified components are
depreciated separately over their useful lives.

As per the requirement of Schedule |1 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the
useful lives of the respective property, plant and equipment which are as per the provisions of Part C
af the Schedule Il for calculating the depreciation.
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Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of asset Estimated useful life
Office Equipment 5 years
El;nilat_ers-_End user deuici_r;, such as desktops, 3 years
laptops, etc.
Furniture & Fixture ' _ Syears _ D —
Leasehold improvements ) - Over the period of zase o
| Vehicles - | 5years or lease period whichever is lower

Assets costing less than Rs,5,000/- are fully depreciated in the year of purchase, Assets taken on
finance lease are depreciated over a period of lease.

Ar itern of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal ar when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of
replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The residual values, useful
lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each linancial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.15 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets
are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the
date that they are available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible assetis based
an @ number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other
economic factors. Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each
financial vear end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortisation
period ar methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Estimated useful life of software and website will be over a period of 3 years ta 5 years.,

2.16 Retirement and other employee benefit

2.16.1 Defined contribution plans:

The Company’s provident fund scheme and employee pension scheme are defined contribution plans.
The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognised during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.
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2.16.2 Defined benefit plans

The Company's gratuity scheme is considered as defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation
in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
the emplayees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted,
The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Methed,

Remeasurements gains / losses, comprising of actuarial gains and |osses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in nel interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheat with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OClin the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and less in subsequent periods
Past service costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss an the earlier of:

- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Met interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the

statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

Met interest expense or income

2.16.3 Short term employee benefits

Employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve maonths of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the
related service. Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

2.16.4 Other long term employee benefits
Compensated Absences

Lang-term compensated absences are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of
each financial year. Actuarial gains/losses, if any, are recognised immediately in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired based an internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable
amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction Is treated as an impairment loss and is
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recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that
a previously assessed impairmeant loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the
asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

2.18 Leases
2.18.1 Leases as a Lessee

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration, The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

2.18.2 Rights-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {i.e the date of
underlying asset is available for use). Rights-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of rights-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received,
Rights-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

2.18.3 Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date as the
interest rate implicit in the |ease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made, In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
maodification, a change in lease term, a change in lease payments or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to Consolidated Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.18.4 Short term lease

The Compary has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases
of property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease payment
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over lease term.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value.

2.20 Revenue recognition
2.20.1 Net gain/(loss} on financial asset measured at FVTPL

Changes in fair value of the financial assets recorded in balance sheet, measured at FVTPL, are
recorded in statement of profit and loss.

As per the REI circular, profit on redemption of security receipts is accounted only after the full
redemption of security recelpts. Amount realized in surplus/ deficit of the acquisition cost of security
receipts in accordance with the terms of the trust deed/ offer document is recorded as profit/ loss
on salef redemption of security receipts.

Profit/loss on sale of financial assets, measured at FVTPL, are recorded in statement of profit and loss.

2.20.2 Fee and commission income

Revenue (ather than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is
measured at transaction price .e. the amaount of consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to the customer, excluding amounts
collected on behaif of third parties. The Company consider the terms of the contract to determine the
transaction price.

a. The fee income comprises of Management fees/Trusteeship fees. The Company receives
Management fees/Trusteeship fee from trusts declared by it for acquisition of financial assets
and the same is accounted for on accrual basis as per terms of the relevant trust deeds and offer
document issued by the Trust. Management fees/Trusteeship fees are calculated and charged as
a percentage of the net assets value (‘NAV') at the lower end of the range of the NAV specified
by the Credit Rating Agency. In case of NAV is not specified by the Credit rating Agency,
Management fees are to be reckoned as a percentage of the actual outstanding value of 5Rs,
before the availability of NAV of SRs.

b. Redemption incentive and recovery incentive is accounted based on terms of the relevant trust
deeds and offer document issued by the Trust
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Notes to Consolidated Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

C.  Any upside share in excess realisation over acquisition price of financial asset by trust is
recognised at point in time basis as per terms of the relevant trust deed/offer document only
after full redemption,

d. The above receipts are recognised as revenue excluding G5T,

2.20.3 Interest Income

=  Under Ind AS 109, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR] method on
all financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest on the bank deposits is accounted for on accrual
basiz on time proportion basis, as per the terms of the deposits.

» Interest on Funded expenses is recognised on accrual basis. The accrual of the same is suspended
whenever the expense receivable is being written off,

2.20.4 Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when right to receive is established {provided that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

2.21 Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the
date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items,
which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are
translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period inwhich they arise.

The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency
monetary items as below:

1. Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition
of a property, plant and eguipment and intangible assets are capitalized and depreciated over
the remaining useful life of the asset.

2.  Exchange differences arising on other long-term foreign currency monetary items are
accumulated in the “Foreign Currency Maonetary ltem Translation Difference Account” and
amaortized over the remaining life of the concerned monetary item.

3. All other exchange differences are recognized as income or as expenses in the peried in which
they arise.
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2.26.4 Goods and services tax /value added taxes and input tax credit

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:

- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item, as applicable

- When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

Goods and Services tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the supply of
goods or service received Is accounted and when there 15 no uncertainty in availing/utilising the
credits.

2.27 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before extraordinary item and
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past
or future cash receipts and payments. The cash flow from cperating, investing and financing activities
are segregated based on available information,

2.28 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts
to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year
adjusted for effect of interest and other financing costs, net of taxes, associated with dilutive potential
equity share by ageregate of weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

2.29 Exceptional items

An item of income or expense which by its size, nature or incidence requires disclosure in order to
improve an understanding of the performance of the Company is treated as an exceptional item and
disclosed separately in the financial statements.

2.30 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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2.30.1 Sources of key estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other sources of key estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below, The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
Consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

2.30.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability In an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. When the fair values of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation technigues that include the use of valuation
models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values.

For Investments made into Security receipts (SRs), Company uses discounted cash flow model, given
that the SRs are less liquid instruments and expected cash flows including timing of cash flows are
estimated by using guantitative and qualitative measures regarding the characteristics of the
underlying assets mainly the manner of resolution plan, arbitration negotiations, nature & value of
collaterals, manner of resolution and other economic drivers. For any valuation which are based on
models, Judgements and estimates are applied, which include considerations of liquidity, credit risk
{both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility, Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

2.30.3 Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement,
in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining Impairment losses. These estimates are driven by a nurmber of factors, changes in which
can result in different levels of allowances,

The Campany's ECL calculations are outputs of cash flows projected from the expected recoveries of
assets acquired by the Company and applying a present value factor to them.

Probabilities of defaults (PDs) the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and
expectations of future conditions.
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2.30.4 Defined benefit obligations

The cost of post-retirement benefit plans are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial
valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases, mortality rates
and future pension increases. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject
to significant uncertainty.

2.31 Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs |"MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time, For the year
ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing
standards applicable to the Company.
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Natlonal Asset Reconstruction Compamy Limited

Notes to Corsodidated Fnancisl Statements as st Parch 31, 2025

{Rx. In leex]
3, Caah snd cavh eguivalents
Partlc g at Az at
March 31, IG5 March 31, 2004
I, |Cash mn hand 018 003
Il. (Bakances with barks;
{l] I carmant sicaunts 149 10.EE
|B] |in Fexed depasits with original matueity of ¥ months o 5X182.04 S3121.316
ees [inchuding interest aconaed)
Total 52,133.63 93,131.35
4, Bank balance other than cash and 2sh equialents
Az ot B3 at
Panticubars
March 31, 3025 March 31, 2074
Depanity with mafuify grester than § manths but kess 58.076.35 10,185,793
than 33 months [induding imzrest accrued)
Total 55,676.35 10,159.79
5. Trade receivables
AR AT LR L]
Partlculars
B March 31, 2025 Manch 31, 2024
Trade recaivakiles
L |Secwred, considered good a -
o, |Unspoured, contiderad goad:
Unlallad riesnus 28,661.03 BT1RE7
Billed reverur 14 =
Less : Expecied credit lom (ECLY |3, 710.63) |ABS 6B}
Tatal 21,971.65 154011

5.1 Agedng Tar trade receivables putstanding &= at Manch 31, 2025

Partleulars e — __Qutstarallig for folleéng: pariort from duy date o pagyren — Tatal
Lesx than & manths 1-2 yensy 2-3 years | Mere than 3 yeary
[uUnbiad revanus §652.62 £775.76 = - 2564103
#illed revenue 1.29 - s . 324
Les Expecied credif loss (ECL] (171017 [1,332.98) (67147 - = |5,710.62]
Totad 1,55, 7,025 62 6,104.29 = = 197365
5.2 Ageing for trade receivables outstanding as at March 31, 2004
Purilcuba [T ding far follpseéng perods from due date ol payment Tokal
Less than G mariths G meanths - 1 year 1-% years 2-% years Pdore than § years
Unbilled revaimim 3771.00 3,570,00 1,388.87 L = §,722.87 |
Less: Enpected credit boss [ECL] [E7A; 74] {353.7E) {137.54) " & [ITEN]
Toral 1312 3,216.22 1,255.13 = - 7.840.71
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Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

[Rs. I bacs]
6. Imvestments
Asat AL b
Particula
ksl March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| |Investments in security receipts
Carried at fair value through profit or loss
of an Assoclate 50,504,242 55,427.40
Others 3,66,726.31 1,29,791.25
il, [lnvestmant in equity shares of an associate, {at cost}
= Unguoted, fully paid up
SRE Infrastructure Finance Limited {460,000 Equity
shares having face value of Rs. 10 Each] - #
Total - Gross [A) 4,17,230.73 1,85,218.65

(1] Imuestments in India

4,17,230.73

1,85,218.65

(i} Investments outside india - -
Total [B) 4,17,230.73 1,85,218.65
Current 38,617.26 549,657.39
Non current 3,7B,613.47 1,25,561.26
7. Other financial assets
Particul As at Ax at
! March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I, |Security deposit for leased premises and others 108,69 108.08
considered pood
I, [Amount recoverable from trusts 4,630,770 1,587.14
|Less ; Expected credit loss [ECL) (718.03) [57.56)
3,862.67 1,529.58
| Total 407236 1,638.67
8. Current tax assets (Nat)
Az at AL at
Particul
ol March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| |Advance inceme tax and TDS 15261 175.30
[Met of provisions for incorme tax of Rs, 1,870,248 lacs
[Frevious year Hs. 909.57 lacs)
Total 252,61 17530
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Mates to Comsolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2075

. Praperty, plant and equipment

(. 1 laea)
A At March 31,2025 s g
Groas Block #Acramulated Dep , Amor and Impairment Met Dlack
oi
Dascriptian of asssts Asat Additions during @:::5:1 As o1 A at Charpe for the| Disposals during Arat Asa As @t
April 01, 2022 the year during the year Raarch 31, 2025 April 0, 2024 year the year Miarch 31, 2025 | March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Dwried Assets
Computers 17.58 0.84 = 28,40 20.08 1044 = 3052 7.B8 17.48
Office pguipment 3387 230 = A7 4.69 645 = 11.14 pefie] 258.38
Futnitae & fittings [ET] - 075 [T (L] 4T 1.72 2.00 .33
vehicles E0.On 24887 - 2493 3.7 1527 - 1898 Ta.0 56.30
Loased Aets
Right of use leasehald assets - Offlon TE 81 - E85 T0.48 184,69 14731 EEFH ] 35745 5a1.82
promises
Total BE1.72 5.0 7.60 B4R 313.91 175.94 = 309387 A4%6.30 4781
A5al Margh 31,2034
Grnss Block a dxted Depreciatinn, A and Impalement Mot Elogk
Description of Assots Az at additions during :I’II ::I Az at A=t Charge far the | Dispasaks dwring B at B at Azal
April g, 2023 thie yar March 31, 2024 April 0, 2023 yoar tha year March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
during the year
Drwnod Assets
Carputars 78.55 595 1.04 37.56 .94 10,77 .63 zo.08 17.48 FLEL
Cfice squiament 150 3337 3 387 015 4.54 ¥ 4.59 7518 1.35
Furniture & fittings - 340 - 1108 = 075 = 0.75 3.23 -
Wohicles . EOLCD . 60.00 - a0 - iro 5650 -
Lensed fagets
Right of sse leasehold assets - Oflice Teal g = 72631 3698 4771 - 184,58 541.62 630,33
premises
Total 75646 10%.30 104 B61.72 17.07 167.47 0.63 111.81 Ga7.81 700,348
10.Oeher intangible Assees R, Im leca]
A at March 31,2025 ~ )
Grows Bluck Acgumulated Depreciation, A inm and imy [ Riet Mack
Description af Assets s at Rdditions dusing :W"wl Asal As 3l Chasge for the | Dispesals during Az at A4 at At
April 01, 20249 the year ! y March 31, 2025 Aqril B, 2024 e tha yoar March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2025 | Maach 31, 2024
during the year
Saftware |Including website| A061 = = na1l .22 13,18 - Ziag 541 13,38
Taital 3051 = - 3061 .22 10,18 - I7.40 3.3 13.39
As at March 31,2024 g
hress Bloch Arr lated Depreciation, Amortisation and impei il Net Bloth
Destriplion of Asets Avat Addstiars during n’_"“:;:t’; Az at Asat harge for the| Bispasals during Asat Aaan Asat
Apinl 01, 2073 the year i Idlungm .-pnr March 31, 1024 April 01, 2023 year the yead Bnrch 31, 2074 | MAprch 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
ur! e
Software [Including webiite) 0L - 2 3061 BEd 1033 - 1712 1338 62
E'Fnlll 6 - - 061 .98 10,33 = 1732 13.38 T1.62
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Mational Asset Reconstruction Cormpany Limited
Nabes i Consolldsted Finantinl Statements as at March 31, 2028

(R, ImBacs]
11, Othes non-finamcial assets
A at Az at
i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
[Unsecured considored good, untess stated otherwise)
¥ Bafances with gavernmant autheritles - G5T Input @y enedic 2708 703.08
!Ili Prapaid BapansE] a0.48 3E.73
{lli} Sither aduances 7.03 1658
Total 134.97 TELA5
1% Traade payables
a5 at Al ot
b March 31, 2025 March 11, 2024
|1} Tradn payaliing
[¥] Tots! owtstending dues of micro and small entesprises * £ =
[iil Total o ling dues af credifors other than micro and senall [Nk 05 34
Total oLl 95.24

*Ducs to micro enterprises and small enterprises havn boen detesmined to the oxtent such parties have been Identifled on the basis af

infprmatine collacted,

12.1 Dues payahle to Micro and Small Enterprises under the Mico, Small and Medium £nterprises Development Act 2008 a2 well a3

amendments:
st Faat
sl #arch 31, 2025 Msreh 31, 2004

(I} Pringipal amauat remalning wnpaid bo 2oy supplier as sl the esd of (he secounting
[year.

[ Interest due thereon remaining unpald to any supphier as at the end of the
accounting year.

(6] The amount of interest pald alang with the amounts of the payment made ta the
supplier buyand apgointed day.

[w] The amaunt of intenest ds snd Eﬂ'ﬂlﬂ! for the Year,

|¥) The amaunt of int=rest accrued 2nd remaining unpaid at the end of 1he stcaunting
vEar.

%l Thie amount of further Interest due ard payvahle even in the succeeding year, until
such daty whian the |nterest dus as sbove ane sctually peid,

Toml . 5
12.X Ageing for trade payakles
Az at March 31,2035 Qutstanding for followlng perinds from due date of payment
Tatal
More than
Farticulars Less than 1 year 12 yenrs 2.3 years "wm"
{1} Undaputed Trads payabls - MSME - - - -
[if) Undisputed Trade payabis - Dihers .01 = o 0.0l
Tatal 001 - . n.o1
Bz At March 31, 2024 Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Taal
Particulars Less tham 1 yeat 1-2 years 2-3 ywars H":::“
11} Undlisguend Tradu payakis - MEME - w % =
i1} Undlsputed Trade peyahle - Others 05,24 . 5,24
Total 85.24 = . 45,74

Thave are no disputed trade payables, hence the same is not disclased in the ageing schedale,
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Fotes to Consolidated Financlal Statemants as at March 31, 2025

[Ri. b fmes)

18, Debt Securities

Al ak Agal

Facik i Mareh 31, 2025 Karch 31, 2028

Unsecured E
Non-canvartibie ded i, 81 amaortised cem 000, 00000 -
Ade interest accruad but nok dus 2..1_5_5.“
Toaad (&) 203155496 .
[i] Dabt Securitles in india 202, 15546 -
i] Mzt Secunties outside india . =
Total (B 1,02,155.95 -
13,4 Terms and Conditions

AL Asal
Particalars Mlarch 31, 2025 Ktarch 31, 2004
2.92% poa., 20,000 Undeciarad, rated, unlistesd, redesmable, man sanvarrible 2,00,000.00 %
dabentures hivring facs valie of Ra, 10,00,000 sach
Baillet pepavmant fon bavand 5 yaars fiom Bsua date e, February 11, 200%)
Tatal 1,00,000000 -

rtatury prefile above 15 distiosed ot feze unlue which excludes the accrueo fnteren payable on NCDs.
13.2 The company bas utilieed money abteined by way of nan-<sormediible debanturas during the year far15e purpase for which they were obtained,

3.3 Additional distlosure persuant te ind A5 T [Debt pecurities movement duilsg the yaar)

Yigar emded Tear ended
Partatulang March 31, 2035 March 31, 2034
Opanng balance - s
Cash flows 2,00,000,00 .
Maon cash changed® 2,155,456 ®
Total 2,92,15546 -
® Mon cash changes represents infareit stcrusd But net due af NCD
14, Ccheer Ninanelsd linkikties
As ak As &t
I
e o1 Murth 31, 2025 Masch 31, 7024
Secunity depoiit 2.35 7.25
Linbi#y for sxpehied 200.58 21979
Lewses liakiliting 451,15 STH.63
Totsd 653.9% EB0E.67
15. Pravlsians
Asal iy ot
ki Marth 31, 200% iarch 31, 2024
Prowiviom lor emaloyes cenetits
~ Gratulty Q.08 0.1y
= Leawe aptashment 116.08 4.3
- Dikeremployes benelits payable ITASE 54571
Tatal 389,70 67018
16, Deferred tae Enbllity [net)
Asak s al
Hiiaiaes March 31, 2025 Bareh 31, 2024
Daferred fov ossed
|Pregiminary sapenies sllawsble ufs 350 aver s periad of fime a7 A
][ I provided but al in Incamn Tax on paymrent basis a1zl 33,14
[Pravisinn for Exg d eredit fess Lila.E 23840
Difference bebesan book deprecintsan & o depreclation 3.7 0.1
Rlight of use leasehold arsely 11401 .57
D frrren tox Habdtty
Lnbilled sevenue taxsd an bill=g B AR 40 19713
Fair valustion djustman af ey reenipan 1123765 1.514.04
|
Total I 16,520,711 4,510,449
17. Ouher aes finanelal linb@tins
s at Asat
Pt Mareh 31, 2005 March 31, 2024
Statutory dues payabils £10.83 132.32
Totad 410,85 13r.32
=

o A
~f Vil
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Kotes to Consalidatad Financial Stay ts a5 at March 31, 2025
1B, Equity share caplial
|Rs. Ir laca)
5 Asat Az 3t
P la
g March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(3} Authorised capltal
2,75,00,00,000 eeuity shares of fs. 10/ pach (Previous wear - 3,75,00,00,000
iequity shares of R 10/ each) 2,75,000,00 1.75,000,00
|b) lssued, subicribed & pakd up
3, 75,00,00,000 equlty shares of fs, 10/ aach, Tully pald up [Proviows Year ;
7.75,00,00,003 sgulty shares of Rz, 10y sach, fully paid un} 2,75, 600,00 2,75,000.00
{c} Reconcilintion of the number of shores cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Asal Az at
Particul
pbii March 31, 2035 March 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,75.00,00,000 140,590,945, 005
Issurd during the year - 1,34,08,55,000
Reductions during the year - =
Delance ol the end of the year 3, 75,000,000 2,75,00,00,000

|d) Rights, prafecences and restrictions pttached to shares

Equlny shares: The Company has ane clags of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10y~ per share. Each sharehclder s eligible for one vote per share
held, The dividend prapased by the Baard of Directars, i any, Is subject to the aporaval of the sharehalders i the Annual General Mesting, in the
event af liquidation, the equity sharehalders ar= eligible 10 receive the rermaining assets of the Compary after distribunion of gl preferential amaounts
In proparticn o their sharchoiding.

[} shares in respact of gach cass In the company held by It holding company ar its ultimate holding company incbuding sharns held by or by
subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the witimate holding company in aggragae !
MIL

(1) metall of sharehalders halding 5 percent or mora

Particulass g at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 20249

Mame of Sharehold N, of Saras held % of helding o, of Shares held % af halding
Canara Bank 53,00,00,003 12,003 33,00,00,000 12.00%
State Bank of Ind= E7,22.50,000 504 27.22,55,000 Gaos
Linian Bank of India i722.50,000 EE 27,22,50,000 5.90%
Bark ol Barwda 47,22,50,000 9.50% 27,22,50,000 fans
Inchian Bank £7.22.50,000 990 27,22,50,000 5908
Punjab Mational Bank 24,75,00,000 .00 24,75,03,000 X
Bank of Indla 34,75,00,000 9,00% 24, 75,00,000 8005
Bank of Maharashirs 13,75,00,000 5.00%. 13,75,00,003 SO0
IGAT Bank 13,75,.00,005 5,008, 18,75,00.000 5005
ICIC] Bank 14,78,00,000 5,005, 13,75,00,000 500

{g} The Company dors not kave any promoters |25 defined under Section 2[69) of the Companies Act, 2013)

{h) Shares reserved for issue undoer optinns and contracts/oommitments for the sale of shares o disinvestment Including the terms and amaounts
ML

(1) Far the period of five years Immediately preceding the date at which the Balance Shoet 1s prepared:

- Bggregate numbser and class of shares allatted as fully pald up pursuant to contract without paymem belng received in cash;
- Bgpregate number and cass of shares allattod 35 fully pald up by way of banus shares; and

- Aggrogate number and dass of shares baught back

MIL

[} terms of any securlties convertible into oquity shares issued along with the earliest date of comvershon in descending ordar starting fram the

farthast such datn
MIL

[k} calis unpaid [showing aggregate value of calls unpaid by dlreciors and officers)
ML

T} forfelted shares {amount originally pakd up)
ML
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Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes ta Consolidated Financial S1stements as at March 31, 2025
1RA Other equity

|fis; in lacs]
s a1 Axat
SIS Wharch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Aetalred IWE 43.665,71 18,609,249
Other comeret ive income 598 3.43
Debentuwre redemplion resesve 17,182,900 a
Clasiig balanoe 50,8461 18,413.27

1] Retained earnings: These are the profits that the Company has earned tll date, less any transfer (o general ressree, statutory resarve, dividencs or
athar distributions paid to shareholders.

11} Gther comprehensive Income: This repressnts remeasirement of defined ermplayes bonefic plans (et of tases).

illy Debenture redemption reserve: Thie Comaanies Act 23313 requires companies that issue debentires to creats 3 dedenture redemplion retesve
from annwal prafits until such debentures are redesmed. The Company Is reguired 1o transter 3 specified percentage fas prowided in the Companies
Act, 2015) of the cutstanding redeemable debentures to debenture redemption resarve

157 of 178



National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to the Consalidated Financials Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Rs. In lacs)

19.Fee & Other related income

Surtiailare Year ended Year ended

March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Management fees/Trusteaship fees 22,347.47 9,671.05
Recovery Incentives 3,245.86 537.33
Other related income - 2,641.36
Total 25,593.33 12,848.74
20.Interest income

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

On financial assets measured at amortised cost

Interest on funded amount from Trust 520.85 650.00
Total 520.95 E50.00
21.MNet gain on fair value changes
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Fair value changes - unrealised
On security receipts 8,780.38 10,386.33
Total 8,780.38 10,386.33
22.0ther income
Particulars Vedr podiad Yearended
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Interest on deposits with banks 8,719.19 7.070.26
Interest on income tax refund - 20.34
Unwinding of interest on financial assets 6.60 .19
Excess provision written back & others 479.58 -
Total 5,205.37 7,086.79
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MNational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Motes to the Consolidated Financials Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

[Rs. Inlacs)
23, Finance costs
el Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on debt securities 2,394.56 -
Commission on bark guarantee - 57.03
Interest on lease obligations 56,89 70.54
GO guarantes commission 2,260.52 869.51
Less : Recoverable from trust's (2,260.92) [869.51)
Total 2,451.85 127.57
24, Fees and commission expense
Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Management fees 2,400.00 1,B800.00
Recovery linked fees 1,633.27 B
Total 4,033.27 1,800.00
25. Impairment of financial instruments
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2023
Fees and expenses 3,481.43 571.86
Total 3,481.43 571.86
26. Employee benefits expense
Bt ¥ear ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries and wages 1,053.B6 1,198.74
Contribution to provident and other funds B4.61 91.97
Staff welfare expenses 89.51 43170
Total 1,232.58 1323841
27. Depreciation, amortization and impalrment
Faitbalive Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 hMarch 31, 2024
Depreciation of tangible ascets 32.63 19.77
Amaortizaticn of intangible assets 10,18 10.23
Amortization on right of use assets 147.31 147.71
Total 190.12 177.71
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Motes to the Consolidated Financials Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

[Rs, I lacs)
28. Unrealised fees & expenses written off
Baricolns Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
803.67 3579.01
Unrealised expenses including interest on funded expenses written off
Total 803.67 3,575.01
249. Dther expenses
. Year ended Year ended
i iagad March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Legal and professional charges 217.97 385.05
Financial,Legal due diligence & other expenses 274,47 1,086,94
Filing fees, stamp duty & registration Expensas 11.13 28.23
Advertisement expense 12.24 191
Director sitting fees G68.83 67.21
Rent, taxes and energy cost 27.64 118.47
Travelling, boarding & lodging expenses 95.24 61.62
Insurance 10.05 12.05
Auditor's foes and expenses®
- Audit fees 10.22 10.53
- Tax audit fees 1.90 157
- Out of pocket 0,74 -
Repairs and maintenance 21.99 20.82
Corporate social responsibility expenses 163.87 31.07
Miscellanoceus expenses 88.01 843.49
Total 1,004.36 1,919.06

*Includes Rs 1,70 lacs paid to previous auditar
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Natial

nal Asser Reconstruction Company Limited

Hotes to Comolideted Finkncial Stetements &3 8t March 31, 2025

30 The major componants of the tax espense lar the year ended Manch 31, 2025 and Manch 31, 2024

Ps.inlags)
5r. Panlculars Yeur enuded Yaar gndad
M, tarch 31, 105 March 31, 2024
Satemmnt of profit & lau
(m] Jii Prafit & lows section
Current Incama fax ;
Currert imsome tax charge 188542 [T
Tix relating ta aarller peins 13.08 5540
Dielerned Lan: |
Ralsting 12 ariginating and rayesiad ol termnadacy differences 13.010.28 i I.zﬂ?_ﬁ
I tam nxpen e teported In the statemant of prodin & loss 18, 059.56 | 525101
[i} | Enbver campre harive intems [Q0)
Current incame Lax |
Mt gaind {less) on remeasursmant of delined banafit plans 086 116
1
|mcorme tax expense reparted in QL1 0BG | L1k
Retpatiliation af 14y expenie and the nesaunting prafit mutiiphied by Indla’s domestic Tax rate for tha yoar endud Saich 31,2025 and yeor ended March 31, 2024
[®s. ir bacs)
i Particulars Year anded Yuar gnded
Ha. March 31, 1015 Karch 31, 2024
1| readis bafars tax: 56,386.17 146924
2| Awplicable tax rate 25.17%| 25174
3|PET * Applicablc tax rate {12 14,190.27 | 5,008,380
4| Reconciing itema 1
Differerce in iox for Mams which are not allowed as dedugtian and aflact of dalerned tax
|&]|nems 121158} o]
(1] | T ralacing ro earfier years 73.68 54
Total 1231.87) |152.37)
Tan exf recognized during the year {3+1) 13,559.34 5,251.04
Campanents of deferred tax assers and lab@ities recognized In Balance Sheet and Statumunt of prafit & foss for year ended March 31,2005 & March 31,3074
ir. |Companents of deferred tax {assets)f Kahbilities {Fis: Im keg)
Mo Particulars Balance Sheet Staternent of Prafit & Losi
Asag Akl Yearendsd Tear ended
March 11, 1% March 31, 1024 March 31, 2008 Ptarch 31, 2004
1| Difference in bask snd incame 1as dearesiatinn 13,78 (0. 21] | 5.50}) 12 53]
2| Prefmirary expaned 19,729 [13.41] @71 7l
3| Expected cradii lam 11,114,560 |z38.40) 1B76.21) |1£3.93)
| Unbillad revenue taked oo billing 645340 219713 165,27 1,843,686
5| Falr walustion adjustment af seeurlty receipts 11,337.65 2.514.0% B,B23.61 351403
&| Cihers 152.31) (a2.90) 1861} 133.66)
Dederred tox evpensef income) 12,040.2A 4,387,139
Nt deferred tax (Assets)f Linbilitie 16,520.71 4,510.4
Reconcillation of the delerred tan enpense lor tha yeds seofed March 31, 2025 [Ra. in lszs)
Sr Barticulars Dipaming Balance as on|  Tax income (espense] | Taxfmcoma) (expense) | Closing Balance as
Na. April DL, 2020 during the year recognised during the year on March 31, 2025
statement of Profit! Loss | recugrised statement
under Profitfless section | - of Profif Loss under
O] section
1|Bifference in boak and income tex depreciation 12.21) {3.50] = {3.71)
2|Preliminary eapenes 118,411 2.71 = {972
3 |Exvpecied cradi loss | 258,40 [37E.21) o 15.114.60]
& |Unkdled rrvenis taasd an Biling 219743 4,366.27 - 656140
& | Fair vl ition asl|usteinnt o sagunty receiats 2.614,03 B 623.61 - 11,3068
G|Others 142,710 {2511 = 15291)
Total 4,510,44 12,010.28 . 15,520, 71
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MNational Agset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes o €

5 a5 af March 31, 2025

Reconcilation of the doferred tax excpense for the yesr andad March 31, 3024 {5, in tazs)
Particulars Dpening Balance &y en|  Tax ncomaf (napenre] | Taxincome) [expense} | Closing Balance as
Ma, Aprl 01, T023 dwting the year recognisad during the year on March 31, 2034
statarman of Frafinf Loss | recognised stabement
wneer Prediefless section | of Frofi Loss under
OCl saction
1) Céffarence in baok and income tax denreciation 241 [2.62] - LN
2| Prebmirany expanes [FRA3 97E - {19.41]
3| Enpeched credit dass |47} |143:83] . [238.40]
d|Unkilled reveniie taved on hiling 35347 184366 = 2,197,213
| Fair valuation adhastrani of 1ecurity recelpts - 261403 2.514,03
& Crihvers [g.05} |33.E6) - 182,70
Total prit ] 4,287.19 = 4,510.44
Thars are A lems onosiieh defarred fak asiet had 5t kean reeagrised in ke Salance Sheet
31 Earnings per skare [EPS)
Veargnded Year ended
Particufars Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Prafil f (Loss] aitributable to equity sharehniders for besic/ dikaed sarmings per thars 4242679 16, 716.23
after daw [Re in lacs]
Mo of shares 275,00, 00,000 4,75 000,000
Welghted averape no. of eguily shares outstanding during the year for bagiz) diluted 2,75,00,00,000 O e e
marmngs per rhare )
EFS |Bagc and Diluted - Rs. per share| 154 U.B_!;_.
Marrénal value per share - Bs. par shane 10000 J.D‘tl_ﬁ_l

32 Emplayee Brmefins

Frpinyen banalits inelude Pravident fund, Pansfan, Geatilty snd Campensaied absences.

I| Defined cantributien plans:

Thaz= are plana in which the Company pays ore-defined amounis io sopamate funds and dors nat kave any begal o informa! abigation 1o pay additlora’ surms. These comprise of contributions
1o ihe Employees’ provident fund and Persion fund . The compary's payments 1o the defined zanifiouticn plant are moorted ss experses in the year in which the employees perform the
services 1hat the payment covers. Duing the current vear, on account af Defined cantribution plars, 1he Comgany has charged Re, 7338 lacs {Prevous year: 581,24 |acs) to Statement of profit

Bl Defined benefi plans:

Ewpanses for definad-benafit plans are calculatod as at each batance sheet date by independent actuanes [mocept Tor casusl leave an acuatsh. These cammitmonts are valued at the pressnt
value af the expected future payments, with consideration for caleulated futare salany increazes; wiing a diszoant rate corraaanding ba the imesest e astimated by the actuarny having regard
#o ik interest rate an geuarrmant bonds with @ ramalnirg taom shat (s afmost equivalent ta the aversge balnnce working period of ampleqees; Insremaral llakdiny based an ihe prejestnd unit
credit method as at the réporting date, Is charged 1= the Statement: of profit and kass. The actuarial gaing [ losaes are accounted in the Slatemmunt of pralit and loss. Excess of fairvalae of pan
assets avar defired benein ebligation is neq recognised on grounds of prudence.

The Cermpany makes & pravisiap far gratulry and camaensried alssenes based an actuariad reports [EBxcept prowizion Tor casual leave of Rs14.53 L),

[A] Grasuity
The princiznl assimationg used Ear the piirpessd of the actasrial valustisns wers as follews,
(Ax i kacs}
Particulars oy m March 31, 7075 &y ar March 31, 2004
Dizcount rateis] B.EDE pa T E%p.a,
Expected ralals) of salary incrmase T pa Tna.
Amounts recagrised (n 1he stalement of profit and loss in respect of these deficed banaln plara are 85 fallows.
{Ax. i hoex)
Particulars Az st March 33 3025 | As ot March 31, 2004
Servite cost;
Current service oot 11.65 1051
Past service costand [gainlfSass from setiiemenms = -
Wi interest eNpense ql}.l5| 011
Companents of defined benelit costs recagnised in profit ar lass 1.0 1052
B wenanik on the net datined banadit kabilin
Eeturn on plam assels jexcluding amourts included in net IMerest expense] 0,85 034
Aciudarial (gains] § losmas arsing from changes in firensal assumptions. 0.6 [EE]
Aetuarial (galns] f losses arising from oxporiores adjustmants {4.45] 15,281
Components of defined benedit costs recagnised in other camprehenslve incame 13.42) [4.55
Tatal .18 k]

W,
A
S Vol
e, !.‘.U.".1BA!-D?; %l
\ Jo)
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Notes to ©

ed Flrmancial Stat as at March 31, 202%

Tha arneunt ineluded in tha Ealanes shest asiaing frem the Campany's abligasion inrespect of its defined berelit plars iy a6 Tallows:

[R5, dn Jaes]

Particulars Aa gt Margh 31, 2005 &5 ol PMarch 31, 2004
Pront valuw 2l handad dafived Banofit obligaion 2437 15,13
Falr vilus &f plan agmes |2.309 114,581
Blue fundid oblig o.oa 0.17
Presini valus of unfunded delined bapsliz oy _ -
et lability arising fram dafined benalit obligation 008 017
Mausments I the present vahie of (ke defined benelin chilig are a5 follows. {Rs, n locs]

Particulars s at March 31, 2025 As ot March 31, 2024
Cperang defined hanelit abfigation 15.13 E.BD
Currend i iuice £aEk 11,65 1051
firtarsat cokt 108 0.66
Rempasurarant fgainiliasies:
Actunrial gaing Mdhlml:‘dngframﬂuﬂr: in damagraphie el - o
el galme and baasas ariiing lrem changas in linancial assumations .06 043
Actisena] gairs and basies arising Iram asanfinren adastmasnls [4.45] {5,351
Benefits paid - .
Clasing defined banei abigatian 24.57 15,13
[l % in the fair value of the plan Brsets ane a3 follow (R, In fucs)

Partloulars As at March 31, 2025 Az at March 31, 2024
Opening fair value & plan adieti 14.86 -
Empdayer contribiulion 7.89 14,55
Interest on plin st 154 1.55
Retwm on plan asdetd excludog ameunts indludesd In insest nsoirs (o] {074
Benehis poid - -
Assoks disirbuted on settlemenis - ¥
Closing Tadr walue of plan aiiets 24,30 14,35

(e in faes)

[ Category of assets Ak March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
|Palicy of insurarce: 24.30 1495
|Tatal 2430 14.96

Rishs assoclated with defined benedlt plan

Gratulty Is a delined benelit plan and iy 1 exposed to the lollowing risks:

Interest rate gkt A fall in the discaunt rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will incraase (e presaat value of the labikty reguiring higher prosesian. A fall lr the diszeunt mate generally
intreases tha mark 1o markst value of the assets depending an the durstisn af aisst,

Salary Risk; The present vaiue of the defined benefit plan link@ing @ eatzulated by reference 1o the future saleres of members, As such, an incowase in sha sadary of the members mone than
assumed level will increase 1he olan's lability

Imyestment Risk: The present uslue of the defined banefic plan [fality |5 catzulated using @ discawnt rate which is determined by relstence to market yields at the end of the repeming pencd

on geyemment bandi, 1 the return on plan esiet (v below this rate, |t will create a plan deficit, Currenthy, for the plan in ladia, 0 has & relatively batnced mix of Investments in gowernment
securities, gnd ether debt ingtruments,

Acsot LiabiBty Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALK rik 45 to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Bule 101 of Incerme Tas Aubrs, 15962, 15ds generally reduces ALM risk.

Meraliy Rish: Sinca the benatiss under the plan is not payable for life time and payebie il retsemuent age anly, plan does not have amy longevity risk.

Gpnepndratian Risk: Plan is having 2 concentratlen risk a5 all e assets ane Invested with the insurance company snd 2 cefault wal wipe dutall the assets. Although prahsbility of this i very leg
a1 inwurance comparies have to failow regulatony guidslines.

Sensltlvity Analysis [Rs, i facs]
Particudars Year ended Year ended
Bdarch 31, 2025 Warch 31, 2024
Defined benefit obligation on incresde In 50 bps in Discaut mafe 28.38 423
Defined berelit ohlipation an increase In 50 bes in Selery sicalation fale 25.0% 534
imypzet of Increase in 50 bot in Discount rate an DAD -1.51% 5.54%
impact of Increase in 50 bos in Salary escalaton rate on DB 2.067% 143%
Defined benefit obdigation on dacresse in 30 bps in Discount e 2558 16,03
\Defined benefit abligation on decrease in 50 bes in Salary sicaletion rels 28.67 487
fenpact of decreass in 50 bps in Déscound rate on DA 5175 5.88%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps i Salary sscalotion rate on DEO -2.08% -LETH
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Hotes to © fidated Fi inl Stat ty a4 &t March 31, 2015
Maturity Prafile of Defined Benefit Plang {Rs. - Laes)
Projected benofits pavahbla 1o future yozrs from the date of reaorting Year arted Fieur ended
March 31, 2025 Masch 31, 2024
st fallowing year 0.1% a.07
2nd following year ols 0.08
3rd follcreing vaar 076 o0
dik fallowing yaar 114 051
5th fallowing year 115 KL
Surn af years 5 Ta 10 & shews 15.1% 10.77 |
[B} Compensrted absences:
&) Aiiati & Lishilites gnitndd i the Fi 1nl S1ate (R i da)
Particulars A al March 31, 2025 s 3t harch 31, 2034
Hencurrent liskditiex 80,90 70.98
Currer labiies 1518 332
Total 116.08 .30
B} Actuanal assumpiions |
Partiul As ot March 31, 2025 A ot March 31, 2024
Cuscount rate ADE 7.20%|
Salary =scalation rate 7 .00 T.00%
Abirition rate o m
Age - 28 B below 5,005 5.00%
ARe - 25 1o 35 years 5, D% E.W_E
Age - 35 1o 45 years 3,000 3.00%
A = A5 1o 55 yaars L0 2.00%
Ape - 55 & abees 2000 2 W?E

13,1 Infosrnation shout the assets acquieed wnder IBE Including type and value o Bisets acquired, the sector wise distribution based on husiness of the corporare dehene

Valus of asvets acquired
Secicr of the bus
Yoar ef acquisitian Tyoe [Aéauliition cast) or uslmess
FY 2023-24 Dwalst of BF5 Rz 2200 Crares |BF=

33.2 Imglentation status of the Resolution plans soproved by the adiudizating sitharity on & quarterly hasis

n pursusnes of B=terve Bank of |ndis notification Dol 506G FIN AEC.75/26,03.001/7077-23 dated 11 Detaber 2022, during FY 2023, the Compary dpalied lar aia
Beschution Anpfizant and was subseguently declored ag the Successful Ressiulion AppScant {374] under the Corporate Insolvency Resciatian Pracess [CIRP] of Sral
imfrastricture Finamce Limited |{“9FL"] snd Srei Equipment Finanes Limited ("SEFL™). The resalutlor alan suamitted by the cormpany had approved by Nati:ral Campany
Law Tritunal (NCLT) on 11 August 3328 SRA appointed Basrds had 1ahen over cantnol of Both the eompanies wity eflect from 26 Fehruany 2004,

SREr's admiited dobl esposune under SIRP was spgrax By, 32,615 Cratei, The saime wis bacued by joan assets advanced by the two NBFC entities, Seei Ialrastructure
Firarse Limiged ["560FL"} and Sret Equipmant Finamce Limded ("SEFL™),

Recowery is progressing as per arvisaged timelines under the Resolution plan. Manepemrant lean at the company with board oversight is formulating strateges fos
praalimum recovenies fram the boans extendsd by SEFL

#Thie 585 lsued #s:2800 Crwith RCD:SA cover boing 1,88 (45062400} with rating grade of RR1+ by CRESI,

#Tha cisrant substanding 585 of “Rs.1,001 Cr as g= Mancgh 31,2025,

sTatal recovernies for A5Cs 6l date =R=.4,302 Cr

=Wiay ferward i4 10 ensure Aedempton of balance NCDs.

#NSFC lieense fram RBI for SIFL has been obsained an Feb 03,2025,
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Bodes to Ci lidated Finamclad S1at i3 a2 at March 31, X028

[Re. In Bacs]
34 Category wite Financlal Assers and Financial Liahiinies
A% 3t March 31, 2025
Falr vahse
Particidars Amartised Cost Tatal
FITPL T cartying Vabus
Finangial Axgans
- Cash & Cash Equivalupts 52.133.53 . - 52,133.63
= fank balance and ciher than Cash B Cash 55 67635 - 5067635
Equivalants
- Trade Recahvahle 2197565 = = 11,573.55
- Iewestments in Securily Receipts - 41729073 - -4,17,230.73
- Duposits 10989 - - 109,69
- Amaunt Reeevsralile lram Trusts and Orhees 3,363.67 - - 3,962.67
Total 1,37, B55.99 4,17,230.73 . 5,55,086.72
Finmnclal Liabilisles
- Trade payabile a1 - - DL
- Dabi Sacuntiss 2,01,15546 2037, 155 46
- Secutlly Ceppsit 5 . - 1.35
= Linbility for expanaas 20058 = - 200.508
- Linbility for leases A51.15 - = 45115
| Tatal 1,02, 80946 = - 2,02, 809.48
As @t March 11, 2034
Falr vilug
Particulars Amprtised Cost i P Total carrying
Walue
Financlal Assety
- Cash & Cash Equivalents 81,131 &5 - . 93,131.88
= Bank balance and other than Cash & Cash 10,135.79 - = 10,189.79
Equivalonts
= Trade Recalvabin FEA0 - 7,840.21
- Irvestrments in Securily Rrosipts - 1.85,718.55 . 1,85, 21865
+ Deposits 100 - - 108.05
= Arneunt Aceoweryble from Trusts snd Others 1,535.58 - = 1,529.68
Total 1,12,810.52 1,85, 218,55 . 2,98,029.17
Finaincial Lishifities
+ Trade payaole 4514 = 5524
= Spcurity Deposit 125 = = 135
= Liakiility for 218.79 - - 219,79
- Linhllity lor leanss 57583 . - S78.E2
Taolal 501,91 - = 90191
35 Falr Value measurements recognised on the Balance Sheet
Asal March 31, 2025
Paiticulary Lewall Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fimantial Assets
= Invostment In SHy - - 4,37,230.7% 4,17,230.73
A at March 31, 2024
Partindarg Lewel 1 Lewel 2 Lewnl 3 Total
Finaneinl assers
- investment in 38 - - 1,85 23865 LAS 21865
Reconciiation of Level 3 folr value
Particulary Investmint in
SRa
Balamee a5 at March 31, 2023 54,558,08°
il Net gain an fall valus change included in 40,386.33
tatement of Fiafit & Less [Unneslisad]
Add: Inwestment made duning the year 1,25440.25
Lass: Bedemptian of Es during the year [5,576.81)
Lesnz Transter oud of Level 3 -
Beslarce &4 a1 March 31, 2024 1,85,210.65
dd: Net gain on falr vl change included in %4,26420
Statement of Profit & Loss [U lised|
Az Inwestmeint mace during the year 2,33,690.64
Less: Bedemption af lnuestmenty during the year _|35.542.78]
Less: Transler aut ol Laval 3 -
Balance as af March 31, 2025 4.17.130,73
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Matas to G lidated Financial Stab ts 35 @t March 31, 20305

(s I baes)
Sangttiulty Analysls
For the Fair values of bmvestment in 325, ressoratly possble changes at the reparting date to ooe of the significens urobrervabie inputs, balding eulker inpuds enrstant, wauld kave the fallzwing efect

Increase/Decrease | Sersitivity impact for 1he year | Sensitieity impact for the year

In the ended March 31,2025 eniled March 31,2004
Falr valig ag af | Fadr value as 31 Sigmificart wnobservable  |Fair Value Iiﬁ- Wakis Falr Valuw  [Fadr Value
Naturs of Imstrumests Mareh 317025 | Mareh 31,3024 b Ingrlits Inpus |lncreaie Derease Increass Docraain
Iniesiment In Secovity Receipts 4,17, 730.78 185,218 65 |Estimated cash flaw 5% 1B,629.01 iB,628.01 B 741,62 B 1ALE2
beaed an realivation
of collatersts vakie
ElE.

This explairs the judgments and extimate made in determindng 1he Fai- Value af financial instruments that ane {a} recogrised and measured at Fair Value (B medsured at amsinised eoot and fes which
talr vadues are disclosed in the financial stataments. Tha falr valoe hiorarchy is based on inpats 1o waluation technigees that ame used o measere fair value that ame eliher obierabie o umakasrabis
and eansist of fpllcwing 1heee lovels:

Loval 4 : Lival 1 hieranchy Ineludes fimancial Irstremans muasured using quated price, This Includes ¥sted eguity shanes, traded bonds, mutual funds, etc., that heve quoted grice

Ll 2 2 Thi Taie valus of Finastial instrienants Dhat are me iraded b6 atlive imarkat |5 dslarminad wsing valuation tachniddes which masimise the ue of ohservakie market dats and ey as life possiie
e entlty spaciie sstimated. I all signifizar irguts requived far detarmising fairvalus el sn Bnaneld nstrament ane absendable, the instrument s Included in Level 2,

Lavel 3 | 1§ oo or mare of the significant input s not based on observable market data, the instrumaent is inclided in Level 3.
Yaluation Methodalagies

Invastivants in Security Becelpts: The Comaanles inuestminas primarlly conglsts of investmants in S5 Falr value of investments in Security Receipts are claga¥ied as Fair Value theaugh Prefic & lee, and
are detarmined using NAN by Rating Agencies as specified by RBI Guldelines and are clazelied as Level 3, The ratings am based on recoveny rating scabe,

Cases which fall under planning perlad as defined by the BB pudelines for STME, cost af Security Recelats are consldened as Falr valus.
Miznapement has assessed that all finandal az==1s and financial Baailies measured at amoriived cost appraximistes their Tair uslus,
36 Maturity anolysis of assets & lsbilities

The tabile helow shows an aralys of assetsand linbiitles aralysed arcording to when they are expected to be mecowered ar settled,

[As bn laes)
March 31,1025 March 31,2024
Parthoutars Less tham 1 year] hane than 1 year Total Less than 1 year Flces than 1 Total
year
Financial assets
Cash and cash egukalents 5213363 - §2190.8% &% 151,85 - 93,131,685
Bank halwnce other than cash snd cash eguealents 59,676.35 58 67635 10,198.7% - 1019879
Trade Becehvables 17, 999.24 1497441 1137188 7. 741.88 oAz 784021
Invasimants 3861726 3,78,613.4F 41723000 59 657,39 1,26 561.26]  1.85210.65
Oiker finarcial azseis 2,230.48 Ba138 407236 147601 16266 1,638.67
1, 71,556,596 38343576 5,55,086.72 1,72, 106,54 1,05,822.34 E EE!!.:”'
Monsfinancial assels
Curmani 1aa zssais (net) . 25251 25281 - 175.90 175.30
Pregerty, plart and sguipment . 48630 49630 - 4781 BAT E1
Other Imargible ascets . E ] an - 15.59 13.5%
Othar ran-lrancsl assets 13457 a 13457 - 15;.!5 J‘u
134.57 T5L12 BRE.&3 - 1,588,5% 1,588.95 |
Taralassets 1,71,731.53 3R4,181 58 5.55.5713.41 1,72, 106,54 13742119 0996842
March 31,2005 Manch 31,2024
Pastigudary Less than 3 ymar| More ihan 1 year Teilad Less tham 1year | Mare than 1 Total
yoar
Financial llahllities
Trads payshles 0.0 - 0,00 3524 i 95,24
Crebt Setiatiting 215546 E_.IJIJ.IIIIIDU 2,02,155.406 = ® ¥
rher finenesal linkilliies 351.35 30085 E5L.00 353.47 453,40 E06.57
506,82 T,00,302.65 21,03 ROA.AT 44A.51 453.40 HHLF1
Waor-financisl linbdilies
Provisians 27876 53,08 323,74 595.02 TL1E 67018
Deferred tax liabiies hat) = 16,530.71 16,520.71 + 4,510.44 451044
riher nor-finencisl liabiias a10.80 = 410,88 13232 * 13232
0965 16,61 LE66 17,320.34 PETETY 4.5%1,60 531204
1
Todal Habiities 3,216.47 | 1,16,914.33 E 2.20,130.81 117585 5,035.00 6,214,805

Far thi assets and llabilites mentioned above where no confracius] matwity (s avadlzble, the managerment has done an sszsssment io arrive al the probakds matuty timaline Eated cr mme
Eiiimptlons and eshmates,
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Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

Financial Risk Management

The Campany 15 exposed to market risk, credit risk and Hauidity risk, which may Impact the fair value of its financial instruments, The Company
has a risk managament pelicy to manage and mitigate these risks.

Market Risk
hiarket risk ts the risk that future cash flows of @ financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
of forelgn currency risk and interest rate risk. The Company is primarily exposed to interest rate risk.

1} Forel urrency Risk

Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Hows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises of foreign currency risk and interest axposure ta the risk of changes in exchange rate as there are no off-shore business
fransactions.

ii] Interast Rate Risk

Interast Rate Risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interast
rates, The Company's investrments are primarily in fixed depasits and security receipts issued by trusts. The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes is market rates relates primarily to the Company's debt obligations with fixed Interest rates, Hence the Company is not significantly
exposed Lo interest rate risk,

Credit Risk

Financial Instrumants that potentially subject the Company Lo concentration of Credit risk consist principally of trade receivables, unbilied
revenue, investment sacurities and other recoverable from trusts, By their nature, all such financial instruments invalve risks, including the
cradit risk of non-performance by counterparties i.e. trusts, However, the Company being trustee of all the trusts managed by it, the priority of
receivables/ outstanding is a priority a3 per the waterfall mechanism defined Trust Deedf Offer Document. Hence, the Company is not
significantly exposed to cradit risk.

Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk is tha risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its abligatiens associated with financial liabilities. The investment
philosophy of the Company is capital preservation and liquidity in preference to returns. Althaugh the investments in security receipts are not
tradable in market, the Company consistently generates sufficient cash flows fram operations and has access to other sources of funding ta

meet the financial abligations and maintain adequate liquidicy for use,

Reconciliation of gross carrying amount

A} Trade receivables {Rs. Im facs}
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Grass carrying amount (Opening balance) B.729.87 1,404.44
Add: Origination of the trade receivables during the year 25,593.33 10,208.37
Less: Recoveries fram trade receivables during the year B,638,93 2,882.94
Less: Trade receivables written-off/ {write-back) < 3
Gross carrying amount {Closing balance) 25,684,27 8,729.87
8} Funded Iinterast - clubbed under recoverable from trusts {Rs. In lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gress carrying amount (Opening balance) SED.06 1.51
Add: Assets originated 458,85 585.01
Less: Net recoveries from trusts 14,85 5.56
Less: Met assets written-off/ (write-back) 435,51 .
Gross carrying amount [Clesing balance) 528,51 S5E0.06
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Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

C} Funded Expenses - clubbed under Recoverable from Trusts

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Grioss carnying amount {Opening balance) 1,006.86 206,07
Add: Assets originatied 5,120.73 5.547.85
Less: Net recoveries from trusts 1,677.53 1,158.05
Less: Met assets written-off/ (write-back) 368.16 3,579.01
Gross carrying amount (Closing balance) 4,081.90 1,006.86
Reconcillation of expected credit loss (ECL)
A) Trade receivables {Rs. In lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Impairment loss allowance (Cpening balance) B89.66 374.88
Changes In impairment loss allowance due ta -
Add: Crigination of the trade receivablas during the year 2.822.08 516.32
Less: Recoveries froem trade recielvables during?he year 1.12 1.54
Change In estimates = -
Impairment loss allowance |Closing balance) 3,710.62 HE9.66
B} Funded Interest - clubbed under recoverable from trusts [Rs. In lacs)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
|Impairment loss allowance (Opening balance) 57.56 047
Changes in foss allowance due to -
Add: Assets originated 29.25 £7.09
Less: Net recoveries fram trusts 0.34 0.00
Less; Met assets written-off/ (write-back) - -
Change in estimates - -
Impatrment loss allowance (Closing balance) BE.48 57.56
€} Funded Expenses - clubbed under recoverable from trusts {RS. In lacs)
Particulars fs at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

impairment loss allowance [Cpening balance)

Changes In loss zllowance due to -

Mdd: Assets ariginated 631.55 =
Less: Wet recoveries from trusts = -
Less: Met assets written-ofl/ (write-back] =
Change In estimates = -
Impairment loss allowance |Closing balance) 631.55 ¥

Operational Risk

The Company controls aperational risks to ensure that cperational losses [financial or reputational], Including any related ta conduct of
business matters, do not cause material damage to the Company.
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MNational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

Reputational Risk
The Company protects is reputation from material damage by ensuring that any business activity |s satistactorily assessed and managed by the
apprapriate level of managemant and governance oversight.

Compliance Risk
The Company has no appetite for breaches in laws and regulation, while recognising that, regulatory non-compliance cannot be entirely
avoided, the Company strives ta reduce this to an absalute minimum.

39 Corporate social responsibility

The Company has constituted a C5R committes as required under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, together with relevant rules as
prescribed in Companies (Carporate Social Responsibility Pollcy) Rules, 2014 ["CSR rules’). The Company has framad the CSR policy and has
identified the CSR initiatives and the methodology for spending the same to ensure aporopriate and use of funds 5o spent.

{Re. In lzcs)

. Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

a) Amount reguired ta be spent by the comgany during the year 163.87 3107
b} Amount of expenditure incurred 163.87 31.07
) Shortfall at the end of the year * =
d] Total of previous years shortfall .
2} Reasan far shortfall - =
f} Mature of CSR activities Healthcare Socizl [ssues | Healthcare,Social Issues
g detzils of related party transactions = :
h} where 3 provision Is made with respect to a liability incurred by - -
entering into a contractual ebligation, the movemeants in the provision
during the year shall be shown separately.

40 Revenue from contracts with customers
Disaggregated revenue
The table below represents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers by type of services, geographical market and timing of

revenue recognition. The Management believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and wncertainty of its
revenues and cash Hows are affected by industry, markat and other economic factors.

(Rs. in lacs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Type of Services
Fees & other incame 25,59333 12,8459.74
Total revenue from contract with customers 25,593.33 12,849.74
Geographical Markets
India 25,593.33 12,849.74
Cutside India - -
Total revenue from contract with customers 25,593.33 12,849.74
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transfarred at a point In time - -
Services transferred over time 25,593,33 12,845,749
Tatal revenue from contract with customers 25,593,33 12,849.74
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MNational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

Contract balance

1Rs. I facs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade Recejvables 25.684.27 B,729.87

41 Contingent Liability, Commitments and lease arrongements

41.1 Legal claims

There are no fegal claims against the company 35 on March 31, 2025 & as on March 31,2024,

41.2 Contingent labilities

There are no centingent liabilities as on March 31, 2025 and As on March 31, 2024,

41.3 Lease commitments - Company as a lessee

The company has entered Into commerclal leases for premises . Future minimum lease payments ander non—cancellable leases as 2t 31 March

are, a5 follows:

[Rz. In kacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within 1 year 182 28 185.40
After one year but not more than five years 326,25 518.53
More than 5 years - -
This note provides information for leases where the campany is a lessee.
Right of use assets {Rs. in lacs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening 541.62 HRG.33
Addition - -
Deletion/Adjustment 16.85) -
Depreciation expense {14731} {147.71)
Clasing 387.46 541.62
Lease Liability {Rs. In lacs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 tarch 31, 2024
Opening 579.63 94, 48
Addition - -
Deletion/Adjustment {6.85)
Accretion of interest 56.8% 70,54
Paymenis {178.52) [185.40)
Clasing 451.15 579.63
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases
{Rs. In lacs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on right of use assets 147,31 147.71
Interzst on lease liability 56.89 70.54
Total 204.20 218.25

171 of 178




Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Maotes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

42 Caplital management

The primary cbjective of the Company for its capital management is to ensure that it complies with externally impased capital requiremen..
and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios In order to support its business and to maxzimise shareholder value,

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividend payme
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities.

The Company's strategy is to maintain optimum gearing ratio. The gearing ratios are as follows:

[As in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash/ Bank balance as per Books 52,133.63 53,131.85
Bank balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 59,676.35 10,195.79
Borrowings {Debt Securitias) 2,02,155.46 -
Met Debt 1,50,021.84 =
Total Equity 3,35,842.61 2,93,413.27
Debt/ Equity Ratio 0.60 -

43 There are no foreign currency transactions during year ended on March 31, 2025 & year ended on March 31, 2024,

44 The Company has operation in single business segment and hence there are no separate reportable segments to be disclosed under Ind -
108 - "0Operating Segments"

45 There are no subsequent events between the year ended March 31, 2025 and signing of the Financial Statements as on June 13, 2025 whick
have material impact on the financials of the Campany.

46 Other additional regulatory information

4g.1 Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the Company
The Company do not have any immovakle properties where title deeds are not held in the name of the company.

46.2 Loans and advances
There are no loans or advances in the nature of loans which are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (35 defined

under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person that are:
{a) repayable on demand or
{b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

46.3 Details of benami property held
The Company do not have any benam| property, where any proceeding has been initisted or pending against the company for holding ar

Benami property.

46.4 Security of current assets against borrowings
The Company has no barrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets,
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Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

46,5 Wilful defaulter
The Company is not declared a5 wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

A6.6 Relationship with struck off Companies
The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

46.7 Registration of charges or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of Companies [ROC)
The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

46.8 Ratios
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Capital to risk-weighted assets ratjo (CRAR) 74.84% 142.93%
Tier | CRAR 74.84% 142.93%
Tier || CRAR A A
Liquidity Coverage Ratio 18284.67% 23098.31%
Debt Equity Ratio D.60 A

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 3.29 WA

CRAR = Total Capital / Risk Welghted assets

Tier | CRAR = Tier | Capital / Risk Weighted assets

Tier Il CRAR = Tier || Capital / Risk Weighted assets

Liguidity Coverage Ratlo = High Quality Liguid Assets/Short-term obligations for next 30 days

Debt Equity Ratio : Debt Securlties/Net Warth

Debt Service Coverage Ratio : Profit before Interest & Tax /{Interest expense+ Principal Repayment in next 12 months)

46.9 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

{A) During the year, the company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
antities {Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

{i} directly er indirectly lend or invest In ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
{Ultimate Beneficiaries)

{it) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{8} During the year, the Company has not received any fund from any person{s) ar entity(ies), including forzign entities {Funding Party] with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise] that the Company shall:

{i) directly or indirectiy lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
{Ultimate bepeficlaries) or

{il) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

46.10. Undisclosed income
The Campany does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of

the Incorme Tax Act, 1961).

.
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National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

46.11 Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current financial year.
47 The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

48 The Company does not have entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting Impact on current.ar previous financial year.

49 The Company has not revalued Its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets during the current

previous year,

S0 The Financial Staterment 15 prepared In aceardance with Division Il to Schedule NIl of the Companies Act, 2013.The line items as per
prascribed farmat are not applicable to company and items which are applicable to company but having nil balance In the current 2
previous reporting period are not disclosed in this financial statements,

51 Investor Education and Protection Fund
There is no amount required 1o be transferred to Investar Education and Protection Fund by the Campany.

52 The financial statements were agproved for Issue by the Board of Directors on June 13, 2025

53 Pravious year's comparatives
Previous years figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary,to conform to the current year's presentation,
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Mational Astet Reconstruction Company Limited
weates o Conyedidatad Finandal Statemants asat Mach 31,

4 Interest in Astoclates:

2025

Bedorwr are the Assaciates af 18 Graug, whitly, In tho apinien of (ke Managamant, are matetial 1o the Group, which have heen

agemintid as par aquity method of accounting.

Frinclpal place of business

Propartion of ownetship intees and

g fCountry ot ncorporation | vollng powor held by the Growp | P1IPCIPIACHVIEY
raarch 33,2005 Manch 3

Sred Indrastrocture Findaca Limited India ELTA LY SE0TH Infrastruciure Finznoe

HARCL Trust - 0007 India 25.00% 150 Ausel uczlon

Sumnpaeised financial information In respect of the Groap’s, materis asocisins afe st st below:

1, Fananelal infarmation of Sfel Infrasiructure Finsnes Limited

la) Summarlsed Conalidated Halames Sheet

[Asin aes}

Partitulars fi5 a1 March 35, 2035 | As 21 March B, 3004
Financial Asals 1.07,E61,00 4,38 577.00
rion Financinl dxsets 73,6506,00 107, 526500
Financlal Liakdities 2,1R,A83.00 3,1E,342.00
Man Finandal Liabiliies W A50 1) 1,35, 14R.00
Maan controding Inkerest 11,69, 17000 110817100
miﬂﬂ od ke above summarked finandal|

f lom 1o the carrging ameunt ol the interest in the)
agsnciates secognised In the consolideted financlal]
{statemnonts:
Pt T (11,01,241.00% 10,74, E56.C00
Proportion of the Growp's awnorship interest in the AR SO
nssoclates
Ghare in Wet Avests af the Company 15,05, % 70.85) f4,84,341, 70
Graws’ Share of ioss recogrsed - a5
Group® Share af kass urrseagnlsed i daco !I.D!!.?H A5 40554

Thee Cempary hat accourded its share of o 1o the extent of carmying value of the isveitmants agrregating to Rs, 26 o in sccordence with “imlian
Acconinting Mandard (i A5} 2R - |nusstments in Assnefaces and balnt Ventures™,

|5} Smmarised Cansolidated Statement of Pralit & Loss

B3 In lacs}
For fhe year ended Fai 1 yeai endad
Partioulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 1628
Taaks! ravunus {including ciber income) B0, 00 33,283.00
Frofll afier ta T15.212.00] [, =50 01
Othar Ceanphrershe iIncome [7Xm001 43,729.000
Tatal Comprehensive incnme (2E,586,00] |

{& ] Thi statwlory audicors of Axsaciare Comoany bave steted that the canyafidatad s i withaut eonydering the firancial impact of three step dawn
subsidlaries of the Aaietiate Company 45 ey lave sat rdoeod the Faancial statement of 1oree step down wobiidisreg

2. Fananclal Information of Trust 0o0d

fal Sumsmarlsed Salante $hast

[R5 I lmzs)

|Partinatars Acat March 3L, 2025 | Aot Masch B, 2034
(Finarscial Aszets O3 A0516 2,21,708.71
an Financinl Assuls P25 .27
Finanzial Labfities 155.03 LTA4
ban Finwneial Lishilives £6.70 1820 |
[Reconciiistion  of the aboue  sursmaried  Financia)

Infarmatien to tha carrying amount of the interest in the|

assoclates recognised In the  consalidated finanglal

MALEm e —_
Nt aspets 3.02,017.69 2,21, 705060
Prajurtian af thes Group’s awnerihis interest in the

assocfates E5.00H 2500
Share In Het fxsets of the Trust S0.504.43 554740
Growp' Share of prafit recogeied 25,083.82 -]
(4} Summarlzed Statement af Profit & Lass.

(R i lmsd
Far the year ondued For the year ended

Particulari Basch 31, 2025 iareh 31, 2024
Total fevdrase [incheding ather Feome] 1.01,935.79 -
Predit aiver tax 1,01.935.28 -

Oiher Comphrenshes income

Totsl Comptehansive Income

MUMBAIO1 ) o

!
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Mational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

MNotes to Consolidated Finandal Statements as at March 31, 2025

Additional infarmation as required under schedule il to the Camponies Act 2013 of enterprises consolidoted o3 piiociotes

5 on March 31,2025 iﬂ-; in |a:s}
Met assets |.e. Total nssets Share in Profit or Loss Share in Other Share in Total comprehensive
Name of the Entity minus Total Liabilities comprehensive ncome incoma
k] Amount % Amount % Amount ¥ Amount
Parent
Natignal Asset Reconstruction Company Limited E456%| 28033818 10.93% 16,942.57 100,005 255 39.94% 16,945.52
Asspciates (Investment as per Equity method)
Srad Infrastructure Finance Limited - - = - = =
NARCL Trust - 0007 15.04% 50,504.42 G0.07H 5 083 82 - - G006 2548382
Total 100.00%]  3,35,842.60 100.00% AZA26,79 100.001% 258 100000% 12,425.34
As on Morch 31,2024 [R= in lacs)
Net assets e, Total assets Sharein Profit or Loss Sharein Other Share in Total comprehensive
Name af the Entity minus Total Liabilities comprenensive income incoma
% Amount % Amount W Amaunt % Amount
|PErent
Naticnal Asset Reconstruction Company Limited B1.11%] 2.3798586 100.28% 16,218.23 100.001% 343 100.28% 16,271.45
Asgocistes (Investment as per Equity method)
Srel Infrastructure Finance Limited = - 0.28% 146.00) - -DL2E%) (46,00}
NARCL Trust - 0007 18.89% 55,427.40 - - - - - “
Tatal I00.00%] 259341326 100005 16,172.23 100.00% 3.43 100.00% 16,175,866
Signature to note no. 1 to 54
For and on behalf of the Board of Directars af
MNational Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
fZD u;m_-b_nf_J {mat!:. .{E\ )
Diwakar Gupta P Santhos —
Chalrman M B CFO -"E
DN: 01274552 DIN: RS 15964 g
5 b
indam Biswas apil Soni
Chisf Financial Officer Company Sesretary

Place: Mumbal
Cate: june 13, 2025

176 of 178




Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

of

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Bs.)
Si, Mo. | Particulars Cetails

1.

Name of the subsidiary

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different

% from the holding company's reporting period )
3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the lastdate of |
5 the relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries
4. Share capital -
5. Reserves & surplus =
B, Total assets -
7. Total Liabilitles =
B. Investments >
9. Turnover -
10. Profit before taxation 2
11, Provision for taxation -
12, Profit after taxation .
13. Proposed Dividend -
14, % of shareholding -

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - NA

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. - NA
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Eﬂﬂ bl = ggsgglgtgg and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to

Associ i t Vent

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Mame of associates/Joint Ventures SREl Infrastructure Finance Limited
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 21% March 2025

2.Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture

was associated or acquired 19" December 2023

2. Shares of Associate/loint Ventures held by
the company on the year end

Na. 4.60
A i i entur
meount of Investment in Associates/oint Venture | 46.00
Extend of Holding% 468%
3. Description of how there is significant E_u:mt'rul of more than 20% of total paid up share
influence capital

4, Reason why the associatefjoint venture is not | Associate Company -Srel Infrastructure
consolidated Finance Limited has been consolidated

5.  Netwaorth attributable to shareholding as per
latest audited Balance Shest (11,071,242}

6. Profit/Loss for the year
i Considered in Consolidation =

i, Not Considerad in Consolidation (19.213)
1. Mames of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.
MNLA
2. MNames of associates or joint ventures which have been liguidated or sold during
the year. N.A
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Diwakar Gupta P Santhos
Chairman MD & CED
Din: 01274552 Din: %8515954
k]
i b
Date: June 13, 2025 Arihdam Biswas apil Soni
Place: Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

178 of 178



	3022009c98f5d77598e9ef7f3372d3a775b4c0771e779c5c1aeb0b29b33542be.pdf
	cf7b72902fccfc386ebf806ce3add4c08cfce4c9712220d8e53d69a91f08dcec.pdf
	3022009c98f5d77598e9ef7f3372d3a775b4c0771e779c5c1aeb0b29b33542be.pdf

